5 March 2020

Admiral Group plc announces a record Group profit before tax of £5626.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019
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£526.1 million
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52%
£3.46 billion
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6.98 million
5.48 million
1.42million
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126.0 pence

56%
£3.28 billion
£1.26 billion
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5.24 million
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£8.8 million
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"lAlternative Performancb®leasures refer to the end of the report for definition and explanation
"Unaudited. Refer to capital structure and financial position section later in the report for further information

Around10,000staff each receive free shares woup to £3,600 under the employee share
scheme based on the full year 2019 resutl staff will also receive @ne-off £500 bonus to reflect
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Comment from David Steven§roup Chief Executive Officer
“Admiral tends, year after year, to exhibit a relentless forward momentum, which my predecessor
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“It was a year which saw profits exceed £500 million for the first time, on the back of substantial
reserve releasesWe crossed the million mark in household policyholders, and added 200,000 new
car insurance customers/erseas.

“Alongside this rapid progress on many fronts, some data points were stubbornly stdlge.
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up from 19 years to 20The percentage of staff sayinigety are proud to work for Admiral was
stuck in a narrow band in the mil 0 ’As was the percentage of customers who said they wanted
to renew with Admiral following a claim.
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“Consistently happy staff, consistently happy custométepefully happy shareiiders.

“I!\.announced this morning that | am golfulygy to be
expect that Admiral ' s etlbybueveryalented GEQD designaten Biterdag e me n
Mondini, will be more than ready to maintain,orevert oke up, Admiral s relen

Annette Court, Admiral Group Chair, commented:
“l am delighted to report another year of recor

also pleasing to receive a recent award as the only companypeaaspn theSunday Times Best
Large Company to WoRorshortlist every year since the inception of the awards 20 years ago.
These results are testament to our people, who continue to be at the core of our success and
highlight every day the real differea¢hat they make through their focus on great customer
service.

“Foll owing from the announcement today of Admir
his intention to retire in twelve months’ ti me,
over the past 27 years to Admiral’'s success. Si
reserve my fuller accolades until that time.

“Having been through a comprehensive and robust
in Milena Mondiniwe have a natural successor and a leader for the next generation, supported by
a very strong management team. Milena brings a deep appreciation of the special Admiral culture,
entrepreneurial spirit, commercial track record

Dividend
The Board has proposed a final dividend of 77.0 pence per sP@i8:(66.0prepresenting a

normal dividend (65% of posax profits) of 56.3 pence and a special dividend of 20.7 pence per
share. The dividend will be paid on 1 J@02Q The exdividend date is 7 May 2020 and the record
date is 11 May 2020

Management presentatio
Analysts and investors will be able to access the Admiral Group management presentation which

commences at 11am GMT on Thursday 5 March 2020 by registering at the following link
http s://pres.admiralgroup.co.uk/admiral037/vip_connect . A copy of the presentation slides will be
available atvww.admiralgroup.co.uk



https://pres.admiralgroup.co.uk/admiral037/vip_connect
http://www.admiralgroup.co.uk/

Chair Statement

2019 marks another year of very strong results for Admiral, and also the announcement of a

change of leadershigt is hard to sum up the amazing contribution that David has made to the

Group over the last 27 years. As one of the founders he has ovetse®unisiness grow from a
standing start to become one of the UK’'s |l arges
serving seven million customers and with a market value today of over £6 billion.

David isn’t going | usgtlmyactolades uhtil he actually stéps devenrint t o
12 mo nt hbavid bringsma anique combination of great brainpower, integrity, innovation,

caring and humility. As an individual, his compassion for colleagues and customers alike

encapsulates Admita’ s approach and ethos. Suffice to say,
work with him.

Having been through a comprehensive and robust succession process, the Board is confident that

in Milena we have a natural successor and a leader for the neerggon. We have a wealth of

management talent at Admiral and bringing this through has always been a central pillar to
Admiral’ s management philosophy as Miehabringsusi ness
a deep appreciation of the special Attai culture, entrepreneurial spirit, commercial track record

and people development skills.

Looking back at 2019

I am delighted to report another year of strong performance in 2019, beating many records. This is
once again due to our people. They make tkal difference at Admiral. Their focus on serving our
customers, the distinctive culture and their contribution to the communities in which Admiral
operates is what makes Admiral truly different.

The Group has continued to grow with turnover increasigd% to £3.5 billion, whilst customer
numbers are 7% higher than 201 8taxgrofitiécre@&&8dbyni | | i on
10% to £526 million driven by UK Motor insurance, with strong releases of prior year claims

reserves. Once again we veeimpacted by Ogden (the Personal Injury Discount Rate). Although the

final rate was set at0.25%, and therefore lower than our expectations, we were able to deliver
significantly increased profits resulting in an early trading update to notify the mafkégher

than expected profit. Earnings per share rose b
solvency ratio remains robust at 190% (194% at the end of 2018).

This strong performance was due to contributions from businesses across the Grdiqul&ayr of

note was UK Insurance (Motor, Household, Travel), European insurance and Confused.com. Our
Loans business continues to develop well and we continue to build this business with our usual
cautious approach. We have encountered more challengédsityS, so we still continue to
strengthen fundamentalthere.

Focusing on the UK, we maintained a disciplined approach and prioritised profitability over growth,
by increasing prices as a result of continued claims inflation. This led to modest gresthev

period. The regulatory environment in the UK continues to evolve, with whiplash reform and the
FCA market pricing study being key features of 2019 and into 2020. Approximately 80% of Admiral
customers shop around at renewal, so we are encouragetittigamajority choose to remain with
usand is an indicator of olgood customeexperience and competitive pricing



As a result of our Brexit restructuring, 1 January 2019 marked the start of operations for our
European insurance hub in Madrid. The tallows us to underwrite and support our growing
European insurance businesses and ensures that we are well placed for a full range of potential
circumstances without disrupting our customers.

Dividend

Our dividend policy remains that we pay a normal dinidlef 65% of postax profit and distribute

each year the available surplus over and above what we retain to meet regulatory requirements,
the future development of our business and appropriate buffers. The Directors have recommended
a final dividend of 7pence per share (2018: 66 pence per share) for the year to 31 December 2019
representing a distribution of 90% of our second half earnings.

This will bring the total dividend for the year to 140 pence per share, an overall increase of 11%.
This represertg a payout ratio of 94%. The Group has delivered a Total Shareholder Return (TSR) of
361% over the last 10 years.

Group Board in 2019

The Board recognises the need for a strong corporate governance framework and supporting
processes across the Group aralibves that good governance, with the tone set from the top, is a
key factor in delivering sustainabl e business
stakeholders.

We reviewed our Group strategy in 2019 which remains straightforward andytiggused on
building customeicentric, sustainable businesses for the ldagn. We strive to keep doing what

we' ' re doing, and do it better year after year.

In our UK insurance business, we remain determined to strengthen our core competitive
advantages ad pursue our culture of innovation and test and learn approach. For example, we are
continuing to deploy technology relating to digital and sfvice to improve the customer
experience and overall efficiencies.

We also continue to take what we deell and what we learn to new markets and new products,
both in the UK and abroad. We are agile enough to adapt to evolving business environments and
encourage entrepreneurial initiatives to solve challenges and offer the best outcome to our
customers, peple and investors. One example is the launch of Household insurance in France

From a governance perspective, we have applied the principles of the new Corporate Governance
Code which ensures that we will continue to take on board the views of all otaketwlders in

our discussions and decision makigs you would expect, we already have strong links with our
people andm 2019, the Board revisited and enhanced several areas of focus including our culture,
engagement, diversity, our impact on the enoriment and climate change, and how we give back
and participate in the communities in which we operate through our Ministry of Giving.

To ensure that we further enhance the strong links between the Board and Admiral employees, we
have set up an Employé&gonsultation Group (ECG). This group, elected by employees, meets on a
regular basis and provides a tweay link between the Board and wider staff. | and other members

p



of the Board have had the privilege of attending these sessions and | am impresseopassion

and energy our people have for continuing to shape the business and a real desire to ensure that
we remain a great company to work f@ékn example of this is considering ways in which we can
better use flexible working.

There is further work talo to ensure that views of our international employees across the Group
are better represented, so we will be building on this approach over the next twelve months.

Once again Admiral was recognised as a Great Place to Work in 2019. We were awarded the

Surday Times best company to work for in the URp@st multinational workplace in Europe?3

best workplace for women in the UK and"l@est workplace in the world! Of course, this his

doesn’t happen by accident . ¥#&uhattheyrdo,theydeit t o bel i
better. Our people feel involved because they have a voice, they are shareholders in our business,

and they genuinely care.

Having our people as shareholders remains a dis
These aralesigned to ensure that decisions are made by management to supportéomgvalue
growth, that the right behaviours are rewarded
those of shareholders. Our core belief is that over the {@rgn, share appeciation depends on

delivering great outcomes for our customers.

During the year, | had the pleasure of visiting our operations in the UK, France, Italy, Spain and the
US where | was able to engage with a wide variety of pedipie always wonderful to see the

Admiral culture so deeply ingrained in offices across the globe. This culture was just as clearly
embedded for me at the annual Staff General Meeting and the annual managemesiteodfvent.

In 2019, the Board also attded a Claims education session in Newport as part of our ongoing
Board education programme, and we each had the opportunity to engage with claims employees
and visit a local repairer which was very insightful in seeing more evidence of our service in
pradice.

The Board and | feel that there is a good balance of experience, skills and knowledge to support
and challenge the management team, and that operations are supported by effective governance
and control systems. There have been no changes to thedBmamposition in 2019 following

three new appointments in 2018 but the Board and | expect to appoint an additionag¢xecutive
director with a technology background in early 20 will continue to review all aspects of
diversity to ensure that we areell-prepared to guide the Group through our next phase of

growth.

During the year the Board and each of its Committees undertook reviews of their effectiveness. As
part of the threeyear cycle we undertook an external effectiveness review of the Bo&dlif,
including consideration dhe principles of the 2018 Corporate Governance Catie conclusions
provided useful feedback on its performance.

Our focus areas for the Board remain to:

1 Continue to build on theemarkaby speciahdmiralculture and in so doing putting our
people, customers and wider impact on the commuritthe heart of what we do
91 Continue the history of growth, profitability and innovation



91 Investin the development and growth of our peopleve have focused on the gl and
development of our senior management team, added to our talent base by some external
hires, and reviewed our succession pipeline

1 Ensure excellent governance and the highest standards

Our role in Society

Admiral takes its role in society very sesbuand has an active approach to Corporate

Responsibility (more information in Corporate Social Responsibility Report on the Admiral yvebsite

We are proud to be Wales’' only FTSE 100 headqua
in South Wales. Our pple play an active part in the communities in which we operate. We

carefully consider our impact on the community and environment, including factors such as the

green credentials of our buildings, raising funds for multiple charities, and consideriimgphet

of climate change across the business.

This year we reviewed our responsible investment policy with regard to our ESG positiring.
aim to be an economically strong and responsible business over thedanmgguided by a clear
purpose, to make gositive and significant impact not just to our customers and our people but to
the economy and society.

Thank you

On behalf of the Board | would like to thank everyone at Admiral for their continued hard work and
contribution to t1% ewoldralsalike'tosthamkew sharehaslders for th2id
support and confidence. Most of all | would like to thank our customers for placing their business
with us.

Annette Court
Group Chair
4 March 2020
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The combination of a new decade and an imminent, if not immediate, change of leadership at
Admiral provides me with a valid excuse to comment across a longer time period than a typical CEO
statement in an annual report.

Almost a decade ago, my predecesdaenry, with his inimitable talent for a colourful phrase to

light up a CEO statement, described the company
downhill” (2010's CEO statement). I know I’ m no
with his penchant for colourful, often gastronomic, analogiesonfess, however, in this instance, |

mi ght have avoi dwitdassodatidns of feagilioyartd &rdndiehcand “ downhi | |

—with associations of, well* d own hi | | " ; heng@relytrdassured onfthe sustaimability of
Admiral’s model
But | did | ove *“ ghfieighytraindinét eacyanot flamourauh(vho heedsa n " .

glamourous insurance company); but progressing ever onwards with a relentless, implacable
forward momentum.

That relentless forward momentum has seen us grow, year in year out, over the decade with the
number of customers we serve growing from 1.9 millior7 @million overall, and from just over
100k to 14 million beyond the UK, while also growing our profitsm £206million to £526 million.

Did 2019 itself fit into this narrative of relentless momentum?
Very much so. In so many ways.

It was a year which saw profits exceed £500 million for the first time, on the back of substantial
reserve releases. Wirossed the million mark in household policyholders and sold our first
household policy beyond the UK. By year end, we had almost sold our 100,000th loan (and have, at
time of writing, done so). We believe (hard to prove it) we have become the biguesfi¢et)

van insurer in the UK, only 2.5 years after starting to underwrite van insurance.

Alongside this rapid progress on many fronts, some data points were stubbornly stable. The
number of consecutive years amacgst Tohé&vor &kp pal
nudged up from 19 years to 20.

The percentage of staff saying they are proud to work for Admiral was stuck in a narrow band in
themid9 0’ s . As was the percentage of customers wh
following a clan.

Consistently happy staff, consistently happy customers.

Reassuringly stable outcomes, that are fundamental to our relentless forward momentum; a
momentum fuelled by a sustainably healthy culture:

1 A culture that, in many different ways, attracts & retaipeople, at all levels, who are simply
better at their jobs than most of their peers in the industry.

9 A culture that respects and promotes a set of fundamental skills in risk selection, claim
handling, customer support and expense control that are corsuttzess in insurance.

1 A culture that emphasises the long term over the short term; long term prosperity ahead of
short-term financials; a sustainable balance in the outcomes for staff, customers and
shareholders.



It is a source of huge satisfaction to nas,| contemplate the end of my period of stewardship of

Admiral, that | will leave a wonderful company in the hands of a wonderful top management team

in Geraint, Cristina, Scott & Elena, very ably supported by great leaders running important
subsidiariesand key Group functions. They are collectively more than capable, of not just
sustaining, but also of Andlarh paiticulgrly gladl thatiinfMidldnd, s p o't
| have a successor who has the intelligence, the values, the traclkdrandrthe clarity of vision to

take on the role of Group CEO; to “reinterpret?”
decade; to reinforce the elements that remain key to our future success; and, equally importantly,

to set aside elementstha wi | | inevitaidblyy slte.past their “se
Thereby ensuring that Admiral wi || continue to

David StevensCBE
GroupChief Executive Officer
4 March 2020



Chief Financial Offic&€ Review
A headline 10% increase in giax profit-to a new record levelis a really pleasing result, and so

11 start my review by looking at what'’'s dri vi
Group share preaax profit Em 2019 2018 Change

UK Insurance 597 556 +41

International Insurance (1) Q) -

Comparison 18 9 +9

Admiral Loans (8) (12) +4

Share scheme cost (53) (49) 4)

Other (27) (24) (3)

Profit 526 479 +47

The standout item is the £41m improvement in UK Insurgroéit. £11m of that comes from an
improved household result (more below)K Motor profitability moved ahead by around £30m to
£591m.

When trying to assess the change, it’s importan
laterinthereportf or mor e detail ) has Fictly2l8wastpesilivelp ot h year
impacted(£66m) when we changed our assumption of thege, ahead of its announcemenfrom -

0.75% to 0% at yeaand. When the new rate-0.25%) wasnnouncedmid-2 01 9) , 2019' s r e
took a hit of around £33m to adjust for our slight optimishimat means that the underlying profit

move is bigger than the £47m the table above, though the changes in the Ogden rate during the

period make meaningful comparison difficult. Thankfully we should see some stability in Ogden in

the coming years.

What is clear is that UK motor profit is materially higher in 2019 thér gears.That has been

driven byunusuallyhigh UK motor reserve releases that resulted from improved reserve estimates

across a numberofyears.hi s in part is due to some ‘uncloggi
caused by the recent certainty, but algenerally much more positive trends on big claims than we

expected Admiral of course is (andeklievealwaysshouldbe) consistently prudent in setting

reserves and normally expects significant releases, but 2019 has been well above az@¥age (

21%over the previous five yeaxsProfit commission revenue was also well ahead of recent years.

To give an idea of quantum, if the reserve release for 2019 (defined as reserve releases on
Admiral’ s original net shar etyedrnetpremiunbrevenue) e ss as
was in line with the average of the prior five years, Group profit would have been around £430

million to £450 million.

It s also worth noting that the | evel of conser
of the margin above best estimate in percentage terms) is unchangedoyegear.We were

expecting it to reduce somewhat at 2019 yeard, but the scale and nature of the positive moves

on the back years has led us to continue being as cautious as at thaf 2adi8 for the time being.

Wewoul d expect (though can’t guarantee of cour se
possibly not quite of thenagnitudeseen in 2019We might expect the level of conservatism within
the reserves to reduce if 2020einds are a bit more usual.

A few other observations from the results:



I Within the UK Insurance result above, our Household business made a profit of around
£8m. Still relatively small to the Group (it would beertwice as big if the cost of quota
share reinsurance was excluded), but a decétirtor soi mpr ovement on 2018’
weatherimpacted resultThe business continued to grow nicely, with 17% more customers
insuredWe ' re hoping f or s o meeatherngss ratio ia theeconhingi n t he
years

1 In contrast (and a bit disappointingly), the Interiwatal Insurance result remained flat at a
£1m loss in 2019This comprised a better European result (E9m v £7m) offset by a higher
US loss (£10m v £8mThis fourpoint-higherlossratio-driven US result is discussed
further below, whilst the overall imtrnational result needs to be considered alongside a
very healthy 16% growth in the number of active policies at year

1 The Comparison segment produced a very pleasing (stellar even?) doubling of profit (E18m
v £9m). Confused.com led the way and moretai¢on that is below.Revenue growth was
also strong at 14%

1 Admiral Loans grew its outstanding balances to £455m (+52%) whilst revenue more than
doubled. Importantly, headcount was basically flat, a nice insight into the efficiency of the
business.Theloss reduced to £8min line with expectation and arrears were also in line
with plan

T Finally, ot her c 0st s Thebiggest compoaent@slynudcanf 8 m o n
see is the Admiral share scheme charge which increased (£49m to £53m) ak afres
improved vesting assumptions (improved financial resultsstrmhgshareholder return)
and the higher share pricalVe will also pay all our employees a cash bonus of £500 in
recognition of the huge contr ialbuntdfémn t o t he

Further details on the numbers are set out throughout the strategic review section of the report.

Highlight¢ Confused.com
Picking a highlight from such a strong set of results was reassuringly t@ymions included a

good turnaround in UKousehold profit (plus decent growth, surpassing one million customers),
strong growth and an i mproved result at L’olivi
Loans (not forgetting the UK motor profiBut t her e’ s one shearabitout f or
more about Confused.com.

The i mprovement in performance under Louise and
been stark:
2017 2018 2019 2019 v 2017
Revenue £87.1m £95.1m £112.7m +29%
Operating profit £10.1m £14.3m £20.4m +102%
Operating profit % 12% 15% 18% +50%

A number of factors have contributed to that very nice doubling of profit v 20dwen more focus
on profitability and cost efficiency, very notable improvements in marketing, customer experience
and praduct.
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From a marketing perspective, brand awareness has significantly improved and, in particular,
spontaneous awareness almost doubledin20% doubt you’' | | have enjoye
sponsorship of the Rugby World Cup on TV whilst desperately hoping for a Welsh win (

Marketing efficiency was also improved.

Confused’s product offering is better than it w
journey. Results from products beyond dasurance comparison have improved significantly.

Great work Louise plus Andy, John, Karen, Sam, Steve, Tamsin and th€wmifiobedcom team!

Less pleasing Elephant Auto

For balance and as hinted above, a disappointment in 2019 was the reversaltient of
improving financials for Elephant Auto and associated write down of the carrying value in the
parent company financial statements.

The last few years have seen some great progress at Elep8ante examples from 2019 include
notable improvemats in service levels (leading to a big increase in Net Promotor Score) and
technology (online seervice as one example), launching a second brand and diversifying
distribution channels, amongst others.

But 2019 will probably be most remembered fodeterioration in loss ratio (2019 underwriting
year is projected around 77%/4% for 2018 at the same point of development) when we were
expecting the oppositeMuch action is being and has been taken (including underwriting rule
changes and significardte increases) and improving the loss ratio will continue to be a (or
actually, the) major area of focus in 202Bome additional conservatism has also been built into
the booked reserves at the end of 2019.

Partly because of the result being worse th@an, we changed to using shortearm projections

for the carrying value impairmenttestvhi | st we remain confident that
improve in the shorerm, and the business will go onto profitability in the (ideally) not too distant

future, this led us to conclude that further impairment to the carrying value was required and a
£66mcharge was taken in the 2019 parent company accounts.

| have faith in our team in Richmond to improve the results in 2020 (no pressure Alberto!).

Finally,| shouldalsogivean updateon the statusof our internal capitalmodel. Ourteam has
continuedits intensivework, with keytasksduring2019includingremediationof previousfindings
andhavingthe updatedmodelretested,by independentinternal and external

validators. Positively none of that work hasmovedthe overallcapitalpositionmaterially.

Interms of next steps—we expectto moveinto a pre-applicationphasewith the PRAand Gibraltar
regulatorsin the middle of 2020. Thatprocessnvolvesanassessmendf our applicationagainst
the requirementsand canlastsixmonths. After that there would be a further numberof months
for usto fix anyissueghat cameout of that review. Thenw e ’belin a positionto makea formal
application,andrealisticallyw e 'nalv expectthat to be in 2021.

InMarch2 0 1 6FCsatementl countedmyselfvery luckyto haveworkedfor A d mi first CEOs
HenryEngelhardtwho wasaboutto retire after areasonable?5 yearshift in charge. Theexact
samesentimentappliesto my currentboss- A d mi seadndCECandcofounder,David. We " | |
payfuller tribute when Davidactuallystepsdown after the transition,sol ’just $aythat| ’ very

11



delightedw e ' beenableto nameMilenaasD a v isutcessor Havingsatbackto-backto her for
ayearor so(occasionallgettingawordint ),lknows h edb dndmazingobasA d mi thiadl ' s
CEQand! '’ reallyforwardto workingwith her and continuingto be partof A d mi teadership
teamfor the foreseeable.CongratulationdMilena!

GeraintJones
ChiefFinancialOfficer
4 March 2020
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2019 GroupOverview

£m 2019 2018 2017
3.46 3.28 2.96
Turnover (Ebny*?2
Underwriting profit including investment incorite 2380 211.2 177.7
Profit commission 1149 93.2 67.0
Net other revenue and expenses 1823 183.1 170.2
Operating profit 535.2 487.5 414.9
Group Statutory profit before tax 522.6 476.2 403.5
DNR dzLJQa { KI NB 2F LINRTA 526.1 479.3 405.4
UK Insurance 597.4 555.6 465.5
International Insurance (0.9) (1.2) (14.3)
Comparison 18.0 8.8 7.1
Loans (8.4) (11.8) (4.4)
Other (80.0) (72.2) (48.5)
DNR dzLJQa { KIFNB 2F LINRBTFA 526.1 479.3 405.4
Keymetrics:
Group loss ratit™ 64.9% 67.3% 66.2%
Group expense ratig? 23. ™% 22.9% 21.5%
Group combined ratid 88.6% 90.2% 87.7%
Customer numbers (million) 6.98 6.51 5.73
Earnings per share 148.3p 137.1p 117.2p
Dividends 140.0p 126.0p 114.0p
Return on Equity 52% 56% 55%
Solvency Ratio 190% 194% 205%

"I Alternative Performance Measuresefer to the end of thiseport for definition and explanation
"2 See note 13 for a reconciliation of Turnover and reported loss and expense ratios to the financial statements

Key highlights fao20l%rbasfoldwoup’ s resul t

9 Continued growth in turnover (£3.46 billipup 5% on 2018) and customer numbers (6.98
million, up 7% on 2018)

T Group’' s sthxanofiss ofEH526.pmilkon (2018: £479.3 million) and statutory profit
before tax of £522.6 million (2018: £476.2 million)

1 The main driver of the strong growth @roup profit was a higher UK Insurance result,
which benefitted from very positive development in prior years claims costs and elevated
reserve releases and profit commission, partially offset by higher central costs

1 UK Insurance turnover and customergtboncreased by 2% and 4% respectively to £2.63
billion and 5.5 million (2018: £2.58 billion and 5.2 million), as the business continued to
prioritise margin over volume by increasing rates ahead of the market

1 UK Household saw strong growth in turnover amdtomer numbers, with an improved
result of £7.5 million (2018: £3.0 million loss) after more benign weather experience in
2019 in comparison to 2018

13



9 The European insurance businesses delivered a higher profit of £8.7 million (2018: £6.4
million), offsetby an increased loss in the US insurance business (£9.6m in 2019 v £7.5m in
2018). The overall international insurance loss was £0.9 million (2018: £1.1 million loss).
T The Comparison businesses recorded amgregate
of £18.0 million (2018: £8.8 million), with the increase mainly driven by a very strong profit
from Confused.com of £20.4 million (2018: £14.3 million)

/ KFyaS Ay 'Y RA&O2dzyd NI GS o0WhaRSyQo

Following the announcement in m&D19 by the UKsovernment, the Ogden discount ratehich

is used in setting personal injury compensation, was changed to minus 0.25% from the existing
minus 0.75% rate that had been in place since February 2017. The change came into effect on 5
August 2019 and the min@s25% rate is expected to remain in place for up to the next five years.

Admiral assumed a 0% rate in setting best estimate claims reserves at 31 December 2018 and

2 0 1 8 ’-tax prpfit veas positively impacted by £66 million as a result of the move fnoms

0. 75%. As a result of the actual rate being 25
before tax is adversely impacted by around £33 million.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share increased by 8% to 148.3 pence (2018:d8¥#), with growth slightly lower
than the pretax profit growth of 10% due to an increase in the weighted average number of
shares.

Dividends

The Group’'s divi dend-tapprdfits @asy normal dividend@rdyo p&ya% of po
further specialdividend comprising earnings not required to be held in the Group for solvency

capital requirements including management internal risk appetite above the regulatory minimum.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 77.0 pence per share (approxingZ#alynfllion), split
as follows:

1 56.3 pence per share normal dividend, based on the dividend policy of distributing 65% of
posttax profits; plus
1 A special dividend of 20.7 pence per share

This final dividend is 17% ahead of the 2018 final dividend (@&nce per share), with a payit
ratio of 90%for H2 2019

The total dividend for the 2019 financial year is 140.0 pence per share, reflecting an 11% increase
on 2018 and a 94% paput ratio.

The payment is due on 1 June 2020dexdend date 7 Mg 2020 and record date 11 May 2020.

Return on equity
The Group’'s return on equity was 52% in 2019, |
shareofpost ax profits gr ew bagver&ééquitytglevefasterabl9yp ' s shar e
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resulting in a laver overall return. The significant growth in profits in the second half of 2019
contributed to the increase in the group’s shar

Capital structure and financial position

The Gr ansyance and einsurance arrangements for the UK Cardnea business are in

pl ace at | east until the end of 2020. The Group
Re will underwrite 40% of the business, througkirgurance (30%) and reinsurance (10%)

arrangements, until at least the end of 20ZXtensions beyond 2020 are expected to be

confirmed during the first half of 2020.

Similarlongrt er m arr angements are in place in the Gro
and the UK Household and Van businesses.

The Group continues to manage @@pital to ensure that all entities are able to continue as going
concerns and that regulated entities comfortably meet regulatory capital requirements. Surplus
capital within subsidiaries is paid up to the Group holding company in the form of dividends.

The Group’s regulatory capital i s basedonon the
to reflect recognised | imitations in the Standa
(predominantly in respect of profit commission arrangementsdnand reinsurance agreements

and risks arising from claims including Periodic Payment Order (PPO) claims).

The Group continues to develop its partial internal model to form the basis of future capital
requirements and e x p-aeppitason procese duting 2020t HFormalPRA' s pr e
application for regulatory approval to use the model is expected to follow in 2DRthe interim

period before submission, the current capital aold basis will continue to be used to calculate the

regulatory capitatequirement.

The estimated and unaudited regulatory Solvency Il position for the Group at the date of this
report is as follows:

Group capital positionunaudited)

Group £bn
Eligible Own Funds (pre 2019 final dividend) 1.42
2019 final dividend 0.22
Eligible Own Funds (post 2019 final dividend) 1.20
Solvency Il capital requireméeht 0.63
Surplus over regulatory capital requirement 0.57
Solvency ratio (post dividend® 190%

*1 Solvency capital requirement includes updated capital-addvhich is subject to regulatory approval.
*2 Solvency ratio calculated on a volatility adjusted basis.

The Group’s capital includes £200 mi Interestis t en vy
fixed at 5.5% and the bonds mature in July 2024. The bonds qualify as tier two capital under the
Solvency Il regulatory regime.

Estimated sensitivities to the current Group solvency ratio are presented in the table below. These
sensitivities cosr the two most material risk types, insurance risk and market risk, and within these
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risks cover the most significant elements of the risk profile. Aside from the catastrophe events,

estimated sensitivities have not been calibrated to individual retunmguoks.

Solvency ratio sensitivitiegunaudited)

2019 2018
UK Motor—incurred loss ratio +5% -23% -27%
UK Motor—1 in 200 catastrophe event -1% -2%
UK Householéd 1 in 200 catastrophe event -2% -2%
Interest rate—yield curve down 50 bps -5% -12%
Credit spreads widen 100 bps -8% -5%
Currency-25% movement in euro and US dollar -3% -3%
ASHE-long term inflation assumption up 0.5% -3% -10%
Loans-100% worsening in experience -3% -1%

Thesensitivityto interestratesandlongterm ASHEnflation is lower at the end of 2019,compared
to the previousyearend. Thisreflectsa reductionin the assumptiornof the numberof openclaims

that are expectedto settle asperiodicpaymentorders.

Taxation

The tax charge reported in the consolidated income statement is £94.2 million (2018: £85.7

million), equating to 18.0 % of ptax profit (2018: 18.0%).

Investments and cash
Investment strategy

Admir al Group’ s under | ipsithe game thevrmin focmseigonh capitalr at e gy

preservation, with additional priorities including low volatility of returns, high levels of liquidity and
appropriate matching of asset/liability duration and currency. All objectives continue to be met.

TheGraap’'s I nvestment Committee performs

appropriate.

Admiral ' s i nv eveledietwd maia wagys doreng2019:

9 Formal adoption of a responsible investment strategy which focussessuring
Environmental, Social and Governance criteria are considered within investment decision

making

regul ar

1 Widening the opportunity set of investments to achieve greater returns without material
change in market risk capital allocated to investments. Exariptduded high quality (AAA)
asset backed securities, private debt assets and global bond strategies, actively managed on a

total return basis

Cash and investments analysis

£m 2019 2018 2017
Fixed income and debt securities 1,957.8 1,568.6 1,493.5
Money market funds and other fair value instruments 1,160.2 1,301.1 1,074.3
Cash deposits 116.5 100.0 130.0
Cash 281.7 376.8 326.8
Total 3,516.2 3,346.5 3,024.6
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Investment and interest income in 2019 w£35.3 million, a decrease 00£ million on 2018

(£360 million). 2019 investment income is negatively impacted by an accrugl®® million

relating to quota share reinsurance arrangements (2018: nil). Excluding this, investment and
interest incomemn 2019 was £48.fillion, an increase of E2.2million compared to 2018 due to
higher average balances and an increase in the average rate of return in 2019, partly due to the
changes noted above. Fixed income was increased by rebalancing other holdohgsya

mandates including very higluality asset backed securities and senior private debt.

The underlying rate of return for the year (excluding accruals related to reinsurance contract funds
withheld) on the Gr oup4%(20681.28%). and i nvestments w

The Group continues to generate significant amounts of cash and its eeffité#nt business
model enables the distribution of the majority of petsix profits as dividends.

Cash flow
£m 2019 2018 2017
Operating cash flow, befomovements innvestments 518.1 488.5 617.6
Transfers to financial investments (188.7) (248.8) (229.4)
Operating cash flow 3294 239.7 388.2
Tax payments (92.8) (55.6) (55.9)
Investing cash flows (capitekpenditure) (33.6) (23.9) (22.7)
Financing cash flows (392.4) (346.8) (310.0)
Loans funding through special purpose entity 85.9 220.2 -
Net contributions from norcontrolling interests 1.6 19.3 -
Foreign currency translation impact 6.8 (2.9) 0.6
Net cash movement (95.1) 50.0 0.2
Movement in unrealised gains on investments 34.6 (26.6) 11.2
Movement in accrued interest 41.5 49.7 37.0
Net increase in cash and financial investments 169.7 321.9 277.8

The main items contributing to theperating cash inflow are as follows:

£m 2019 2018 2017
Profit after tax 428.4 390.5 331.6
Change in net insurandiabilities 50.4 176.6 53.2
Net change in trade receivables and liabilities 27.4 14.9 195.2
Change in loans and advancestustomers (168.7) (242.9) (65.2)
Non-cash income statement items 86.4 63.7 30.9
Taxation expense 94.2 85.7 71.9
Operating cash flow, beforenovements ininvestments 518.1 488.5 617.6

Net cash and investments have increased by £169.7 million or 5% (2018: £321.9 million;Th&%).
main drivers include the Group’ doasskhusiness, o f i ncr e
increased tax payments in 2019 (due to timing) and increasadeatid payments.
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1 UK Insurance including UK Motor (Car and Van), Household, Travel

f International InsurancecA Y Of dzZRAY 3 [ Q2f AGASNI 6CNI yOSuvZ ! RY
(Italy), Elephant(UsS)

1 Comparisorr, including Confused.com (UK), LeLynx (France), Rastreator (Spain),
Compare.com (US), Preminen (emerging markets)

UK and European Insurance Reviewlilena Mondini, Group CE@esignate
What an eventful year! Il " m sure that 2019 will

billion profit record.In the UKunusually higheserve releases in UK motor was the driver, whilst
the European operations showed a combined profit for seeond year.

While in the UK, the theme was ‘discipline’ and
environment, in Europe, the focus was ‘growth’
scale and gather more data to improve technigsults and customer outcomes.

Our 2019 strategy review has strengthened our belief that sustainable growth for Admiral Group
will be achieved by building on our competitive advantages and driving product diversification in all
the countries in which wemerate. On both points, it has been great to witness stronger
collaboration amongst our insurance businesses across the world over the past twelve months.

Most ongoing business priorities are similar in the different countries: a better digital experience
for our customers, excellence in analytics, continuous improvements in technology and new
product development, all enabled by new ways of working.

At the same time, we increased focus on product diversification, with a view to deploy our core
competenciesand to better serve our customers. In the UK, we saw our household team hit a key
milestone of 1 million customers, and continued growth in our van and travel insurance businesses.
In Europe, we expanded into the household insurance market with the lapfmdbmebrella in

France, a renter focused product, prior to the launch of afilégiged renters and owner

proposition in early 2020.

Overall, 2019 was a good year focusing on what we do best, and what we desupytorted by a
strong team and an evestronger focus to continue to build a lotgrm business for the future.

UK Insurance ReviewgCristina Nestares, CEO UK Insurance
One of the things | enjoy most about my role at Admiral is that | get an opportunity to visit the

various sites we have aass South Wales, Canada and India and to spend time with the people that

really make this company. And by that, | mean the people who sell our policies, talk to our

customers, and most importantly help them when they needitmosth et her t hat ' s t o ¢
insurance for their new car or dealing with their needs if their home has been flooded.

lt’s our people’s enthusiasm to come to work th
makes it a great place to work, which drives forward our desiiefwove the service and
products we offer to customers. And ultimately, providing great service and keeping our customers
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happy (along with strong, disciplined underwriting capability, of course) drives and delivers our
results each year.

Thi s vy dtsaare’asewhighdan the business, as very strong back year developments have

resulted in record releases and our highest ever recorded profits. Whilst this release is much

hi gher than we’ ve seen in recent ementaspesdsduemd | ar g
to Ogden certainty, | believe that it also demonstrates of our maléading ability to price risks

and our effective claims handling processes.

Moving forward with automation and digattal capa
Admir al mai ntains its position at the forefront
strong strides this year that will help us into the future.

An example is the Il aunch of our I nstaQuote hous
recognised that our customers want quick, efficient and vdremoney services, which is exactly
what this tool provides. I't's dramatically red

easier for the customer, and has helped us to break thrahghl million customers mark just 7
years after launching! We also won the Moneynet Personal Finance Best Household Insurer award
in 2019!

I n addition to improving the household customer
insurance journey by aming more digital communication routes to help customers interact with

us and make changes via the web and to register claims electronically. The traditional channels are

still available, of course, but many of our customers (both young and old) favazkes, more

flexible channels of interaction, which have the added benefit of efficiency for us.

In the last couple of years, this increased investment has contributed to the slight increase in our
expense ratio (albeit from a very low base, and with addal levies being the greatest contributor

to the expense ratio increase in 2019). However, these changes leave us well placed to deal with
the challenges and customer demands of 2020 and beyond. The development of digital channels
and automating our ackoffice processes are also important for the claims reforms (or Civil
Liability Bill) that come into force in the second half of 2020, which should allow us to service
claims under the lower cost regime and pass the savings to customers whilst magpimi
competitive advantage.

Whilst on the topic of regulation and customers, we welcome the pricing study that is being
undertaken by the FCA, particularly in relation
policies have stagnated at a single yider and increased in price for many years. When we

launched Confused.com in 2002, we saw that customers wanted pricing transparency and the best

price, and the comparison channel has delivered most of our motor and car customers ever since.

We ' r e fore ep pleased that changes to encourage customers to shop around (as most of our

motor and home customers already do) and will provide Admiral with further opportunity to grow

the Household customer base towards its second million!

I n ¢ on c liket® thankqur peéoplelfor their hard work in 2019 and our customers for their
trust in us—as ultimately, we are here to serve our customers!
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UK Insurance review
UK Insurance financial performance

£m 2019 2018 2017
Turnover? 2,635.0 2,575.7 2,354.0
Total premiums written 2,321.7 2,269.8 2,098.0
Net insurance premium revenue 5332 523.9 491.6
Underwriting profit including investment incomé 257.4 227.7 206.2
Profit commission and other income 340.0 327.9 259.3
DNER dzLJQa & K| NB 2 Pefdreax?h y a 597.4 555.6 465.5

"I Alternative Performance Measuresefer to note 13 at the end of this report for definition and explanation

Split of UK Insurance profit before tax

£m 2019 2018 2017
Motor 591.5 561.7 461.4
Household 7.5 (3.0) 4.1
Travel (1.6) (3.1) -
DNR dzLJQa aKFNB 2F !'Y Aya 597.4 555.6 465.5

Key performance indicators

2019 2018 2017
Vehicles insured atear end 4.37m 4.32m 3.96m
Households insured at year end 1.01m 0.87m 0.66m
Travel policies insured at year end 0.09m 0.05m -
Total UK Insurance custométs 5.47m 5.24m 4.62m

"IAlternative Performance Measuresefer to the end of the report for definition and explanation.

Key highlights for the UK insurance business for 2019 include:

1 Modest growth in Motor customers but continued strong growth in Household with
Admiral increasing rates ahead of the markatoilghout 2019 for Motor and maintaining
rates for Household

1 A 5% increase in UK Motor profit to £591.5 million (2018: £561.7 million) primarily as a
result of increased reserve releases due to an increase in the speed of settlements of large
bodily injuryclaims and increased certainty post the change in the Ogden rate 204l

T This is partially off seotf fb'y Gagnd eand vi emrpsaec tcsh a( nf g
impact in 2018, adverse impact in 2019). Refer to the UK motor section below for further
analysis of the underlying growth on key metrics such as loss ratio, reserve releases and
profit commission

9 Household profit of £7.5 million (2018: £3.0 million loss) as a result of more benign
weather experience in 2019

1 Travel insurance product saw amer loss of £1.6 million (2018: £3.1 million loss)
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UK Motor Insurance financial review

£m 2019 2018 2017
Turnover? 2,455.3 2,423.1 2,246.9
Total premiums writteit 2,158.5 2,132.1 2,001.5
Net insurance premiumevenue 452.6 452.5 433.2
Investment income 30.4 32.2 32.6
Net insurance claims (164.7) (189.2) (214.2)
Net insurance expenses (74.7) (72.0) (59.7)
Underwriting profit including investment incomé 243.6 223.5 191.9
Profit commission 112.2 95.0 64.7
Underwriting profit and profit commission 355.8 318.5 256.6
Net other revenué 235.7 243.2 204.8
UK Motor Insurance profibefore tax 591.5 561.7 461.4

*1 Alternative Performance Measuresefer to the end of this report for definition and explanation

*2 Investment income includes £2.8 million of ingr@up interest (2018: £0.7 million; 2017: nil)

*3 Underwriting profit excludes contribution from underwritten ancillaries (included in net other revenue)

*4 Net other revenue includes instalment income aadtribution from underwritten ancillaries and is
analysed later in the report.

Key performance indicators

£m 2019 2018 2017
Reported motor lossatio™ " 60.7% 63.5% 64.1%
Reported motor expense rafig? 19.1% 18.4% 16.2%
Reported motorcombinedratio 79.8% 81.9% 80.3%
Written basis Motor expense ratio 18.5% 17.5% 15.8%
Reported loss ratio before releases 87.6% 88.1% 85.3%
Claims reserve release®riginal net sharé* £121.7m  £111.4m £92.1m
Claims reserve releasecommuted reinsurancé™ £121.7m  £109.6m £73.8m
Total claims reserve releases £243.4m £221.0m £165.9m
Other Revenue perehicle £66 £67 £64
Vehicles insured at year end 4.37m 4.32m 3.96m

*1 AlternativePerformance Measuresrefer to the end of this report for definition and explanation

*2 Motor loss ratio adjusted to exclude impact of reserve releases on commuted reinsurance contracts.
Reconciliation in note 13b.

*3 Motor expense ratio isalculated by including claims handling expenses that are reported within claims
costs in the income statement. Reconciliation in note 13c.

*4 QOriginal net share shows reserve releases on the proportion of the portfolio that Admiral wrote on a net
basis atthe start of the underwriting year in question.

*5 Commuted reinsurance shows releases, net of loss on commutation, on the proportion of the account that
was originally ceded under quota share reinsurance contracts but has since been commuted and hence
reportedin underwritingprofit rather thanprofit commission.

UK Motor profit increased by 5% during 2019 to £591illion (2018: £561.Tillion) and vehicles
insured rose very modestly to 4.37 million (2018: 4.32 million), whilst the reported combitied ra
improved to 79.8% (2018: 81.9%). Net insurance premium revenue was consistent with the prior
period. The results were impacted by a number of factors:
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9 The current period loss ratio was 87.6% (2018: 88.1%). As highlighted below, there are a
number of ofsetting movements that net to the overall improvement of @#s:

Reported Motor Loss Ratio

Current Releases ¢ Reported
Period Original Ne Loss Ratio

Loss Ratio Share
2018 88.1% -24.6Y 63.5%
Prior period impact of Ogden chang8.75% to 0%) - +4.0% +4.0%
Change in underlying current period loss ratio -1.5% - -1.5%
Change in underlying claims reserve release - -8.7% -8.7%
2019 (excluding Ogden change) 86.6% -29.3Y 57.3%
Add Impact of Ogden change (0% @25%) +1.0% +2.49 +3.4%
2019 87.6% -26.9% 60.7%

I The unfavourable Ogden change in 2019 (0% to mih@§%) increased the current period
loss ratio by 1.0 ppt. Excluding this impact, the current period loss ratio is 86.6%, which can
be compared to the 2018 ratio of 88.1% (both at Ogden 0%). The undgityprovement
of 1.5 ppts reflects a slightly lower level of margin held above the projected ultimate
outcome for the current accident year, when compared to 2018 at the same point.

T Reserve releases on Admiral ' s oeportegliossa l net
ratio by 26.9 ppts in 2019. Excluding the adverse Ogden impact increases this to 29.3 ppts
which is 4.7 ppts higher than in 2018 (24.6 ppts) and well above historical results. The
underlying increase, after excluding the favourable-offeOgden impact in 2018 is 8.7

ppts.

9 This underlying improvement in the level of reserve release is unusually large and the main
driver of the increase in reported profits. It is the result of a significant level of favourable
development in ultimate projeabins of prior underwriting years which in turn can be
broadly attributed to an increase in the speed of settlements in larger bodily injury claims
following the confirmation of the new Ogden rate.

91 Despite the significant level of reserve release (in batjgeted ultimate and financial
statement loss ratios), the margin held above ultimate outcomes in the financial statement
reserves remains both significant and prudent. In both absolute and relative terms, the
aggregate level of margin held across currandl prior underwriting years, remains
consistent with that held at the end of 2018.

1 Reserve releases from commuted reinsurance and profit commission were higher in 2019,
as follows:
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£m Reserve Profit Total
releases;, commissior

commuted

reinsurance
2018 109.6 95.C 204.6
Prior period Impact of Ogden chang®(75% to 0%) -17.2 -18.4 -35.6
Change in underlying commuted releases +11.3 - +11.3
Change in loss on commutation +27.0 - +27.0
Change in underlying profiommission - +44.t +44.5
2019 (excluding Ogden change) 130.7 121.1 251.8
Add Impact of Ogden change (0% to minus 0.25% -9.1 -8.8 -17.9
2019 121.7 112.2 233.9

1 Releases on reserves originally reinsured but since commuted is higher at S1iBibr7 (v
£109.6 million in 2018)

1 There are a number of offsetting underlying movements, including a lower impact of the
accounting loss on commutation (2019: £4.9 million; 2018: £31.9 million) and an underlying
improvement in the level of commuted relessin line with the favourable development
noted above, offset by an unfavourable net impact of @rfeOgden changes in both years

1 The trend is similar for profit commission which improved to £112.2 million (2018: £95.0
million). Underlying profit commigsn improved by £44.5m, primarily as a result of the
favourable development of prior underwriting years

1 Investment income was slightly lower than 2018 at £30.4 million (2018: £32.2 million) with
an underlying increase of £11.1m (due to both an increagteld and growth in the asset
base) more than offset by notional investment income accruals on reinsurance funds
withheld balances of £12.9 million (2018: £nil)

1 The written and reported basis expense ratios increased in 2019 with a number of factors
impacing: nonacquisition costs was the main driver primarily through levies and to a
lesser extent, investment in IT and claims as the skills and foundations to build further
competitive advantages in these areas are strengthened

9 Other revenue (including anigity products underwritten by Admiral) and instalment
income decreased to £235.7 million (2018: £243.2 million) primarily resulting from lower
contribution from optional ancillaries

Market prices remained subdued during the year with some evidence of increases in the later
months as a result of elevated levels of claims inflation. Admiral continued to prioritise margin over
growth, and increased prices ahead of the market. As a reslight new business growth and good
retention contributed to customer numbers (4.37 million v 4.32 million) and turnover (£2.46 billion
v £2.42 billion) being both up by 1%.

Claims and reserves

Notable claims trends for Admiral and the market in 2019ensmilar to 2018, including a slew
down in the reduction in small injury claims frequency and continuing inflation in damage claims
costs.The first projection of the impact of large bodily injury claims on the 2019 loss ratio is
consistent with the projetion of 2018 at the end of 2018
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The Group continues to reserve conservatively, setting claims reserves in the financial statements
well above actuarial best estimates to create a margin held to allow for unforeseen adverse
development.

As noted above he Group experienced continued positive development of claims costs on

previous underwriting years as a result of increased speed of large bodily injury settlements and
increased certainty related to the Ogden rate, in addition to a small number of posg#iy large

claims settlements. These factors led to another significant release of reserves in the financial
statements in the period (£121.7 million on Adm
The margin held in reservésprudent and sigificant and remained at a consistent level year

year.

UK Car Insuranceco-insurance and reinsurance

Admiral makes significant use of proportional risk sharing agreements, where insurers outside the
Group underwrite a majority ahe risk generatedeither through ceinsurance or quota share
reinsurance contracts. These arrangements include profit commission terms (see below) which
allow Admiral to retain a significant portion of the profit generated.

Muni ch Re and it s s wilbusderdviiteed0% of thenUKimoter pusitgsse at L a k
until at least 2020, with future extension options available to Munich Re until 2022. 30% of this

total is on a cénsurance basis, with the remaining 10% under a quota share reinsurance

agreement from 2017 onards.

The Group also has other quota share reinsurance arrangements confirmed to the end of 2020
covering 38% of the business written and expects to extend these or similar arrangements beyond
2020 during the first half of 2020.

The nature of the cansurance proportion underwritten by Munich Re (via Great Lakes) is such that
30% of all motor premium and claims for the 2019 year accrue directly to Great Lakes and are not
reflected in the Group’'s financi al aupfarite ment s.
proportional share of expenses incurred in acquiring and administering this business.

The quota share reinsurance arrangements result in all motor premiums and claims that are ceded
to reinsurers being i ncl utbebdtthesefigurdsare d@jusbedtp’ s f i n
exclude the reinsurer share, resulting in a net result for the Group.

The Group also purchases excess of loss reinsurance to provide protection against large claims and
reviews this cover annually. The level of cawerchased for 2020 reduced slightly compared to
2019 due to significant increases in market prices for cover.

Profit commission

Admiral is potentially able to earn material amounts of profit commission revenue fremncb
reinsurance partners, dependingr¢he profitability of the insurance business underwritten by the
partner. Revenue is recognised in the income statement in line with the booked loss ratios on
Admiral’ s retained underwriting.

Note 5c to the financial statements analyses profit commisgioome by business, type of
contract and by underwriting year.
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Commutations of quota share reinsurance
Admiral tends to commute its UK Car Insurance quota share reinsurance contracts for an

underwriting year 24 months after inception, assuming there ifigaht confidence in the
profitability of the business covered by the reinsurance contract.

After the commutation is executed, movements in booked loss ratios result in reserve releases (or
strengthening if the booked loss ratio were to increase) rathantreduced or increased
reinsurance claims recoveries or profit commission.

During the first half of 2019, the majority tife 2017 quota share contracts were commuteat 31
December 2019, quota share reinsurance contracts remained in place for a small portion of 2017
and the full 2018 and 2019 underwriting years. No further contracts were commuted in the second
half of 208 (as is usual).

As noted above, in 2019 Admiral recognised reserve releases from commuted reinsurance
contracts of £121.7 million (2018: 109.6 million).

Refer to note 5d(v) of the financial statements for further analysis of reserve releases on
commutedquota share reinsurance contracts.

Other Revenue and Instalment Income
UK Motor Insurance Other Revenuganalysis of contribution:

£m 2019 2018 2017
Contribution from additional products & fees 202.1 206.5 187.3
Contribution from additionaproducts

underwritten by Admirat 13.9 13.6 15.0
Instalment income 83.9 81.4 56.1
Other revenue 299.9 301.5 258.4
Internal costs (64.2) (58.3) (53.6)
Net other revenue 235.7 243.2 204.8
Other revenue pewvehicle? £66 £67 £64
Other revenueper vehicle net of internal costs £56 £57 £54

*1 Included in underwriting profit in income statement butadiocated to Other Revenue for purpose of
KPlIs.
*2 Other revenue (before internal costs) divided by average active vehicles, riimgnth basis.

Admiral generates Otheevenuefrom a portfolio of insurance products that complement the core
car insurance product, and also fees generated over the life of the policy.

The most material contributors to net Othezvenuecontinue to be:

9 Profit earned from motor policy upgrade products underwritten by Admiral, including
breakdown, car hire and personal injury covers

1 Revenue from other insurance products, not underwrittgnAdmiral

Fees such as administration and cancellation fees

1 Interest charged to customers paying for cover in instalments

=
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Overall contribution (Otherevenuenet of costs plus instalment income) decreased to £235.7

million (2018: £243.2 million). This isline with the half year expectation ofsmallreduction.

Whilst there were a number of smaller offsetting changes within the total, the main reasons for the
decrease is reduced optional ancillary contribution and fees, which reflects an increase in
transactions completed digitally and changes to the customer journey. This was slightly offset by an
increase in instalment income primarily due to the growth in the underlying book and an increase

in customers paying by instalments.

Other revenue was equivait to a decrease to £66 per vehicle (gross of costs; 2018: £67), as a
result of the factors mentioned above. Net Other Revenue (after deducting costs) per vehicle was
£56 (20B: £57).

UK Household Insurance financial performance

£m 2019 2018 2017
Turnover?! 171.3 146.0 107.1
Total premiums writteit 154.9 131.1 96.5
Net insurance premiumevenue 37.2 31.2 23.1
Underwriting profit/(loss) ™™ 0.7 (6.3) (0.8)
Profit commission and other income 6.8 3.3 4.9
UK Household insuranaerofit/(loss) 7.5 (3.0) 4.1

*1 Alternative Performance Measuregefer to the end of this report for definition and explanation
*2 Underwriting profit/losg excluding contribution from underwritten ancillaries

Key performance indicators

2019 2018 2017
Reported household losatio™ 69.1% 92.3% 73.5%
Reported household expense rétio 28.9% 28.1% 30.0%
Reported household combinedtio™ 98.0% 120.4% 103.5%
Impact of extreme weather and subsidefice - 19.1% -
Households insured at year €hd 1,011,900 865,800 659,800

"L Alternative Performance Measuresefer to the end of this report for definition and explanation

The number of properties insured increased by 17% to 1.01 million (2018: 0.87 million). Turnover
increased by 17% to £171.3 million (2018: £146.0 millidl&w business market volumes

continued to increase, customer retention remained strong, and shogpiorgased via the
comparison channels.

2019 saw more benign weather than in 2018. A combined ratio of 98% (2018: 120%) resulted in a
small net underwriting profit of £0.7 million (2018: underwriting loss of £6.3 million), which was
supplemented by net dter revenue and profit commission of £6.8 million (2018: £3.3 million).

UK Household insurancereinsurance

The Group’'s Househol d -teungroportiona reinsaranseampapgemente d by
covering 70% of the risk. In addition, the Growgs monproportional reinsurance to cover the risk

of catastrophes stemming from weather events.
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UK Insurance Regulatory environment
The UK Insurance business operates predominantly under the regulation of:

1 the UK Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) Rndiential Regulatory Authority (PRA) which
regul ate the Group’s UK registered subsidiar
intermediary) and Admiral Insurance Company Limited (AICL; an insurer); and

9 the Financial Services Commission (FSC), whictarégals t he Gr-lobased’ s Gi br a
insurance company (Admiral Insurance (Gibraltar) Limited, AIGL), in that territory.

The Group is required to maintain capital at a level prescribed by the lead regulator for Solvency Il
purposes, the PRA, and maintains godus above that required level at all times.

International Insurance review

Spaing Pascal GonzalvezActing CEO (Sarah Harris is on maternity leave), Admiral Seguros
In 2019, Admiral Seguros accelerated its growth despite difficult market conditicha@finished
the year with more than 290,000 customers.

We managed to increase our new business sales by 16% while the comparison market was
shrinking. This was made possible by the structural changes on Rastreator where the user
experience was signifinfly improved by guaranteeing the final price to customers, having a
significant impact on conversion. Our strategy to diversify our acquisition channels has also been
bearing fruit with the development of a broker channel that is contributing to the acatdd

growth.

It was pleasing to see our overall technical results moving in the right direction despite challenges
in the cost of growth. Loss ratios are improving on prior years as expected, whilst being slightly
higher than anticipated for the 2019 darwriting year as a result of new business growth. This was
offset by a decrease in our expense ratio as we improved internal efficiencies.

I n 2020, we're planning to keep exploring alter
we '’ r e dabnohunew initiatives to improve loss ratio (e.g. improved-&atid capabilities
and innovation in risk selection). We' Il al so

through digital capabilities (sedfervice) and operational optimisationu@mation).

Franceg Pascal Gonzalvez/ 9 hX [ Q2f AGASNI ! a4dz2NI yOS
2019 was another yearof stroqmge r f or mance f or L’ ol ivier Assuranc

It was a year ofast growth despite unfavourable market conditions. Our portfolio increased by
32%, while at the same time the aggregator market (our main acquisition channel) was shrinking.
We're pleased to see our efforts on brand awareness, direct acquisition, aneérston showing
progress and paving the way for further development in the coming years.

Not only did we grow fast, but we also grew stronger. Our portfolio grew while having some
significant operational improvements. As a consequence, our customersslikere and more!

The benefits of our investments toward an effortless customer journey started to materialise with
peaks in customer satisfaction (net promoter score), persistency, and referrals, to name a few.
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On the claims side, loss ratios have eleped well for prior years, resulting in reserve releases.
However, the business experienced a deterioration in the 2019 loss ratio, partly due to the strong
growth of new business in 2019.

2020 is the beginning of akameuwmutipredpctjeumeyfirmlr L' o |
the launch of a new household insurance produktter launching our insurtech named

Homebrella (a home insurance product for renter
a broader household product underther and L' ol i vier in early 2020.

We look forward to continuing to #makeithappén

Italy ¢ Costantino Morettic CEO, ConTe
ConTe closed 2019 with a profit for the sixth year in a row, whilst also achieving significant growth

in turnover of 16% yeaon-year.

The direct mar ket wasn’'t particularly favourabl
challenging competition, especially via comparison panels. Despite this context, ConTe was able to
grow by leveraging on its competitiveness and on the improvemanthe digital journey,

particularly focussed omobile.

ConTe is strengthening its competitive positioning in the Italian Market and continuing to invest in
the brand which is steadily increasing awareness among ltalian drivers. In 2019 a new advertisin
campaign was successfully launched, endorsed by Mr. Carlo Conti, who is one of the most popular
Italian TV anchors.

Our growth is bringing a significant benefit towards achieving scale and is driving an improved
expense ratio. Efficiencies were alg@ined thanks to investment in technology: digital, robotics
and automation are delivering the expected benefits and continue to offer interesting
opportunities for the future.

Other key metrics of the business improved which demonstrates that ConTe westio stay
focused on its ‘sustainable growth' strategy. A
prior year development resulted in strong reserve releases.

In a perfect Admirastyle, our people and culture continue to make the different& have been
recognised for another year in a row as one of the best large companies to work for!

USA¢ Alberto Schiavorg CEO, Elephant Auto
Over the last year Elephant has continued with our strategy to focus on customer retention, to

service these custuers efficiently by leveraging technology, and to make Elephant a great insurer
for our shareholders, customers and staff. While we undoubtedly made some great improvements
on many fronts, we have also seen some significant headwinds in our loss expesiemérg

down our speed of progress.

As mentioned at our half year results presentation, Elephant saw a higher than expected claims
ratio, deteriorating byfour points compared to 2018. The main driver was increased claims
frequency as well as general market inflation, in particular in danséeges and medical costs. As a
consequence, we took a defensive approach towards margins, at the expense of growth. We
responded with numerous initiatives, including significant rate increases, especially towards certain
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lower-performing segments; and @&duction in our acquisition spend. With regard to the first

point, some segments of the book have seen sharp increases with obvious impact on sales and
cancellations while allowing us to have better performance on the loss ratio in the coming years. As
perthe second point, we have been more selective in some distribution channels, favoring some
online advertising and doing less on traditional media, enabling us to be more efficient in our
spend.

The effect of those efforts is visible in our top line nunthevhile vehicles in force remained flat

year on year, our turnovegrewto £233 million (2018: £214 milliorylost of this turnover growth

comes from a high performing renewal book, giving confidence in ourthnng strategy. The lack

of policy growthmant t hat we couldn’t fully | everage eco
result delivered a slightly improved expense ratio.

At the same time, Elephant made some significant progress in a number of areas: we further
developed our sel$ervicing fuktionalities, especially in claims management; we expanded our
acquisition channels to include some agency business; and we deployed some important new
features to our risk selection. We expect that these will ultimately translate into further growth,
within profitable segments, at very good incremental costs. Finally, | am grateful to all Elephant
employees for their high level of commitment in delivering such a high volume of projects, and for
building such a strong foundation for a sustainable #&Tgn business.

International Car Insurance financial performance

£m 2019 2018 2017
Turnover?! 623.6 538.7 449.8
Total premiums writteit 562.6 484.3 401.4
Net insurance premiumevenue 168.6 141.7 123.0
Investment income 15 1.3 0.6
Netinsurance claims (137.2) (104.0) (94.1)
Net insurance expenses (53.0) (55.8) (58.0)
Underwriting result including investment inconié (20.1) (16.8) (28.5)
Net other revenue 19.2 15.7 14.2
International Car Insuranceesult (0.9) (1.2) (14.3)

Key performance indicators

Reported Loss rati® 77% 76% 76%
Expense rati6 37% 40% 45%
Combinedatio™ 114% 116% 121%
Combined ratio, net of Other Reveritie 104% 105% 109%
Vehicles insured at period end 1.42m 1.22m 1.03m

"1 Alternative Performance Measuresefer to the end of this report for definition and explanation.
"2 Loss ratios and expense ratios have been adjusted to remove the impact of reinsurer caps so the

underlying performance of the business is transparent.

B/ 2Y0AYSR NIiGA2 A& OFfOdzZ I GSR 2y | RYeéveheflt@@ludyg S & KI NE
the impact of reinsurer caps. Including the impact of reinsurer caps the reported combined ratio would be
2019: 113%2018: 113%; 2017: 124%.
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Rewenue. Including the impact of reinsurer caps the reported combined ratio, net of Other Revenue would
be 2019: 102% 2018: 102%; 2017: 112%.

Geographical analysis

2019 Spain Italy France us Total
Vehicles insured at period end 0.29 0.69 0.23 0.21 1.42
(m)

Turnover?! (Em) 78.2 204.2 108.1 233.1 623.6
2018 Spain Italy France us Total
Vehicles insured at period end 0.25 0.59 0.17 0.21 1.22
(m)

Turnover?! (Em) 67.6 176.8 80.5 213.8 538.7

"I Alternative Performance Measuresefer to the end ofthis report for definition and explanation

Admiral has four insurance businesses outside the UK: in Spain (Admiral Seguros), Italy (ConTe), the
US (El ephant Auto) and France (L’olivier Assura

The operations continued to grow strongly in 2019, witlstomer numbers increasing by 16% to
1.42 million (2018: 1.22 million) and combined turnover rising by 16% to £623.6 million (2018:
£538.7 million).

The key features of the International Car insurance results are:

1 An aggregate loss of £0.9 million (2018:1Edillion loss) reflecting an improvement in
performance of the European businesses offset by a deterioration in the US business;

T A record profit in the Group’s Italian busin
18%;
1 AdeteriorationinEl ephant Auto’s result (increased | o0c¢

yearon-year)

1 Avrelatively flat combined ratio (net of other revenue) of 104% (2018: 105%) reflecting
reduced acquisition costs, pricing improvements and operational efficiencieslbhasv
positive back year development in Europe offset by a deteriorating loss ratio in Elephant
Auto

1 Continued investment and improvements in technology, people and the customer
experience across all operations

The combined International expense ratiogroved to 37% (2018: 40%) as all businesses grew, and
continued to pursue operational efficiencies, albeit growth was slower in Elephant as prices were
increased in response to the loss ratio pressure.

The European insurance operations in Spain, ItatiyFaance insured 1.21 million vehicles at 31
December 2019 20% higher than a year earlier (31 December 2018: 1.01 million). Turnover was
up 20% at £390.5 million (2018: £324.9 million). The consolidated result of the businesses was a
profit of £8.7 millon (2018: £6.4 million) consisting of continued (and higher) profitability in Italy
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and lower losses in France and Spain. The combined ratio net of other revenue (excluding the
impact of reinsurer caps) improved to 92% from 98% due to the improved clajmesience and
expense ratio.

Elephant insured 212,100 vehicles at the end of 2019, broadly flatgregear though higher
prices meant turnover was up 9% to £233.1 milli
for the period to £9.6 million &m £7.5 million in 2018, as a result of adverse claims development.

Elephant responded with enhancements in underwriting and rate increases resulting in a slowdown
of growth in the second half of 2019. The expense ratio improved slightly through increased
operational efficiency, a focus on customer experience improvements, and enhancement of the
digital online journey. Elephant continues to see improvements in persistency as a result of the
focus on higher retaining customers. The combined ratio net ofotvenue was 118% (115% in
2018).

In 2019, a norcash impairment charge of £65.9 million was recognised in the financial statements

of the parent company with respect to the carry
Auto. This follows a chge tousingshorter-term projections as a result of the adverse loss ratio

experience in 2019. The impairment charge is recognised in the income statement of the parent
company(Refer to note 4 of the Parent Company Financial Statements for further Jetadshas

no i mpact on the Group's consolidated profit fo
position.

Elephant continues to focus on improving fundamentals in 2020 with a focus on loss ratio, expense
efficiencies and continued improvemeintthe customer experience.

International Car Insurance emsurance and reinsurance

In 2019 Admiral retained 35% (Italy), 30% (France and Spain) and 33% (USA) of the underwriting
risk respectively. The arrangements for 2020 will remain the same inftayce and Spain. In the
USA, 50% of the risk will be retained within the Group.

International Car Insurance Regulatory environment

Admiral’s European insurance operations are now
regulator, the DGS. This gh# a result of restructuring completed ahead of Brexit.

The Group’'s US insurer, El ephant I nsurance Comp
Corporation Commi ssion’s Bureau of I nsurance.

Both insurers are required to maintain capital at levels préscriby the regulator and hold a
surplus above these requirements at all times.

Comparison ReviewElena Betés CEOComparisorBusinesses

2019 was a good year for our Comparison businesses. Recognising the benefits of scale in digital
markets, we set up a European corporate structure nafedguin Portalghat gives us not only

the framework to achieve our ambition to lead our key Europeeankets, but also a working
environment to deliver scale beyond these markets. This also allows our seven comparison
platforms to take advantage of operational and technological synergies and share expertise.
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Operationally, each Comparison platform is soted by two technological centres of excellence,
Confused.com in Cardiff and Admiral Technologies in Delhi, allowing for a shared architecture to
facilitate further collaboration and rapid innovation.

Our goal to empower the world to choose better has nbanged. We continue to focus on service
diversification and geographic expansion, driven by a desire to innovate the customer experience
leveraging technology and data.

In Europe, we had a strong year, fuelled by Confused.com and growth at LeLynxraatl eut

businesses improving margins. We successfully diversified our product offering, took some key

verticals inrhouse, delivered new verticals, reinforced our use of data and grew a B2B infrastructure

whilst continuously improving the customerexpem c ees deéai al |y note Rastrea
provide more transparency to Spanish customers with accurate prices.

Preminen, our comparison incubator, continues our path of organic expansion in emerging
markets. In 2019 we welcomed GoSahi.com in Inglitna newest member of owwomparison
family. Rastreator.mn Mexico was awarded the best ecommerce stgntof the year (eawards),
Tamoniki.com in Turkey is in the process of building the panel and lh&own be incorporating a
new Penguin into the colony.

In the USA, we downsized the business to adjust to market conditions, allowing for increased agility
whilst we further develop our customer proposition.

The results are moving in the right directiondal’m confident that we have a strong foundation to
build upon our successes in 2019 into the future.

UK¢[ 2 dzA & S ¢ GEQ{Ckr8used.com
It’s been 18 years since Confused.com was f or me

revenueexceeded £100m for the first time.

We achieved this by standing firmly on the side of our customers and continuing to differentiate
ourselves against the competition. Confused.com is the brand that cuts through the noise and
confusion in order to help ped@ make clear decisions. Our marketing was more effective, and
more focus was placed on the products our customers need and want beyond car insurance.
Making better use of our data has helped our insurance partners deliver the right product to the
right cuistomer for the right price at the right time. All of this and the dedication of the
Confused.com team has resulted in our revenue and profit growing by 19% and 43% year on year,
respectively, and our profit margin improving to over 18% (2018: 15%).

twasi t a year without challenges. The highly com
on marketing channel effectiveness and diversification which in 2019 saw us introduce a successful
B2B offering and drive innovation in the customer experience.

nN2220 we' |l |l continue to make decisions based on
them to choose better.
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Spaing Fernando Summerg CEO, Rastreator
At Rastreator, 2019 has been a year of hard work.

We substantially enhanced the customer experience with our Price Accuracy strategy for insurance,
meaningfully improving our net promoter score. More efficient traffic acquisition led to a 13%
increase in profit.

The proposed joint venture with Acierto diDakley Capital was a focus area for management in
2019, but due to challenges in completing the transaction within a reasonable timeframe related to
the antitrust process and associated costs, the final decision was not to proceed. We delivered
modest evenue growth, mainly due to our mortgage broker and data businesses.

We are optimistic about our future in the context of a large market opportunity. We will be
working on further improving the customer experience, increasing customer support through our
processes and we will continue developing our broker capabifitiest only for finance products

but also for some insurance products.

I would like to thank the fantastic and enthusiastic team who are always hungry for growth and to
improve the experiece for our customers, for all their support in a challenging year. We are
looking forward to the opportunities we see in 2020 and beyond.

Francec Itzal Arbide¢ CEO, LeLynx
2019 was an excellent year full of milestones for LeLynx. We made significaavénmants in our

operational structure and business approach, achieved key product enhancements to better serve
our users and signed new important commercial agreements to improve our offering. As a
result,LeLynx finished 2019 with revenue growth of 19% also improved profitability.

While motor Insurance comparison mainly benefited from a better online user experience which
improved conversion, energy comparison (launched in 2018) saw great operational improvements
and moved past test and learn phaset®come an integrated product for LeLynx in 2019 in line

with our diversification strategy.

Improving the customer experience has been a focus, from improving user pain points and
providing more information, to further improving the journey to allow customi® make the best

choice and receive the best possible service. | am enthusiastic about the evolution of Le Lynx as we
head into 2020 and beyond. We will keep working on wsmtric new projects to improve our

customer experience and to strengthen ouoguct base.

The French market is large and slowly evolvinglaeid/nx is perfectly placed to capture that
opportunity.

USAc Allie Feaking, CEO, Compare.com
2019 was a somewhat volatile year for Compare.céacing stronger headwinds in cost efficient

customer acquisition and scalability in the US auto insurance market, we took action to reduce the
fixed costs of the business to allow a more agile appro&thile we expected to realise some of

the benefits of this decision in 2019, we were also pleasantly surprised by performance
improvements in the second half of the year. Insurers are facing the very same acquisition cost
headwinds, so we madgrogress expading our panel and improving our own revenue potential as
well.
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In 2019, we completed an upgrade to the experience for our customers, improving their journey
whether they are using our website to find information or pursuing our quote journey to view real
time auto insurance pricesNe also continued to invest in our technology platform to enable our
marketing partners to leverage our insurer panel and to enable our insurance partners to leverage
our competitive intelligence data.

I n 2020, wehe competitite erevikopneeist to ease up, but our objectives will shift
slightly from 2019 as we change our marketing approach, messages and campaigns to explore
opportunities for building deeper customer and partner relationships.

| am optimistic about théuture of Compare.com and look forward to 2020 in my new role as CEO.

Emerging Marketg Pedro Taberner@ CEO, Preminen
Preminen had an exciting year of growth and saw the launch of a new comparison business. In

Mexico,Rastreator.mycontinues to see positive signs of growth and we are confident in the
sustainability of the business. All relevant insurers have joined, and the customer proposition is
well accepted. Tamoniki.com in Turkey has been traftinglmost one year, mainly focused on
building the panel with a slow but positive evolution.

A new market approach is being tested in India with the launch of Gosahi.com in February 2019, a
loan comparison portal that enables users to compare online &adulj support during their off

line loan application (a complex process in the market) with the collaboration of relevant financial
brokers.

2020 is expected to be the year of consolidation for Rastreator.mx, growth for Tamoniki.com and
Gosahi.com and talso deliver further geographic expansion. Thanks to the Preminen team for the
hardwork-we ' re | ooking forward to an even better

Comparison financial review

£m 2019 2018 2017
Revenue
Car insurance comparison 119.4 110.1 108.8
Other 52.2 40.9 34.8
Total revenue 171.6 151.0 143.6
Expenses (156.9) (144.4) (138.2)
Profit before tax 14.7 6.6 54
Confused.com profit 20.4 14.3 10.1
Internationalcomparison result (5.7) (7.7) (4.7)
14.7 6.6 54
DNEP dzLJQa & Kdefth®tax2 T LINR F A
Confused.com profit 20.4 14.3 10.1
International comparison result (2.4) (5.5) (3.0)
18.0 8.8 7.1

*1 Alternative Performance Measucgefer to the end of this report for definition and explanation
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Admiralhascomparison businesses in the UK (Confused.com), Spain (Rastreator), France (LeLynx)
andtheU§ Compare. com) . I n addition, Preminen, the (
comparison ventures in new markets, oversees operations in Mexico (Rastreg}pmurkey

(Tamoniki.com) and India (GoSahi.com).

Admiral Group owns 75% of Rastreator, 59% of Compare.com and 50% of Preminen.

In 2019, the Group established a holding company for the European businesses named Penguin
Portals facilitating greater codlboration and sharing of best practices across the businesses to
support customer growth and new product development.

Combined revenue grew by 14% to £171.6 million (2018: £151.0 million) and the businesses made
a combined profit (excluding minority inteset s ’ shares) of £18.0 million

The key features of the Comparison result are:

1 Inthe UK, Confused.com saw market share increases in motor and home insurance
comparison and efficient media spending leading to significantly increasdit gfr620.4
million (2018: £14.3 million)

1 Aloss of £4.3 million (2018: £6.9 million) at Compare.com in the US (Admiral Group share).
Statutory loss before tax was also lower at £7.2 million (2018: £10.0 million). The results
reflect lower sales volumes du a reduced marketing spend and lower fixed costs

1 The continental European comparison businesses reported an increased profit of £3.5
million (2018: £1.4 milliomeflecting improved customer experience through the digital
customer journey and product@rsification, withstrong growth at LeLynx in France

1 Costs for Penguin Portals, and Preminen (which was previously recorded under business
devel opment costs in ‘“Other Group items’) ar
in the ‘other section

The UK comparison market remains very competitive with increasing advertising spend across all
marketing channels, however increases in market share across products and a focus on customer
experience resulted in a 19% increase in turnover for Confusededrhl2.7 million (2018: £95.1
million).

The combined revenue from the European operations increased by 8% to £50.1 million (2018:
£46.3 million)reflecting continued growth in traffic and customer quotes in LeLynx, and improved
customer experience and pduct diversification across both operations.

Compare.com lowered losses to £4.3 million (2018: £6.9 million) as a result of downsizing to allow
for a more agile approach, together with reduced marketing spend and increased efficiencies. A
non-cash impairmant of £2.0 million in the second half of 2019 (full year impairment total of £27.7
million) was recognised by the parent company in respect of its investment in Compare.com. This

i mpairment is in line with the alfgeshu2010.iTken i n Com
impairment charge is recognised in the income statement of the parent company and has no

i mpact on the Group’s consolidated profit for t
position.
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Preminen, the Gr ou pithBapfeepconpiraes io ®xplare coraparisan ineeww
markets overseas. Rastreator.mx in Mexico and Tamoniki.com in Turkey have focused on panel
development and growth, while GoSahi.com in India was launched in 2019.

Comparison Regulatorgnvironment
Confused.com is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) as an insurance intermediary
and is subject to all relevant intermediation rules, including those on solvency capital.

Rastreator and LeLynx are now locally licensed in Spdifr@ance post the finalisation of Brexit
preparations. Further information on the impact of Brexit on our European operations can be
found later in this report

Compare.com ia regulated insurance agency domiciled in Virginia, US, and licensed imealU&
states.

Other Group Items

Other Group items financial review

£m 2019 2018 2017
Share scheme charges (52.7) (49.0) (35.2)
Admiral Loans loss before tax (8.4) (11.8) (4.4)
Other interest and investment return 6.0 2.9 8.4
Businesslevelopment costs (2.1) (4.3) (5.2)
Other central overheads (20.0) (105) (5.1
Finance charges (11.2) (11.3) (11.4)
Other Group items (88.4) (84.0) (52.9)

Share scheme charges relate to the Group’s two
financial statements). Charges increased by £3.7 million in 2019, to £52.7 million reflecting the
improved vesting outcomes resulting from the increased leverofit in 2019 and a higher share

price.

Other interest and investment income increased to £6.0 million in 2019 (2018: £2.9 million). 2019
includes a lower level of unrealised losses relating to forward foreign exchange contracts compared
to 2018 (2019: 8.1 million, 2018: £2.3 million). The higher number in 2019 was also driven by
increased investment return due to the increased cash holding in the parent company.

Business development costs include costs associated with potential new ventures. The costs
associated with Preminen have now been included in the Comparison section, contributing to the
decrease in business development costs in 2019.

Other central overheads of £20.0 million continue to reflect the cost of a number of significant
group projectsln addition, a £6 million cost relating to a eo# cash bonus of £500 per employee,
is included in 2019 (2018: £nil).

Finance charges of £11.2 million (2018: £11.3 million) represent interest on the £200 million
subordinated notes issued in July 201dfé¢r to note 6 to the financial statements).
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Loansg Scott Cargilg CEOAdmiral Financial Services Limited

We can look back at 2019 with pride at what we delivered but knowing there is still much more to
do with an exciting outlook for the coming years.

In just overtwo years Admiral Loans has built up a prime loan book totalling £455 million and is
now a relevant participant in what is a large market in the WKe progress in 2019 was
particularly pleasing, with customer growth of over 78%nportantly, still within risk appetite. We
improved our economics as we started to benefit from economies of scale. Our customers and
employee scores were strong. And the loss of £8 million was in line with expectation.

Turning to 2020, we expect to benefit from a continued market shift to comparison and credit
score marketplaces which now account for over 20% of personal loans distributed in the UK. |
would therefore expect to see continued growth in our loan balancestds the £70800 million
range in the next two years that we identified at the 2019 half year results.

We remain acutely awaref and responsive to the macteconomic backdrop in the UK and
anticipate continued investment in our people, technology, pratdand risk selection capabilities.

Il d | i ke to thank all our staff i n Admir al Loan
£m 2019 2018 2017

Total interest income 30.8 15.0 1.6

Interest expense (9.2) (4.3) (0.4)

Net interest income 21.7 10.7 1.2

Other fee income 1.9 0.4 -

Total income 23.6 11.2 1.2

Expenses (32.0) (22.9) (5.6)

Admiral Loans result (8.4) (11.8) (4.4)

"I Includes £2.8 million intrgroup interest expens@018: £0.7 million; 2017: £nil)

Background
Admiral Loans launched in 2017 and provides unsecured personal loans and car finance products
primarily through the comparison channel.

Loan balances increased during the year to £455 million (2018: £300 million), with just over 5% of
the book being usetbr car loans and over 15% being to existing Admiral insurance customers. The
12-month default experience remained in line with 2018 at around 2% during 2019 and the
business has continued to invest in its operational capabilities and technology.

AdmiralLoans is funded through a combination of internal and external funding. The external
portion funds approximately 60% of the current balance through securitisation. The risk and
reward of the securitised loans is considered to remain with Admiral.

Result

Admiral Loans recorded a ptax loss of £8.4 million in 2019 (decreased from £11.8 million in
2018). The lower loss predominantly reflects the increased interest income in the period, offset to
an extent by increased provisions against the loan book dus growing size.
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Admiral adopted a prudent approach to Brexit and set up new entities in Europe under which the
European operations have traded since 1 January
business is now underwritten by a regulated entity in Spain, AdBusdpe Compania Seguros

(AECS). The Group’'s European comparison busines
been merged into comparison companies established in Spain (Comparaseguros Corredia de

Seguros) and France (LeLynx SAS) respectively.

Brexitcontinues to bring risks to the Group including:

9 The potential for market volatility, and the potential for the uncertainty or the emerging terms
of exit to trigger or exacerbate less favourable economic conditions in the UK and other
countries in which dmiral operates (though it is worth noting that car insurance has tended to
be resilient to economic downturns; and Admiral Loans has adopted a cautious approach to
volumes and credit quality in advance of Brexit);

1 As part of the Own Risk and Solvency Asseme nt ( “ ORSA”) process, the
stress testing exercise for ilssessment aftressed macroeconomic conditions on the UK and
EU insurance and financial service businefisaismay result from Brexjtincluding the
potential increase in claims costs flling a spike in inflation. This includes negative
movement in interest rates, currency, investment yields and inflation which could be
experienced post Brexit. Given the results of the stress testing the Group is comfortable that it
is able to manage thpotential outcomes of such scenarios should they occur;

1 Potential changes to the rules relating to the free movement of people between the UK and
the remaining EU member states. The Group has followed external advice on planning for the
small number of Elditizens working within the UK and UK citizens working in the EU, for the
Group;

1 Potential for impact on the import of car parts with potential impact on claims costs. A working
group is in place to manage and review this risk, with commercial negotatiogoing to
mitigate risks arising from a “no deal” Brexit

9 Potential operational impacts for the provision of Green Cards for UK customers to continue
driving in the EU. Procedures have been established to manage the operational impacts and
ensure suithle communication to customers.

At present, the Group does not foresee a material adverse impact otoddgy operations

(including customers or employees). Whilst the Group is comfortable that it is able to manage

potential outcomes following the reviewof the stress testing noted above, it recognises the
uncertainties that exist post Brexit and the po
position and future dividend payments. Sensitiyv
presened earlier in this report, including a number of specific market risk sensitivities. The cost of

the restructuring activityvasnot material to the Group.

Coronavirus (COVHD9)
Admiral is closely monitoring government updates in relation to the coronsdwming recent
months and is considering any potential impacts on the business.
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The response to date has focussed on the wellbe
ensuring that appropriate pl ans agcgamrcortinuetpl ace t o
service customers.

Ongoing stress testing work, overseen by @Greup RskCommittee, is focused on operational
resilience plans and potential financial impacts. As the situation devédmsral will implement
appropriate business comtility plans to mitigate potential impacts.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Gr oQAprua Repddt Will contain an analysis of the Principal Risks and Uncertainties
identified by the Group’s Enterprise Risk Manag
risks and actions taken to mitigateem.

Audit Tender

Asreferencedinthe@up’ s 2018 Annual Report, in 2018 the
that it had reviewed the arrangements with the current external auditor and had considered

whether it was appropriate to initiate a tender process in order that the current arrangements

could be reviewed against those offered by other audit firms in the market.

The Committee considered the results of various reviews and consultations on the audit services

market as well as other factors relating to a potential tender process and aetthhat it was

appropriate to continue with the planned tender process in 2020. The process will be initiated in

Q2 2020 for an appointment (or reappointment) to be made with effect from 2021, coinciding with

the rotation of the current audit partnerAsthe Group Audit Committee has primary responsibility

for conducting the tender process and making recommendations to the Board, regarding the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, it will lead the proposed tender
process.TheCami tt ee i ntends to engage with the Group’
on the firms that will be invited to participate in the tender and the timetable that has been agreed

for the tender process.

Disclaimer on forwardooking statements

Certain statements made in this announcement are forwdodking statements. Such statements
are based on current expectations and assumptions and are subject to a number of known and
unknown risks and uncertainties that may cause actual events or resutliffér materially from

any expected future events or results expressed or implied in these fodeaking statements.

Persons receiving this announcement should not place undue reliance on felvakidg
statements. Unless otherwise required &gplicable law, regulation or accounting standard, the
Group does not undertake to update or revise any forwkking statements, whether as a result
of new information, future developments or otherwise.
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Consolidated income statement
For the year eded 31 December 2019

Year ended

31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2019 2018
Note £m £m
Insurance premium revenue 2,198.4 2,079.€
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers (1,489.0) (1,407.8
Net insurance premium revenue 5 709.4 671.8
Other revenue 8 469.9 449.2
Profit commission 5 1149 93.2
Interest income 7 30.8 15.0
Interest expense 7 (6.3) (3.6)
Net interest income from loans 245 114
Investment return 6 35.3 36.0
Net revenue 1,3%4.0 1,261.€
Insurance claims and clairhandling expenses 5 (1,568.1) (1,513.8
Insurance claims and claims handling expenses recoverable from reinsurers 1,208.8 1,163.7
Net insurance claims 5 (359.3 (350.1)
Operating expenses and share scheme charges 9 (900.7) (842.8)
Operatingexpenses and share scheme charges recoverable frencbreinsurers 9 441.2 418.8
Net operating expenses and share scheme charges (459.5 (424.0)
Total expenses (818.89 (774.1)
Operating profit 5352 487.5
Finance costs 6 (146) (11.3)
Finance costs recoverable from-@nd reinsurers 6 2.0 —
Net finance costs (126) (11.3)
Profit before tax 5226 476.2
Taxation expense 10 (94.2) (85.7)
Profit after tax 4284 390.5

Profit after tax attributable to:
Equity holders ofhe parent 4324 395.1
Nonrcontrolling interests (NCI) (4.0 (4.6)
4284 390.5

Earnings per share

Basic 12 148.3 137.1p
Diluted 12 148.p 136.8p
Dividends declared and paid (total) 12 367.8 332.7
Dividends declared and paid (p&nare) 12 129.0p 118.0¢
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Year ended
31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2019 2018
£m £m
Profit for the period 428.4 390.5
Other comprehensive income
Items that are ormay be reclassified to profit or loss
Movements in fair value reserve 346 (24.0)
Deferred tax charge in relation to movement in fair value reserve (15) 0.7
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (8.9) 2.2
Movement inhedging reserve (0.9 (0.3)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax 233 (21.4)
Total comprehensive income for the period 4517 369.1
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 456.1 373.7
Non-controlling interests 44 (4.6)
4517 369.1
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Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2019

As at

31 December
2019

31 December
2018

Note £m £m
ASSETS
Property and equipment 11 154.4 28.1
Intangible assets 11 160.3 162.C
Deferred income tax 10 — 0.2
Reinsurance assets 5 2,071.7 1,883.F
Insurance and other receivables 6 1,227.7 1,082.(
Loans and advances to customers 7 455.1 300.2
Financial investments 6 3,2345 2,969.%
Cash anatash equivalents 6 281.7 376.¢
Total assets 7,585.4 6,802.t
EQUITY
Share capital 12 0.3 0.3
Share premium account 13.1 13.1
Other reserves 12 55.1 314
Retained earnings 8409 713.t
Total equity attributable to equity hotlers of the parent 9094 758.2
Non-controlling interests 9.2 12.¢
Total equity 9186 771.1
LIABILITIES
Insurance contradiabilities 5 3,9750 3,736.¢
Subordinated and other financial liabilities 6 530.1 4442
Trade and other payables 6, 11 1,975.¢€ 1,801.F
Lease liabilities 6 137.1 —
Deferred income tax 10 04 —
Current tax liabilities 10 483 49.5
Total liabilities 6,666.€ 6,031.
Total equity and total liabilities 7,585.4 6,802.

The accompanying notes form part of thés®ancial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directoddvbarch 2020 and were

signed on its behalf by:

Geraint Jones
Chief Financial Officer
Admiral Group plc
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Year ended
31
31 December December
2019 2018
Note £m £m

Profit after tax 4284 390.t
Adjustments for norcash items:
— Depreciatiorof property, plant and equipment and rigioff-use assets 11 23.¢ 12.C
—Amortisationand impairmentf intangible assets 11 18.7 15.t
—Movement in provision for loans and advances to customers 7 13.€ 8.S
—Share scheme charges 9 53.4 49.¢
—Accrued interest income from loans and advances to customers (0.6) 1.4
—Investment return 6 (35.3 (36.0
—Finance costs, includingwinding of discounts on lease liabilities 12.€ 14.¢
—Taxation expense 10 94.2 85.7
Change in gross insurance contract liabilities 5 238.€ 422.F
Change in reinsurance assets 5 (1882) (245.9
Change in insurance and other receivables 6,11 (147.0 (145.0
Change igrossloans and advances to customers 7 (168.7) (242.9
Change irtrade and other payables, including tax and social security 11 174.4 159.¢
Cash flows from operating activities, before movements in investments 518.1 488.5
Purchases of financial instruments (2,048.2 (1,830.2
Proceeds on disposal/ maturity fihancial instruments 1,847.¢ 1,573.¢
Interest and investment income received 6 11.€ 8.C
Cash flows from operating activities, net of movements in investments 3294 239.7
Taxation payments (92.8 (55.6
Net cash flow from operatin@ctivities 236.€ 184.1
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, equipment and software 11 (33.6] (23.9
Net cash used in investing activities (33.6, (23.9
Cash flows from financing activities:
Non-controlling interest capital contribution 1.6 19.5
Proceeds on issue of loan backed securities 136.2 168.<
(Repayment)/proceeds from other financial liabilities (50.3 51.¢
Finance costs paid, including interest expense paid on fundirigdos (14.0 (14.7)
Repayment of lease liabilities (10.6, —
Equity dividends paid 12 (367.8 (332.7
Net cash used in financing activities (304.9 (107.3
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (101.9) 52.€
Cash and castquivalents at 1 January 376.¢ 326.¢
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 6.8 (2.9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 6 281.7 376.¢
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Share Foreign Retained Non
Share premium Fair value Hedgint exchange profit controlling Total
capital account  reserve reserve reserve and loss Total interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1January 2018 0.2 13.1 36.4 — 16.C 580.Z 646.1 9.7 655.¢
Initial application of IFRS 9 — — 0.4 — — 0.4 — — —
Adjusted balance at 1 January 201 0.2 13.1 36.¢ — 16.C 579.¢ 646.1 9.7 655.¢
Profit/(loss) for the period — — — — — 395.1 395.1 (4.6 390.t
Other comprehensive income
Movements in fair value reserve — — (240 — — — (240 — (240
Deferred tax charge in relation to
movement in fair value reserve — — 0.7 — — — 0.7 — 0.7
Movement in hedging reserve — — — 0.3 — — (0.3) — (0.3)
Currency translation differences — — — — 2.2 — 2.2 — 2.2
Total comprehensive income for th
period — — (233 (0.3 2.2 395.1  373.% (4.6) 369.1
Transactions with equity holders
Dividends — — — — — (332.7 (332.7 (0.4 (333.1
Share scheme credit — — — — — 56.7 56.7 — 56.7
Deferred tax credit on share schen
credit — — — — — 3.3 3.3 — 3.3
Changes in ownership interests
without a change in control — — — — — 11.2 11.2 8.1 19.c
Totaltransactions with equity
holders — — — — — (261.5 (261.5 7.7 (253.8
As at 31 December 2018 0.3 13.1 13.E (0.3 18.Z 713.8  758.: 12.€ 771.1
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity (continued)
For the year ended 3December 2019

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Share Foreigt Retaine( Non
Share  premiunr  Fair valu Hedgint  exchang profit controlling
capita accoun reserve reserve reserve and los Total interests Total equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2018 0.3 13.1 13t (0.3) 18.2 713.t  758.: 12.€ 771.1
Balance at 1 January 2019 0.3 13.1 13.t (0.3) 18.2 7138 758.Z 12.€ 771.1
Profit/(loss) for the period — — — — — 4324 4324 (4.0 4284
Other comprehensive income
Movements in fair value reserve — — 34.€ — — — 34.€ — 34.€
Deferred tax charge in relation to
movement in fair value reserve — — (15) — — — (1.5) — (1.5
Movement in hedging reserve — — — (0.9) (0.9) — 0.9
Currency translation differences — — — — (85) — (8.5) (0.4 (8.9)
Total comprehensive income for th
period — — 331 (0.9) (85) 4324 4561 4.4 4517
Transactions with equity holders
Dividends — — — — — (367.9 (367.8 — (367.8
Sharescheme credit — — — — — 58.¢ 58.€ — 58.¢
Deferred tax credit on share schen
credit — — — — — 3.2 3.2 — 3.2
Contributions by NCls — — — — — — T 2.2 2.2
Changes in ownership interests
without a change in control — — — — — 0.8 0.8 1.4 (0.6
Totaltransactions with equity
holders — — — — — (305.0 (305.0 0.8 (304.2
As at 31 December 2019 0.3 13.1 466 1.2 9.7 8409 9094 9.2 918.€
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
1. General information

Admir al Group plc is a company incorporated in
Admiral, David Street, Cardiff, CF10 2EH and its shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been preparedagpdoved by the Directors in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union (EU). The Company has elected to prepare its Parent Company financial statements in
accordance wittFinancial Reporting Stanahi01Reduced Disclosure Framew(@fRS 101).

2. Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern agisnsidering this requirement, the
Directors have taken into account the following:

T The Group’s projections for the next 12 mont
forecasts, regulatory capital surpluses and levels and sources of liquidity.

T The risks included on the Group’ dinancialsk r egi s
performance, levels of liquidity and solvency over the next 12 monithés includes
consideration of the principal risks and uncertainties and how these are managed and
mitigated

T The risks on the Group’s tihek Gregipstsebutshats
and capital adequacy.

The Group’'s business activities, together with
performance and position are set out in the Strategic Report. The Strategic Report also includes the
Group s principal rilsskadamndi omgenthai Gtoives hance r e|

statement on the viability of the Group over a three year period.

Following consideration of the above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation thattine Gr
has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future, a period not less than
12 months from the date of this report, and that it is therefore appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Fut her information regarding the Company’s busin
affect its future development, performance and position, is set out in the Strategic Report. Further
information regarding the financial position of the Compaits cash flows, liquidity position and

borrowing facilities are also described in the Strategic Report. In addition, notes 6 and 12 to the
financial statements include the Company’s obje
capital; its finakial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments; and its

exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The accounting policies set out in the notes to the financial statements have, unless otherwise
stated, been applied consistently &l periods presented in these Group financial statements.
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The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of
financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss or as fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group and Company financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling, rounded to the nearest £0.1 million.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights toyariable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to

affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes into
consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The dtiquiglate is the date

on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Losses applieablthe norcontrolling interests in a subsidiary are
allocated to the norcontrolling interests even if doing so causes the+gontrolling interests to

have a deficit balance.

The Group has securitised certain loans and advances to customers by thietrafithe loans to a
speci al purpose entity (“SPE”) controlled by t
issuance of debt by the SPE to investors who gain the security of the underlyihg@ssellateral.

The SPE is fully consolidatetbithe Group financial statements under IFRS 10, as the Group

controls the entity in line with the above definition.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptiomattaffect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the @grcumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.rRdwisio
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is reviewed. To the extent
that a change in an accounting estimate gives rise to changes in assets and liabilities, it is
recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the relaedet or liability in the period of the
change.

Adoption of new and revised standards

The Group has adopted the following IFRSs and interpretations during the year, which have been
issued and endorsed by the EU:

T I'FRS 16 “Leases’

1 Interest RateBenchmark Reform (Amendments tFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)
1 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 202617 Cycle

1 Amendments to IAS 28: Lotgrm Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Other than the impact of IFRS &6d the Amendments to IFRS 9 dR&S 7 in respect of interest
rate benchmark reformfurther detail of which is provided below, the application of these
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amendments has not had a materi al i mpact on the
cashflows.

IFRS 16

During the year the Group baadopted IFRS 1@asesvith a date of initial application of 1 January
20109.

IFRS 16 introduced a single;loaance sheet accounting model for lessees. As a result, the Group,
as a lessee, has recognised rightuse assets representing its right toeuthe underlying assets
and lease liabilities representing its obligations to make lease payments.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 16 the Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach, and as such has not restgigolr year comparatives (which are
presented, as previously reported, under IAS 17 and related interpretations).

The adjustments arising from transition are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January
2019 and are set out below along with detaifshe changes in accounting policies relating to IFRS
16 as applied in the period.

a) Definition of a lease and practical expedients applied

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an arrangement was or contained
a lease under IFRI4Determining Whether an Arrangement contains a Lease Group now
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the new definition of a lease, which
under IFRS 16 is where a contract conveys a right to control the use of an idensitdoas

period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group has also used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

1 the useof a single discount ratfor a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

1 the use of indsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease;

T the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the rigltise assets at the
date of initialapplication.

b) Impact oftransition

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised additionaloigise assets, and additional lease

liabilities in relation to | eases which were pr
LeasesThe liabilities were measured at tpeesent value of the remaining lease payments,
di scounted using the Group’s increment al borrow

average incremental borrowing rate (discount rate) applied is 2.4%.

A reconciliati on oftotheoperating lrasecommitinentaas3é Decembeb i | 1 t i
2018 as disclosed in the Group’s consolidated f
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2019

£m
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 185.9
Impact of extension options exercised before the date of initial applicdtion 12.7
Impact of changes in relation to IFRS 16 treatritent (24.0)
Adjusted operating leaseommitments under IFRS 16 174.6
Impact of discount at the date of initial application (25.4)
Lease liability recognised at 1 January 2019 149.2
Current 10.5
Non-current 138.7

*1 Following a review of lease extension options and variable [pagments during the IFRS tt&nsition process, the
operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 have been amended to reflect the impact of a
different treatment of inflation and VAT within lease agreements, and lease extensions thatbawaed before
the transition date but were not previously disclosed.

The associated righif-use assets have been measured retrospectively, at an amount equal to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued payments relatihgttiease
recognised in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous
lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to the rafhise assets at the date of

initial application.

All rightof-use assets relat® property leases held by the Group.

The following adjustment was recognised on the date of initial application:

1 January

2019

£m

ROU Lease Assets 136.7
Trade and other payablemvoice accrual 1.1
Trade and other payablesent freeaccrual 11.4
Lease Liability (149.2)

For the Group’ s acc ounrof-usanagsetpand Ieaseyiabilitias, seeenbtestéi on t
and 11.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

In September 2019, the IASBued Interest Rate Benchmark ReformAmendments to IFRS 9, IAS

39 and IFRS 7. These amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge
accounting to continue for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before the hedged
itemsor hedging instruments affected by the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a
result of the oi@joing interest rate benchmark reforms.

The amendments are relevant to the Group given that it hedges and applies hedge accounting to
its benchmark interest rate exposure.

The application of the amendments i mpact the Gr

1 The Group has floating rate debt, linked to GBP LIBOR, which it hedges using interest rate
swaps. The amendments permit continuatiorheidge accounting even though there is
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uncertainty about the timing and amount of the hedged cash flows due to the interest rate
benchmark reforms.

1 The Group will retain the cumulative gain or loss in the cash flow hedge reserve for
designated cash flow hges that are subject to benchmark interest rate reforms even
though there is uncertainty arising from the interest rate benchmark reform with respect
to the timing and amount of the cash flows of the hedged items. Should the Group consider
the hedged futue cash flows are no longer expected to occur due to reasons other than
interest rate benchmark reforms, the cumulative gain or loss will be immediately
reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group has chosen to early apply the amendments to IFRS 9 foptréng period ending 31
December 2019, which are mandatory for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020. Adopting these amendments allows the Group to continue hedge accounting during the
period of uncertainty arising from interestteabenchmark reforms.

See note 6i for further details.
Standards endorsed but not yet effective

As at 31 December 2019, the following amendments to standards had been endorsed by the EU
but are not yet effective:

T AmendmentstolAS1andIAS8ef i ni ti on of Material”
1 Amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

No significant impact is expected as a result of adopting the above amendments.
Standards yet to be endorsed by the EU

There are a number of standards, amendneto standards and interpretations that were issued

by 31 December 2019 but have either yet to be endorsed by the EU, or were endorsed shortly after
the year end. The following IFRSs have been issued but have not been applied by the Group in
these finandil statements:

M IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts;
T Amendments to | FRS 3 “Business Combinations?”

IFRS 1¢ Insurance contracts

IFRS 1¥surance Contracisas issued in May 2017, with a revised endorsement draft

incorporating a number of proposed amendments issued in June 2019. The standard will replace
IFRS 4, establishing new principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of Insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The proposed IASB effective date in the
revised exposure draft is 1 January 2022, requiring a transition balance sheet at 1 January 2021.

The Group continues to assess the impact of IFRS 17 on its asstifimancial position, taking into
account the proposals in the revised exposure draft, along with any impacts of the other standards
and amendments which have yet to be endorsed.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncetyain

I'n applying the Group’s accounting policies as
the directors are required to make judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a
significant impact on the amounts recognised and to enaktimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relvant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critic@idgements, apart from those involving estimations (whacé

presented separately below), that the directors
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial
statements.

T Classificati on o fthreins@ers@s reinsanse canteactd: r act s wi

Acontract is required to transfer significant insurance risk in order to be classified as such.
Management reviews all terms and conditions of each sastirance and reinsuran@ntractin

order to be able to makéhis judgementIn particular, all reinsurance contracts (both excess of loss
and guota share contracts) held by the Group have been assessed and it has been concluded that
all contracts transfer significant insurance risk and have therefore been @dsaiitl accounted

for as reinsurance contracts within these financial statements

M Consolidation of the Group’'s speci al pur pose ¢

During 2018 the Group set up an SPE in relation to the Admiral Loans business, whereby the Group
securitises certain loans by the transfer of the loans to the SPE. The securitisation enables a
subsequent issue of debt by the SPE to investors who gaisethaity of the underlying assets as
collateral.

The accounting treatment of the SPE has been assessed and it has been concluded that it should be
fully consolidated into the Group’s financial s
despte not having legal ownership, the Group has control of the SPE, being exposed to the returns

and having the ability to affect those returns through its power over the SPE.

The SPE has therefore been fully csonsolidated i

There arewo further significant accounting estimates within the financial statements that also
require management to apply judgement:

9 Calculation of insurance claims provisions and reinsurance assets:
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The Gr oup pdicyreqriresmanagemgrb set provisions for outstanding claims for the
purpose of the financial statementabove the projected best estimate outcome thosv for
unforeseen adverse claims developmelntthe application of this policy, Management applies
judgement in:

- calculating the best estimate of the gross ultimate total cost of settling claims that have
been incurred prior to the balance sheet date,

- calculating the best estimate of the ngumoportional excess of loss reinsurance recoveries
relating to outstandinglaims

- and determining where, above the projected best estimate outcomes of gross outstanding
claims and reinsurance recoveries, the insurance claims provisions should sit in line with
the Group’'s reserving methodol ogy

Refer to the section on estimatidechniques below, and the analysis of Insurance risk in note 5 to

the financial statements for further detail on
methodology applied during the period and the calculation of the projected best estimate

outcome.

9 Cdculation of expected credit loss provision

The Group is required to calculate an expected
carrying value of the Admirédbans book in line with the requirements of IFRS 9. Due to the

increase in the size die loan book the calculation of the ECL is deemed to be a critical accounting
judgement and includes key sources of estimation uncertainty. Management applies judgement in;

- Determining the appropriate modelling solution for measuring the ECL

- Calibrating and selecting appropriate assumptions

- Setting the criteria for what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk

- ldentification of key scenarios to include and determining the credit loss in these instances.

Refer to the section on estiation techniques below, and the analysis in note 7 to the financial
statements for further detail on the Group’'s EC

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

9 Calculation of insurance claims provisions and reinsurance assets:

Estimation techniques are used in the calculation of the provisions for claims outstanding, which
represent a projection of the ultimatestimated totalcost of settling claims that havaeen
incurredprior to the balance sheet date and remain unsettlédhe balance sheet datelong with

a margin to allow for unforeseen adverse claims development.

The primary areas of estimation uncertainty are as follows:
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Calculation of gross best estimate claims provisions

The key area wherestimationtechniques & usedis inthe ultimate projectedcost of reported
claims which includeshe emergence of claims that occurred prior to the balance sheet date, but
had not been reported at that date.

Independent actuarial advisopoject the best estimate claims reservesing a variety of different
recognised actuarigdrojection techniquegfor example incurred and paid chain ladders, and initial
expectedassumption¥to allow an actuarial assessment of their potential outcontesihcludes
anallowance for unreported claims.

Claims are segmented into groups with similar characteristics and which are expected to develop
and behave similarly, for example bodily injury (attritional and large) and damage claims, with
specific projetion methods selected for each head of damage. Key sources of estimation
uncertainty arise from both the selection of the projection methods and the assumptions made in
setting claims provisions through the review of historical development of underlgisg) reserve
estimates, overlaid with emerging market trends.

Allowance is made for changes or uncertainties which may régulte claim cost inflation to
deviate from historic trendsThese uncertainties include:

- Changes in frequency of bodily injurgiohs
- The effect of inflation on the average cost of bodily injang damagelaims
- The likelihood of bodily injury claims settling as Periodic Payment Orders

- Changes in the regulatory or legal environment that lead to changes in awards for bodily
injury claims and associated legal costs

- Changes to underlying process and methodologies employed in setting case reserve
estimates

Implicit assumptions in the actual projections include average cost per claim and average claim
numbers by accident yeaiuture rates of claims inflation and loss ratios by accident year and
underwriting year. These metrics are reviewed and challenged as part of the process forgnakin
allowance for the uncertainties noted.

Calculation of excess of loss reinsurance recoveries

TheGroup uses excess of loss reinsurance in order to mitigate the impact of large claims. The
reinsurance is noiproportionaland recoveries are made on individual claims above the relevant
thresholds.

As for the underlying gross claims, independent actuarial advisors project the best estimate excess
of loss reinsurance recoveries using a variety of actuarial projection tagsihat focus on both
the ultimate frequency of reported recoveries and the average size of the recovery.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty arise from both the selection of the projection methods and
the assumptions made in calculating the recovetiesugh the review of historical development
of underlying case reserve estimates, overlaid with emerging market trends.

The most significant element of the estimation relates to large bodily injury claineskey

assumption in the calculation of excasfdoss recoveries relates to the numbers of large claims in

the Group’'s core UK Motor insurance business th
means that a small number of additional large claims would potentially result in a matered$ec

in the excess of loss recoveries.

Calculation of the margin held for adverse development

A wide range of factors i ningeeattingthemarginheldabavd ' s r e c
actuarial best estimatesyhich is subject to approval fromh e Gr oup’ s Reserving a
Committees, including:

1 Reserve KPIs such as the level of margin as a percentage of the ultimate reserve.

1 Results of stress testing of key assumptions underpinning key actuarial assumptions within
best estimate reserves.

1 A review of a number of individual and aggregated reserve scenarios which may result in
future adverse variance to the ultimate best estimate reserve.

1 Qualitative assessment of the level of uncertainty and volatility within the reserves and the
change in thaissessment compared to previous periods.

In additionf or t he Group’s cor etheGK o drgernal regesreiriskance busii
distribution is used to determine the approximate confidence level of the recommended booked

reserve position which eables comparison of the reserve strength to previous periods and

demonstration of the compliance with IFRS 4.

For further detail on objectives, policies and procedures for managswgance risk, refer to note
5 of the financial statements.

Future change in claims reserves also impact profit commission income, as the measurement of
this income is dependent on the loss ratio booked in the financial statements, and cash receivable
is dependent on actuarial projections of ultimate loss ratios.

9 Calculation bexpected credit loss provision

The key areas of estimation uncertainty are in the calculation of the Probability of Default (PD) in
the base scenario for stage 1 and 2 assets, and the determination, impact assessment and
weighting of the forwardooking scenarios.

Note 7 provides dethbf the methodology the group has used in the period.

1 Recognition of deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses:
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Management is required to determine the probability of an entity generating future taxable profits

against which to utilise accumulatdosses in determining the recognition and measurement of

deferred tax assets. In making this estimation, management makes an assessment of the reliability

of approved business plan projections using both qualitative and quantitative factors including the

age and status of the business, the Group’'s pre
performance against business plans and the application of a number of stress and sensitivity tests

to the projections.

4. Group consolidation and operating segmis
4a. Accounting policies
(i) Group consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the results and balances of the Company and all
entities controlled by the Company, being its subsidiaries@REtogether referred to as the

Group), for the year ended 31 December 2019 and comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2018. The financial statSPErent s of t he
consolidated in the Group financial statements.

The Company controls 100% of the voting share capital of all its principal subsidiaries, except

Admiral Law Limited, BDE Law Limited (indirect holding), Inspop USA LLC, comparenow.com

Insurance Agency LLC (indirect holding), Rastreator.com Limited, RastCeatparador

Correduria De Seguros S.L.U (indirect holding), Preminen Price Comparison Holdings Limited and

the indirect holdings in Preminen Dragon Price Comparison Limited, Preminen Mexico Sociedad

Anonima de Capital Variable, Preminen Online FiyaggKaF a st 1 r ma Hi zmetl eri Anc
Preminen Sigorta Brokerlik Anonim Sirketi and Preminen Price Comparison India Private Limited.

The SPE is fully consolidated into the Group financial statements under IFRS 10, whereby the Group
has control over the SPE

The Parent Company financial statemeptesent information about the Company as a separate
entity and not about its Group. In accordance with IAS 24, transactions or balances between Group
companies that have been eliminated on consolidation are nobregl as related party

transactions in the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financiaécordso f each of the Group’s entities
currency of the primary economic environmentihw ch t he entity operates (
currency’'). The consolidated finantcheal Gsd @ap 'esnen
presentational currencypunded to the nearest £0.1 million.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into thiectional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabtles denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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Non-monetary items measured at cost are translated at their historic rate andmonetary items
held at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rate on the datéhih fair value was
established.

The financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currency is not pounds sterling are
translated into the Group presentation currency (sterling) as follows:

1 Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet @nésd are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet.

1 Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average monthly exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effeet of
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the date of the transaction).

1 All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and in a
separate component of equity except tioe extent that the translation differences are
attributable to norcontrolling interests.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular operation is recognised in the income statement.

4b. Segrent reporting

The Group has four reportable segments, as described below. These segments represent the
principal split of business that is regularly r
considered to be the Gmakermling with FRS8Oparatingr at i ng de
Segments.

UK Insurance

The segment consists of the underwriting of car insurance, van insurance, household insurance,
travel insurance and other products that supplement these insurance policies within the UK. It also
includes the generation of revenue from additional products and fees from underwriting insurance
in the UK. The Directors consider the results of these activities to be reportable as one segment as
the activities carried out in generating the revenue ar¢ imdlependent of each other and are
performed as one business. This mirrors the approach taken in management reporting.

International Insurance

The segment consists of the underwriting of aad homeinsurance and the generation of

revenue from additiongbroducts and fees from underwriting car insurance outside of the UK. It
specifically covers the Group operations Admir a
Assurancedn France and Elephant Auto in the US. None of these operations are repontahie o

individual basis, based on the threshold requirements in IFRS 8.
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Comparison

The segment relates to the Group’'s comparison b
Spain, LeLynx in France and compare.com in the US. From 2019, the segmiaect.alss the

Preminen entities, which has a head office in Spain and operations in Turkey, Mexico and India (all

of which were previously reported in the ' Other
intermediate holding company of Confused.com, LeLymkRastreator.

Each of the comparison businesses are operating in individual geographical segments but are
grouped into one reporting segment, as none of the operating segments individually meet the
reporting segment threshold requirements of IFRS 8.

Other

The “‘Other’ segment is designed to be comprised
the threshold requirements for individual reporting. It includes the Admiral Loans business and the
Group’s commercial wvan insurance broker, Gladia

Taxesare not allocated across the segments and, as with the corporate activities, are included in
the reconciliation to the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of financial
position.

An analysis of the Gr ouaparemled3eDeecemherc2018,myd resul t s
reportable segmentis shown below. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
materially consistent with those presented in the notes to the financial statements for the Group.

Year ended 31 December 2019

UK International
Insurance Car Insurance  Comparison Other  Eliminations? Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnovei! 2,635.( 623.€ 171.€ 33.2 (19.4, 3,444.1
Net insurance premium revenue 533.2 176.2 T T T 709.4
Other Revenue and profit commissii 407.€ 22.5 171.€ 24.2 (16.6 609.2
Investment return 304 1.5 T T (2.8) 291
Net revenue 9712 200.2 171.€ 24.2 (19.4, 1,347.€
Net insurance claims (215.8 (143.5 T T T (359.3
Expenses (157.5 (57.9 (156.9 (315) 19.4 (384.1)
Segmentprofit/(loss) before tax 597.¢ (0.9 14.7 (7.3 T 6044
Other central revenue and expenses, including share scheme charges (76.6,
Investment and interest income 6.2
Finance cost$ (114)
Consolidated profit before ta¥ 5226
Taxation expense (942)
Consolidated profit after tax 4284
Other segment items:
—Intangible and tangible asset
additions 51.7 34.5 14 08 o} 88.4
—Depreciation and amortisation 57.4 33.1 2.3 12 o] 94.C
*1 Turnover is arlternative Performance Measupresented before intragroup eliminationsand consists of total
premiums written (includingedo nsur er s’ s tevemue. Refea to tthe g@sséryeand note 13 for further

information.
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*2 Eliminations are in respect of theintthr oup trading between the Group’'s compar
insurance entities and intrgroup interest.

*3 £1.2mof IFRS 16 interestx pense (being the Group’'s net share of | FRS 1
Costs in the Income Statement has been reallocated to individual segments within expenses, in line with
management segmental reporting.

*4 Profit before tax above di522.6n is presented on a statutory basis, being 100% of the result for each entity. This
increases to Group' s 52thima.See naiefl3f foraadcandiliatibneof tterUK Indurance, o f £
International Insurance and Comparison turnoved @nofit before taxto the Strategic Report.

Revenue and results for the corresponding reportable segments for the year ended 31 December
2018 are shown below.

Year ended 31 December 2018
International

UK Car
Insurance Insurance Comparison Other4 Elimination# Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnovei! 2,575." 538.7 151.C 17.5 (19.3  3,263.¢
Net insurance premium revenue 523.¢ 147.¢ — — — 671.¢
Other Revenue and profit commission 389.t 18.€ 151.C 13.2 (18.6 553.¢
Investment return 32.2 1.3 — — (0.7 32.¢
Net revenue 945.7% 167.€ 151.C 13.C (19.3 1,258.t
Net insurance claims (2425 (107.6 — — — (350.1
Expenses (146.5 (61.3 (144.4 (26.9 19.5 (359.8
Segment profit/(loss) before tax 556.7 (1.1 6.6 (13.6 — 548.¢
Othercentral revenue and expenses, including share scheme charges (64.2
Investment and interest income 3.1
Finance costs (11.3
Consolidated profit before ta¥ 476.2
Taxation expense (85.7
Consolidated profit after tax 390.t
Other segment items:
—Intangible and tangible asset additions 43.C 20.¢ 2.0 2.2 — 77.C
—Depreciation and amortisation 49.7 26.4 1.1 0.8 — 78.C
*1 Turnover is an Alternative Performance Measpresented before intragroup eliminationsand consists of total
premiums written (includingeco nsur er s’ share) and Ot her Revenue. Refer t

information.

*2 Eliminations are in respect of the intgroup tradingbetwea t he Group’ s compari son and UK
insurance entities.

*3 Profitbefore tax above of £476.2m is presented on a statutory basis, being 100% of the result for each entity. This
increases to Group’'s s ha Seenaiefl3fforaadcandiliatibneof trefUK Indurance, of £47 9.
International Insurance and @wparison turnover angrofit before taxto the Strategic Report.

*4“ Ot her” in 25mb8 emphudéesnfcosts associated with the Prem
centr al revenue and expenses, i e cebultsdof thme dPremiren gperatiesns h e me ¢ h a
have been included in the Comparison segment, as those operations have started to generate revenue in the period.

The prior year segmental analysis has not been restated due to the amounts being immaterial.

Segmentevenues

The UK and International Car Insurance reportable segments derive all insurance premium income
from external policyholders. Revenue within these segments is not derived from an individual
policyholder that represents 10% or moreoft®Ba oup’ s t ot al revenue.
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The total of Comparison revenues from transactions with other reportable segments i £19.
million (2018: £19.3 million) which has been eliminated on consolidation. There are no other
transactions betweemeportable segments.

Revenus from external customers for products and services are consistent with the split of
reportable segment revenues.

Information about geographical locations

All material revenues from external customers, and net assets attributed to a foreign country, are
shown within the International Car Insurance reportable segment shown on the previous pages.
The revenue and results of the international Comparison businesses, Rastreator, LeLynx,
compare.com and the Preminen entities are not yet material enough to be piedas a separate
segment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The identifiable segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

International

UK Car
Insurance Insurance Comparisor Other  Eliminations Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Reportable segment assets 6,282.1 966.7 98.7 610.7 (727.3 7,2309
Reportable segment liabilities 5,232.7 824.4 499 9421 (635.2) 64139
Reportable segment net assets 1,0494 142.3 488 (331.9) (92.1) 817.0
Unallocated assets and liabilities 101.6
Consolidated net assets 9186

Unallocated assets and liabilities consist of other central assets and liabilities, plus deferred and
current corporation tax balances. These assetslatfiilities are not regularly reviewed by the
Board of Directors in the reportable segment format.

There is an asymmetrical allocation of assets and income to the reportable segments, in that the
interest earned on cash and cash equivalent assets deplioyénd UK Insurance, Comparison and
International Car Insurance segments is not allocated in arriving at segment profits. This is
consistent with regular reporting to the Board of Directors.

Eliminations represent intesegment funding, balances includedinsurance and other receivables
and deemed loan receivables in respect of securitised loan receivables.

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

As at 31 December 2018

International

UK Car
Insurance Insurance  Comparisor Other  Eliminations Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Reportable segment assets 5,760.5 831.0 89.2 414.9 (552.9) 6,542.7
Reportable segment liabilities 4,870.2 702.1 35.0 623.4 (452.8) 5,778.C
Reportable segment netssets 890.2 128.9 54.2 (208.5) (100.1) 764.7
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Unallocated assets and liabilities

6.4

Consolidated net assets

771.1
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5. Premium, claims and profit commissions
5a. Accounting policies
(i) Revenue premiums

Premiums relating to insurance contracts are recognised as revenue, egpetted cancellations
andinsurance premium tax, proportionally over the period of cover. Premiums with an inception
date after the end of the period are held in ts&atement of financial position as deferred revenue.
Outstanding collections from policyholderdated to unexpired riskre recognised within
policyholder receivablesA corresponding unearned premium provision is recognised (see note
5a(iii)).

(i) Revenueg profit commission

Under some of the cinsurance and reinsurance contracts under which motor premiums are

shared or ceded, profit commission may be earned on a particular year of account, which is usually
subject to performance criteria such asdastios and expense ratios. The commission is

dependent on the ultimate outcome of any year, with revenue being recognised when loss and
expense ratios used in the preparation of the financial statements move below a contractual
threshold.

Profit commisin receivable from reinsurance contracts is accounted for in line with IFRS 4,
whereas profit commission receivable fromticeurance contracts is in line with IFRS 15. Further
detail of the policy under IFRS 15 is set out in note 8.

(i) Insurance comacts and reinsurance assets
Premiums

The proportion of premium receivable onfiarce policies relating to unexpired risks is reported in
insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets as the unearned premium previgmss and
reinsurers’ share respectively.

Claims

Claims and clais handling expenses are charged as incurred, based on the estimated direct and
indirect costs of settling all liabilities arising on events occurring up to the balance sheet date.

The provision for claims outstanding comprises provisions for the estratst of settling all
claims incurred but unpaid at the balance sheet date, whether reported or not. Anticipated
reinsurance recoveries are disclosed separately as assets.

Whilst the Directors consider that the gross provisions for claims and the refateslirance
recoveries are fairly stated on the basis of the information currently available to them, the ultimate
liability will vary as a result of subsequent information and events and may result in significant
adjustments to the amounts provided.
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Adjustments to the amounts of claims provisions established in prior years are reflected in the
income statement for the period in which the adjustments are made and disclosed separately if
material. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewedarbgul

Provision for unexpired risks is made where necessary for the estimated amount required over and
above unearned premiums (net of deferred acquisition costs) to meet future claims and related
expenses.

Coinsurance

The Group has entered into certaip-insurance contracts under which insurance risks are shared
on a proportional basis, with the @asurer taking a specific percentage of premium written and
being responsible for the same proportion of each claim. Thimsarer therefore takes direct
insurance risk from the policyholder and is subsequently directly responsible to the claimant for its
proportion of the claim. As the contractual liability is several and not joint, neither the premiums
nor claims relating to the emsurance are included e income statement. Under the terms of
these agreements the emsurers reimburse the Group for the same proportionate share of the
costs of acquiring and administering the business.

Reinsuranceassets

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurergder which the Group is compensated for
losses on the insurance contracts issued by the Group are classified as reinsurance contracts. A
contract is only accounted for as a reinsurance contract where there is significant insurance risk
transfer between hhe insured and the insurer.

Reinsurance assets are comprised of balances due from reinsurance companies for ceded insurance
liabilities. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a consistent manner with the
outstanding claims provisions or fled claims associated with the reinsured policies and in

accordance with the relevant reinsurance contract.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a regular basis, and in detail every six
months. If there is objective evidence théiet asset is impaired, then the carrying value will be
written down to its recoverable amount.

On the commutation of reinsurance contracts, the reinsurer is discharged from all obligations
relating to the contract. Reinsurance assets and liabilities regJatrthe commuted contracts are
settled in the period in which the commutation agreement is signed.
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5b. Net insurance premium revenue

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Total insurance premiums written before -msurancé' 2,884.4 2,754.1
Group gross premiums written after ¢osurance 2,273.7 2,166.7
Outwards reinsurance premiums (1,541.9) (1,464.3
Net insurance premiums written 7323 702.4
Change in gross unearned premium provision (75.3) (87.1)
Change in reinsurers’ share of wunearrtr 52.4 56.5
Net insurance premium revenue 709.4 671.8

*1 Alternative Performance Measuregefer to the end of the report for definition and explanation, and to note 13a for
reconciliation to group gross premiums written

The Group’'s share of its insurance business was
Limited, Admir al Il nsurance Company Limited, Adm
Elephant Insurance CompanrAll contracts are short term in duration, lasting for 10 or 12 months.

5c. Profit commission

31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2019 2018
£m £m

Underwriting year (UKMotor only)
2014 and prior 23.8 61.1
2015 24.5 11.0
2016 27.5 22.9
2017 36.4 —
Total UKMotor profit commissiori! 112.2 95.0
Total UKHouseholdand International profit commissioit 2.7 (1.8)
Total profit commission 1149 93.2

*1 Of the total UKmotor profit commission recognisedf £112.2m £95.4m relates t@o-insurance arrangements and
£16.8m to reinsurance arrangements. The WBlKuseholdand International profit commission relatesolely to
reinsurance arrangements.

No profit commission has yet been recognised on the 202819 underwriting years as the
combined ratios calculated from the financial statement loss ratios on these years sit above the
threshold for profit commission recognition.

5d. Reinsurance asseéd insurance contract liabilities
(i) Objectives, policies and procedures for the management of insurance risk

The Group’'s primary business is the issuance of
policyholders to the Group and its-@asurance paners.

Insurance risk involves uncertainty over the occurrence, amount or timing of claims arising on
insurance contracts issued. It is primarily comprised of Reserve risk; the risk that the value of
insurance liabilities established is insufficient taeepthe ultimate cost of claims incurred at the
balance sheet date, and premium risk; the risk that the claims experience on business written but
not earned is higher than allowed for in the premiums charged to policyholders.
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The Board of Directors is qasnsible for the management of insurance risk, although as mentioned
in note 6, it has delegated the detailed oversight of risk management to the Group Risk Committee.

The Group also has a Reserving Committee which comprises senior managers withimtes fina
claims, pricing and actuarial functions. The Reserving Committee primarily recommends the
approach for UK Car Insurance reserving but also reviews the systems and controls in place to
support accurate reserving and material reserving issues suclhriaglied’ayment Order (PPO) and
claims inflation, which represent the key uncertainties in the amount or timing of claims
settlements.

The Board implements certain policies in order to mitigate and control the level of insurance risk
accepted by the Groufd:hese include pricing policies and claims management and administration
processes, in addition to reserving policies andasa reinsurance arrangements as detailed
below.

Reserve Risk

Reserving risk is mitigated through a series of processesa@nmtbls. The key processes are as
follows:

1 Regular management and internal actuarial review of individual and aggregate case claim
reserves, including regular reporting of management information and exception reporting of
significant movements;

1 Regular maagement and internal actuarial review of large claims, including claims settled or
potentially settled by PPOs for which the uncertainty is increased by factors such as the
lifetime of the claimant and movements in the indexation for the cost of future céthe
claimant;

1 Biannual external actuarial review of best estimate claims reserves using a variety of
recognised actuarial techniques;

1 Internal actuarial analysis of reserve uncertainty through qualitative analysis, scenario testing
and a range of sichastic reserving technigues;

1 Ad hoc external reviews of reserving related processes and assumptions;

M Use of a reserving methodol ogy which informs
purposes of the Group’s f i n@&,rriticalatcouatingat e ment s.
judgements and estimates, the methodology determines that reserves should be set above
projected best estimate outcomes to allow for unforeseen adverse claims development.

As noted above, the Group shares a significant amount oihirance business generated with
external underwriters. As well as these proportional arrangements, excess of loss reinsurance
programmes are also purchased to protect the Group against very large individual claims and
catastrophe losses.
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Claims reservig

As previously disclosed, Admiral’'s reserving po
financial statements) is initially to reserve conservatively, above internal and independent

projections of actuarial best estimates. This is designed taem@anargin held in reserves to allow

for unforeseen adverse development in open claims and typically results in Admiral making above
industry average reserve releases. Admiral’'s bo
significant margin above projesdl best estimates of ultimate claims costs.

As at 31 December 2019, the level of relative reserve margin is consistent with that at 31 December
2018, albeit remaining prudent when measured against the internal reserve risk distribution and
other market beachmarks.

As profit commission income is recognised in the income statement in line with loss ratios
accounted for on Admiral’'s own c¢cl aims reserves,
commission income being deferred and recognised over time.

Premium Risk

As noted above, the Group defines Premium risk as the risk that claims cost on business written but
not yet earned is higher than allowed for in the premiums charged to policyholders. This also
includes catastrophe risk; the risk of incurringhéfigant losses as a result of the occurrence of
manmade catastrophe or natural weather events.

Key processes and controls operating to mitigate premium risk are as follows:

1 Experienced and focused senior management and teams in relevant business areas including
pricing and claims management;

1 A datadriven and analytical approach to regular monitoring of claims and underwriting
performance;

1 Capability to identify and resolwnderperformance promptly through changes to key
performance drivers, in particular pricing.

In addition, as mentioned above, excess of l0ss reinsurance programmes are also purchased to
protect the Group against very large individual claims and catastrophe losses.

Other elements of insurance risk include reinsurance risk; the risk of placemieeffiefctive
reinsurance arrangements, or the economic risk of reduced availability-ioscoance and
reinsurance arrangements in future periods.

The Group mitigates these risks by ensuring that it has a diverse range of financially secure
reinsurance prtners, including a lonterm relationship with Munich Re and a number of other
very large reinsurers.

Concentration of insurance risk

The Directors do not believe there are significant concentrations of insurance risk. This is because,
although the Grop has historically written only one significant line of UK insurance business, the
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risks are spread across a large number of people and a wide regional base. The International Car
Insurance, UK Household, UK Travel and UK Van businesses further coitribetdiversification
of the Group’s insurance risk.

(i) Sensitivity of recognised amounts to changes in assumptions
Ogden discount rate

During 2019,dllowing the announcement by the UK Government, the Ogden discount rate which is
used in setting persal injury compensation, was changed to minus 0.25% from the existing minus
0.75% rate that had been in place since February 2017. The change came into effect on 5 August 2019
and the minus 0.25% rate is likely to remain in placeufoto five years.

Theminus 0.25% rate is 25 basis points lower than the assumed rate of 0% that was used in setting
best estimate claims reserves at 31 December 2@Gi8en thestatedtimeframes for the update of
the rate, sensitivities to the Ogden discount rate assumpéiannot presented

Underwriting year loss ratiog UK Car Insurance

The following table sets out the impact on equity and ptax profit or loss at 31 December 2019
that would result from a 1%8%and 5%increase and decrease in the UK Car insurance loss ratios
used for each underwriting year for which material amounts renmitstanding.

Underwriting year

2016 2017 2018 2019
Booked loss ratio 73% 75% 81% 92%
Impact of 1%leterioration in booked loss rati(Em) (14.2) (15.9) (3.8) (2.0
Impact of 3%leterioration in booked loss rati(Em) (42.4) (47.6) (11.3) (5.9
Impact of 5%leterioration in booked loss ratiEm) (69.6) (72.6) (18.9) (9.8)
Impact of 1%mprovement in booked loss rati&m) 14.2 153 9.5 2.0
Impact of3%improvement in booked loss rati@m) 42.6 46.3 33.7 5.9
Impact of5%improvement in booked loss rati@m) 71.0 77.6 61.7 9.8

As above, the impact is stated net of reinsurance and includes the change in net insurance claims
along with the associated profit commission movements that result from changes iratass The
figures are stated net of tax at the current rate.
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(iif) Analysis of recognised amounts

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m

Gross
Claims outstanding 2,.899.4 2,740.5
Unearned premium provision 1,075.€ 995.9
Total gross insurance liabilities 3,9750 3,736.4
Recoverable from reinsurers
Claims outstanding 1,354.2 1,220.1
Unearned premium provision 717.5 663.4
Total reinsurers’ share of insurance | 2,071.7 1,883.
Net
Claims outstandirig 1,545.2 1,520.4
Unearned premium provision 358.1 3325
Total insurance liabilitieg net 1,908.3 1,852.€

*1 Gross claims outstanding at 31 Decem®@t9 is presented before the deduction of salvage and subrogation recoveries
totalling £71.7million (2018: £56.4 million).

*2 Admiral typically commutes quota share reinsurance contracts in its UK Car Insurance busB@ssa?hs following
the start of the underwriting year. After commutation, claims outstanding from these contracts are included in
Admiral’'s net c¢laims outstanding bal ance. Refer to note

The maturity profile of gross insurance liabilities at the end of 2019fisllas/s:

<lyeal 1¢3 years > 3 years

£m £m £m
Claims outstanding 813.7 497.0 1,588.7
Unearned premium provision 1,0756 — —
Total gross insurance liabilities 1,889.3 497.0 1,58.7

The maturity profile of gross insurance liabilities at the end of 2018 was as follows:

<1yeal 1-3 years > 3 year:

£m £m £m

Claims outstanding 739.9 383.7 1,616.€
Unearned premium provision 995.9 — —
Total gross insurance liabilities 1,735.8 383.7 1,616.€
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(iv) Analysis of claims incurred

The following tables illustrate the development of gross and net UK Insurance and International
Insurance claims incurred for the past ten financial periods, including the impacestination of
claims provisions at the end of each financial year.fireetable shows actual gross claims
incurred and the second shows actual net claims incurred. Figures are presented on an
underwriting year basis.

Financial year ended 31 December

Analysis of claims incurred (gross 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
amounts) £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Underwriting year (UK
insurance)
2010 and prior (360.3) (250.1) 4.2 41.7 28.0 10.6 41 43 6.4 16.5
2011 —  (444.3) (329.7) 43.4 51.4 47.9 (0.9) 26.9 21.0 05 (583.9
2012 — —  (463.7) (334.7) 49.8 69.2 8.6 59.9 30.3 85 (572.)
2013 — — — (431.1) (325.5) 53.6 44.4 34.2 35.2 8.2  (581.0)
2014 — — — —  (438.2) (347.1) 25.6 17.1 52.0 15.7  (674.9
2015 — — — — —  (428.4) (411.2) 21.7 53.3 58.0  (706.9
2016 — — — — — — (529.4)  (463.7) 82.1 548 (856.2
2017 — — — — — — —  (691.8) (615.0) 123.1 (1,183.3
2018 — — — — — — — —  (818.8) (546.9) (1,3%5.7)
2019 — — — — — — — — —  (812.4) (812.9
UK insurance gross claims (360.3) (694.4) (789.2) (6807) (634.5) (594.2) (858.8) (9914) (1,153.5) (1,074.0)
incurred
Underwriting year
(International insurance}
2010 and prior (31.8 (29.9) (11.5) (0.1) 5.1 1.3 0.6 0.6 15 05
2011 — (8.7 (42.7) 1.2 5.7 1.7 4.0 1.2 1.3 1.1 (622)
2012 — — (58.0) (53.7) 0.7 4.0 6.0 2.6 2.0 15 (94.9)
2013 — — — (682 (57.8) 4.2 7.7 3.3 5.8 1.3 (108.7)
2014 — — — — (852 (65.5) 4.4 5.8 5.5 20 (133.0
2015 — — — — — (92,6  (101.6) 7.7 3.1 01 (1833
2016 — — — — — — (138.9 (125.3) 11.7 6.9 (245.6)
2017 — — — — — — — (1741  (147.3) 165  (304.9
2018 — — — — — — — — (204.9 (165.7)  (370.6)
2019 — — — — — — — — —  (293.8) (293.9
International insurance (31.8) (65.6) (112.2) (120.8) (131.5) (146.9) (217.8) (278.2) (321.3) (429.9
gross claims incurred
Other gross claims (7.6) 0.0 1.7) (2.2) (7.1) (5.4) (0.1) (3.6) (1.1) —
incurred
Claims handling costs (17.0) (25.9) (26.0) (22.9) (214) (22.6) (27.1) (35.5) (37.9) (64.5
Total gross claims incurrec (416.7) (785.9) (929.1) (8266) (794.5) (769.1) (1,103.8) (1,3087) (1,513.8) (15681)
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Financial year ended 31 December

Analysis of claims incurred (net 2010

2011

2012 2013 2014 2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Total

amounts) £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Underwriting year (UK
insurance)
2010 and prior (184.1) (119.9) 2.8 41.7 28.0 10.6 14.0 11.4 3.6 155
2011 — (203.7) (151.1) 39.7 51.4 47.0 8.4 26.2 16.3 1.7 (164.1)
2012 — —  (196.0) (139.3) 49.8 69.2 19.4 59.1 30.6 49 (102.3)
2013 — — — (184.4) (135.0) 38.4 49.3 36.4 34.7 44  (156.2)
2014 — — — — (187.0) (144.1) (16.4) 25.3 38.4 17.2  (266.6)
2015 — — — — — (182.1) (162.0)  (2.6) 42.6 482 (255.9)
2016 — — — — — —  (219.4) (180.7) 48.1 50.7 (301.3)
2017 — — — — — — — (214.3) (182.9) 778  (3194)
2018 — — — — — — — — (261.0) (165.2) (426.2)
2019 — — — — — — — — — (258.1) (258.1)
UK insurance net claims (184.1) (323.6) (344.3) (242.3) (192.8) (161.00 (306.7) (239.2) (229.6) (202.9)
incurred
Underwriting year
(International insurance)
2010 and prior (12.8) (13.4) (5.7) (0.1) 25 0.6 0.2 0.3 0.7 0.3
2011 — (149 (18.7) 0.4 2.9 0.8 2.0 0.6 0.6 0.4 (25.9
2012 — —  (242) (22.8) (0.8) 2.0 2.2 1.3 1.0 07 (40.6)
2013 — — —  (26.6) (23.5) 17 4.8 0.9 3.0 07  (39.0
2014 — — — —  (316) (23.3) 1.8 1.8 2.2 08 (483
2015 — — — — — (33.4) (39.6) 5.1 1.3 1.3 (65.3
2016 — — — — — — (479 (43.5) 6.3 24 (829
2017 — — — — — — — (60.7) (51.5) 55 (106.7)
2018 — — — — — — — —  (71.2) (58.9  (129.6)
2019 — — — — — — — — — (89.6) (89.6)
International insurance (12.8) (28.3) (48.6) (49.1) (50.5) (51.6) (76.5) (94.2) (107.6) (135.9)
net claims incurred
Other net claims incurred (3.2) 0.0 (0.8) (2.1) (6.9) (5.4) (0.2) (2.6) (1.1) —
Claims handling costs (8.5) (119 (10.8) (9.5) (8.9) (9.4) (11.2) (11.1) (11.8) (20.5)
Total net claims incurred  (208.5) (363.8) (404.5) (303.0) (259.1) (227.4) (394.6) (347.1) (350.1) (359.3)

The table below shows the development of UK I@anrance loss ratios for the pagkfinancial
periods, presented on an underwriting year basis.

Financial year ended 31 December

UK Car Insurance loss ratio development 201« 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Underwriting year (UK Car only)

2014 92Y% 89% 84% 81% 76% 74%
2015 87% 87% 83% 7% 2%
2016 — 88% 84% 7% 73%
2017 — — 87% 83% 75%
2018 — — — 92% 81%
2019 — — — — 92%
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(v) Analysis of claims reserve releases

The following table analyses the impact of movements in prior year claims provisions on a gross
and net basis. Figures are presented on an underwriting year basis.

Financial year ended 31 December

Y 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Gross £m £m £m £m £m £m
Underwriting year (UK Motor insurance)
2014 and prior 148.1 197.7 133.8 158.3 123.6 43.9
2015 — — 1.9 32.0 50.9 47.3
2016 — — — 23.7 70.6 50.6
2017 — — — — 25.4 110.6
2018 — — — — — 83.2
Total gross release (UK Motor Insurance) 148.1 197.7 135.7 214.0 270.5 335.6
Total gross release (UK Household Insurance) — — — 1.6 4.6 8.3
Total gross release (International Insurance) 12.€ 14.0 21.0 23.2 35.2 39.1
Total gross release 160.7 211.7 156.7 238.8 310.3 383.0

Financial yeaended 31 December

Y 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Net £m £m £m £m £m £m
Underwriting year (UK Motor Insurance)
2014 and prior 137.¢ 173.4 74.6 158.3 123.4 43.9
2015 — — 0.8 (2.4) 42.5 47.3
2016 — — — 10.0 47.1 50.6
2017 — — — — 8.0 75.8
2018 — — — — — 25.8
Total net release (UK Motor Insurance) 137.¢ 173.4 75.4 165.9 221.0 243.4
Total net release (UK Household Insurance) — — — 0.5 14 25
Total net release (International Insurance) 6.3 6.5 9.9 9.5 135 14.4
Total net release 143.% 179.9 85.3 175.9 235.9 260.3
Analysis of net releases on UK Motor Insurance:
—Net releases on Admiral net share (motor) 66.€ 84.6 58.3 92.1 111.4 121.7
—Releases on commuted quota share reinsurance
contracts 70.€ 88.8 17.1 73.8 109.6 121.7
Total net release as above 137.2 173.4 75.4 165.9 221.0 243.4

Admiral typically commutes quota share reinsurance contracts in its UK Car Insurance business 24
or 36 months following the start of the underwriting yeafter commutation, any changes in

claims costs on the commuted proportion of the business are reflected within claims costs and are
separately analysed here. Releases on commuted quota share contracts are analysed by
underwriting year as follows:

70



Financial year ended 31 December

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
£m £m £m £m £m
Underwriting year
2014 and prior 88.8 171 89.6 70.6 23.0
2015 — — (15.8) 21.3 27.7
2016 — — — 17.7 29.5
2017 — — — — 415
Total releases on commuted quota shagisurance contrac 88.8 171 73.8 109.6 121.7
Profit commission is analysed in note 5c.
(vi) Reconciliation of movement in claims provision
31 December 2019
Gross  Reinsuranci Net
£m £m £m
Claims provision at start of period 2,7405 (1,220.1, 11,5204
Claims incurred (excluding releases) 1,886.6 (1,287.6) 599.0
Reserve releases (383.0) 122.7 (260.3)
Movement in claims provision due to commutation — 2571 2571
Claims paid and other movements (1,3447) 7737  (5710)
Claimsprovision at end of period 2899.4 (1,3542) 11,5452
31 December 2018
Gross  Reinsuranc Net
£m £m £m
Claims provision at start of period 2,403.2 (1,028.8 1,374.4
Claims incurred (excluding releases) 1,786.2 (1,212.0 574.2
Reserve releases (310.3) 74.4 (235.9)
Movement in claims provision due to commutation — 310.4 310.4
Claims paid and other movements (1,138.6 635.9 (502.7)
Claims provision at end of period 2,740t (1,220.1 1,520.4
(viii) Reconciliation of movement in netearned premium provision
31 December 2019
Gross Reinsuranci Net
£m £m £m
Unearned premium provision at start of period 995.9 (663.4) 3325
Written in the period 2,273.7 (1,541.4) 7323
Earned in the period (2,194.0) 1,487.3 (706.7)
Unearned premium provision at end of period 1,075.6 (7175) 358.1
31 December 2018
Gross Reinsuranci Net
£m £m £m
Unearned premium provision at start of period 910.7 (608.8) 301.9
Written in the period 2,166.7 (1,464.3 7024
Earned in theperiod (2,081.5; 1,409.7 (671.8)
Unearned premium provision at end of period 995.9 (663.4) 3325
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6. Investment Income and costs

6a. Accounting policies

i) Financial assets

Classification and measurement

The classification and subsequeneéasurement of the financial asset under IFRS 9 depends on:
@ the Group’'s business model for managing t
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Based on these factors, the financial asselassified into one of the following categories:

1 Amortised cost- assets which are held in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows which are solely
payments of principal and interesin the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), where
the asset is not designated as FVTPL.

For the Group, these include deposits with credit institutions, cash and cash equivalents, insurance
receivables, trade and other receivables and loans and advancestomers.

The interest income generated from these asset
exception of Loans and advances to customer, wh
i ncome’

Impairment is recognised on these assesing the expected credit loss model

9 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVO&dkets which are held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell the asset, where the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise to cash flows vWdh are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (SPPI), where the asset is not designated as FVTPL.

For the Group, these assets include government gilts and debt securities.

In addition, IFRS 9 allows an irrevocaldeton at initial recognition to designate equity investments
at FVOCI that otherwise would be held at FVTPL, provided these are not held for trading. The Group
has made this election for certain equity investments.

Movements in the carrying amount arekian through OCI, with the exception of recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains or losses which are
recognised in profit or loss.

9 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTRIassets which do not meet the crifarfor amortised
cost or FVOCI, or which are designated as FVTPL.

For the Group these assets include investment liquidity funds investing in short duration assets and
derivative financial instruments.
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A gain or loss on a debt instrument measured{PL which is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or |l oss and presented with

Impairment

Theexpected credit loss model is used to calculate any impairment to be recognised for all assets
measured at amortised cost, as well fisancial investmentameasured at FVOCI. The general
approach, which utilises the thregage model, is used for Loansdaadvances to customers (see
note 7) whilst impairment for the remaining assets is measured using the simplified approach.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from that asset have expired,
or when the Grop transfers the asset and all the attached substantial risks and rewards relating to
the asset to a third party.

i) Financial Liabilities
Classification and subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is at amortised gsisty the effective interest
method. Movements in the amortised cost are recognised through the income statement.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under that liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

iii) Investment return and finance costs

Investment return from financial assets comprises distributions as well as net realised and
unrealised gains on financial assets classified as FVTPL, interest income and net realised gains, net
of impairment losses, frorfinancial assets classified as FVOCI, and interest income on holdings in
deposits with credit institutions (held at amortised cost).

Finance costs from financial liabilities comprise interest expense on subordinated notes, loan
backed securitiexreditfacilitiesand lease liabilitiescalculated using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset or
liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and allo¢hgesiterest income or
expense over the expected life of the asset or liability.
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6b. Investment return

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m
Investment return
On assets classified as FVTPL 114 6.3
Onassetsclassified as FVOE} 34.5 27.9
Onassets classified asnortised costd 16 3.0
Net unrealised losses
Unrealised losses on forward contracts 0. (2.3)
Notional accrwual for reinsurers’ shar (12.9) —
Interest receivable on cash and cash equivalénts 0.8 1.1
Total investment and interest incomé& 35.3 36.0

*1 Interest received during the year was E6million (2018: £8.0 million)
*2 Total investment return exclude28 million of intragroup interest (2018: £0.7 million)
*3 Realised gins/losses on sales of debt securities classified as FVOCI are immaterial

6c. Finance costs

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Interest payable on subordinated loan notes 114 11.3
Interest payable on lease liabilities 3.2 —
Interest recoverable from co and4asurers (2.0) —
Total finance costs 12.6 11.3

*1 Interest paid during the year wag £0 million (2018: £11.0 million)

Finance costs represent intergsayable on the £200.0 million (2018: £200.0 million) subordinated
notes and other financial liabilities.

Interest payable on lease liabilities represents the unwinding of the discount on lease liabilities
under IFRS 16 and does not result in a cash payrremther detail on the transition to IFRS 16 is
included in note 2.

6d. Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’'s financi al assets and liabiliti
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31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 201¢
£m £m
Financial investmentsneasured at FVTPL
Money market and other similar funds 1,160.2 1,301.:
Financial investments classified as FVOCI
Debt securities 1,776.3 1,389.¢
Government gilts 174.0 170.¢
1,950.3 1,560.¢
Equity investment¢designated FVOCI) 75 7.8
1,957.8 1,568.¢
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Deposits with credit institutions 116.5 100.C
Total financial investments 3,2345 2,969.%
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Insurance receivables 948.9 842.2
Trade and other receivables 278.8 239.7
Insurance and other receivables 1,227.7 1,082.(
Loans and advances to customers (note 7) 455.1 300.2
Cash and cash equivalents 281.7 376.¢
Total financialassets 5,199.0 4,728."
Financial liabilities
Subordinated notes 2042 204.1
Loan backed securities 304.5 168.c
Other borrowings 20.0 715
Derivative financial instruments 14 0.2
Subordinated and other financial liabilities 530.1 444.;
Tradeand other payable€3 1,975.9 1,801.
Lease liabiliti€d 137.1 —
Total financial liabilities 2,643.1 2,245.%

*1 Trade and other payables total balance of #59m (2018: £1,801.5m) abowecludes f1,472.1m (2018: £1,349.6m)
in relation to tax andocial security, deferred inconand reinsurer balances that are outside the scope of IFRS 9.

*2 Lease liabilities of £149.2m were recognised on transition on 1 January 2019. The movement to the balance
presented of 37.1mreflects cash payments in the ped offset by the lease interest expense recognised in the
income statement.
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The maturity profile of financial assets and liabilitiegler the scope of IFRIS& 9 at 31 December
2019 is as follows:

On demanc <lyear Betweenl and 2 year: > 2 years
£m £m £m £m
Financial investments
Money market funds and derivative financial instrumel — 1,145.1 1.0 140
Deposits with credit institutions — 96.5 20.0 —
Debt securities — 462.6 196.6 1,117.1
Government gilts — — — 174.0
Total financial investments — 1,704.2 217.6 1,3051
Trade and other receivables — 278.8 — —
Loans and advances to customers — 128.6 134.2 192.3
Cash and cash equivalents 281.7 — — —
Total financial assets 281.7 2,111.6 351.8 1,497.4
Financial liabilities
Subordinated notes — 11.0 11.0 2330
Loan backed securities — 102.3 90.9 125.7
Other borrowings — 203 — —
Trade and other payablés — 1,725.1 — —
Total financial liabilities T 1,858.7 101.9 358.7

*1 Of the £1725.1mheld within trade and other payableg1,4421m do notmeet the definition of a financial liability but
fall within the scope of IFRShénce are included in the above maturity profile.

The maturity profile of financial assets and liabilitiggler the scope of IFRS831 December
2018 was as follows:

On demanc < lyeal Betweenl and 2 year > 2 year:
£m £m £m £m
Financial investments
Money market funds and derivatiismancial instruments — 1,296.¢ 2.1 2.1
Deposits with credit institutions — 60.0 40.0 —
Debt securities — 295.3 210.7 883.9
Government gilts — — — 170.9
Total financial investments — 1652.2 252.8 1,056.€
Trade and other receivables — 239.7 — —
Loans and advances to customers — 102.1 91.2 106.9
Cash and cash equivalents 376.8 — — —
Total financial assets 376.8 1,9940 344.0 1,163.€
Financial liabilities
Subordinated notes — 4.9 — 199.2
Loan backed securities — 60.2 53.0 55.1
Other borrowings — 71.8 — —
Trade and other payables — 1,801.5 — —
Total financial liabilities — 1,9384 53.0 254.3

*1 Of the £1,801.5m held within trade and other payables, £1,275.9m do not meet the definition of a financial liability but
fall within the scope of IFRS 4 hence are included in the above maturity profile.
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6e. Financial Investments

FVTPI FVOC Amortised Cos Total

£m £m £m £m

AAA AA 414.5 861.0 68.7 1,344.;
A 4412 733.6 3085 1,483.:
BBB 28.5 304.3 20.2 353.(
Sub BBB 13.3 — 0.1 13.4
Not rated™ 262.7 58.9 0.7 323
Total financial investments 1,1602 1,957.8 398.2 3,516.2

*1 The majority (£2344m) of the unrated exposure stems fromoney market funds, which are rated AAA, but the
underlying securities are not. These specific exposures apeinghase agreements. The remaining unrated exposure
is a mixture of private delE77.2m) and other holdings (£10.7m)

Classification and Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial investments at fair value plus or minus, in the
case of financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit and losstlgire

attributable transaction costs. Transaction costs of financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit and loss are expensed to the profit and loss when incurred.

Money market funds and derivative financial instruments are measured at FVfi@tegulatory
capital within the Group is used to invest in these instruments in addition to any surplus funds
which may be held. Buying and selling activity occurs depending on timing of different cashflows.

Debtsecurities are measured at FVOCI anduwh fall under the scope of the ECL model.
These assets are held to match policyholder liabilities or interest on debt liabilitissld
before maturity, gains or losses on these assets impact the P&L.

Private Equity investments have bedesignated as being reported through FVG@ to these
beinglong term, strategic investment®ividends are recognised in the Income Statement whilst a
change in fair values will be reflected in OCI. Given the immaterial amoubinfllion) of these
investments, detailed levelling disclosures have not been provided.

Impairment

All financial investments held at FVOCI and at amortised cost have been assessed for impairment
using the expected credit loss model under IFRS 9. The assessment has beenseddm lihe
credit ratings of the entities and externally available credit loss ratios.

The fair value of debt securities is calculated with reference to quoted market valuations and as
such take into account future expected credit losses. As a resullppainment provision is
requiredagainst the book valueThe calculated impairment loss within the fair value is recognised
through the Income Statement whilst fair value movements are recognised in other comprehensive
income.Deposits are held with welated institutions and are held at book value, with impairment
calculated in a similar manner to debt securities.

All assets that are purchased, which require a calculation of impairment, are considered of
investment grade or above (i.e. BBB rated or higher), as defined by an external credit rating agency
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or an assessment from Admi reditlrating ofalkassets iswregllarlp s s e t

monitored. As at the yeaend reporting datethe vast majority ofinancial assets are of
investment grade and considered low risk under IFRS 9. These therefore remain within stage 1 and
a 12 month expected loss ised to calculate the impairment provision required.

Any assets downgraded below BB considered bthe Group to have significantly increased in
credit risk since inception, and therefore enter stage 2 under IFRS9.

The impairment provision at december 2019 isE9 million(£0.5 million at 31 December
2018). Given there is no material change in the credit quality or type of financial assets in
the year and the movement in provision is immaterial, no further disclosure has been made.

Fair valuemeasurement

IFRS 13 requires assets and liabilities that are held at fair value to be classified according to a
hierarchy which reflects the observability of significant market inputs, based on three.levels

The table below shows how the financial assetkltat fair value have been measured using the fair
value hierarchy:

31 December 201 31 December 201

FVTPI FvoC FVTP FvOC

£m £m £m £m

Level One (goted prices in active markets) 1,602 1,950.3 1,301.. 1,560.¢

Level Twoyse ofobservable inputs) — — — —
Level Threeuse of significant unobservable

inputs)y?! — 75 — 7.8

Total 11602 1957.8 1,301.0 1,568.¢

*1 No further information is provided due to the immateriality of the balance.

Deposits are held with well ragenstitutions; as such the approximate fair value is the book value of
the investments as impairment of the capital is not expected.

6f. Cash andash equivalents

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Cash at bank and in haid 281.7 376.0
Shortterm deposits T 0.8
Total cash and cash equivalents 281.7 376.8

*1 £4.4m of cash is rinfpnced via a bank guarantee. See note 11f for further details.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short
term deposits with original maturities of three months or less. Alhcaisd cash equivalents are
measured at amortised cost.

An assessment has been completed for impairment purpoles.credit rating of all assets is
regularly monitored. As at the year end reporting date all financial assets are of investment grade
or above (i.e. BBB rated or higher) and considered low risk under IFRS 9. These therefore remain
within stage 1 and a 12 month expected loss is used to calculate the impairment provision
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required. @ven the shortterm duration of these assets and low risk oésie assets, no
impairment provision has been recognised.

For cash at bank and cash deposits and other receivables, the fair value approximates to the book
value due to their short maturity.

6g. Other Assets

Insurance and other receivables

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m
Insurance receivablés 948.9 842.3
Trade and other receivables 262.8 227.0
Prepayments and accrued income 16.0 12.7
Total insurance and other receivables 1,227.7 1,082.C

*1 Insurance receivables at Fdecember 2019 include7a.7 million in respect of salvage and subrogation recoveries
(2018: £59.3 million).

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are measured at amortised cost. Given the-tehortduration of these
assets no impairmentrovision has been recognised.

Trade and other receivables

ClassificationTrade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost, being made up of
multiple types of receivable balances.

Impairment.Where a provision is required for these receivabiess calculated in line with the
simplified method for trade receivables per IFRS 9, whereby lifetime expected credit losses are
recognised irrelevant of the credit risk. In this case, the provision is based on a combination of

(@ aged debtor analysis
(i) historic experience of writeoffs for each receivable,
(iii) any specific indicators of credit deterioration observed, and
(iv) management judgement
The level of provision is immaterial.

The amortised cost carrying amouot receivables is a reasonable approximation of fair
value.

Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract assets from contracts with
customers. Both balances are included in Trade and other receivables.
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31 Deember 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m
Receivables 40.3 325
Contract assets 24.8 23.4

The contract asset relates to the Groupaws ri gh
companies on behalf of clients which is ongoing or where the final fee has not yet been billed. The
contract asset is transferred to trade receivables onceféigehas been billed.

Significant changes in the contract asset balance during the period are as follows:

31 Decembe
2019

Contract asset balance £m
At 1 January 2019 23.4
Revenue recognised 34.8
Transferred to trade receivables (31.8)
Write-offs (1.6)
At 31 December 2019 24.8

The amount of revenue recognised in 2019 from performance obligations satisfied (or partially
satisfied) in previous periods is £nil (2018: £nil).

6h. Financial liabilities
Subordinated notes

Financial liabilities are inclusive of £200.0 million subordinated notes issued on 25 July 2014 at a
fixed rate of 5.5% with a redemption date of 25 July 2024.

The notes are unsecured subordinated obligations of the Group and rank pari passu without any
preference among themselves. In the event of a wineipgor bankruptcy, they are to be repaid
only after the claims of all other creditors have been met.

There have been no defaults on any of the notes during the year. The Group has the option to
defer interest payments on the notes but to date has not exercised this right.

The fair value of subordinated notes (level one valuation) at 31 December 2022514 fillion
(2018: £211.3 million).

Other borrowings

The Group holda credit facility of £20.0 million which expires in September 2020. £20.0 million
was drawn under this agreement as at 31 December 2T1® groupalsohold a revolving credit
facility of £200.0 million whichxpiresin Decembef020. As at 31December 209, £nil was drawa
down on this facility (201&71.5 millio). Amounts drawrunder their respectiveagreemens are
shown within other borrowings in the table above.
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Loan backed securities

During 2018 an asset backed senior loan note fa@fit§300.0 million was established in
relation to the AdmiraLoans businesswhich increased to £400.0 million during 2Q%8e
note 3 for details of the accounting treatment of this SPA9 at the year end304.5million
(2018: £168.3 million) of this facility had beetilised.

Lease liabilities

The Group leases various properties, with rental contracts typically for fixed periods of 5 to 25
years although these may have extension options. Lease terms are rtedatiaan individual

basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Under IAS 17, all Group leases were classienp@rating leases. Operating lease payments,
including the effects of any lease incentives, were recognised in the income statement on a
straightline basis over the lease term.

Under IFRS 16,dm 1 January 2019, for each lease a rghtise asset andarresponding lease
liability are recognised at the date at which the leased asset becomes available for use by the
Group.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of remaining lease payments, which
include the following:

1 fixed paymens (including irsubstance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

i variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate

1 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot

be determined, the Group’s increment al borrowin
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain aetasfsa similar value in a similar

economic environment, with similar terms and conditions. Generally, the Group uses its

incremental borrowingate as the discount rate.

Subsequently, lease payments are allocated to the lease liability, split betweeymepts of
principal and interest. A finance cost is charged to the profit and loss so as to produce a constant
period rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability

6i. Objectives, policies and procedures for managing financial assetdiabdities

The Group's activities expose it primarily to f
risk and foreign exchange risk. The Board of Directors has delegated the task of supervising risk
management and internal control to ¢hGroup Risk Committee. There is also an Investment

Committee that makes recommendations to tBeoup and subsidiarfgoards on investment

strategy.
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There are several key elements to the risk management environment throughout the Group. These
are detailedin full in the Corporate Governance Statement. Specific considerations for the risks
arising from financial assets and liabilities are detailed below.

Credit risk

The Group defines credit risk as the risk of loss if another party fails to perform its obligations. The
key areas of exposure to credit risk for the Group result through its reinsurance programme,
investments, bank deposits, loans and advances to custe@ed policyholder receivables.

The Directors consideredit quality anccounterparty exposure frequently and in significant detail.

The Directors consider that the policies and procedures in place to manage credit exposure

continue to be appropriatefor he Group’ s ri sk appetite and, duri
material credit losses have been experienced by the Group.

The impact on equity of a 100 basis point increase in credit spreads at the relevant valuation date,
is as follows:

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m
Equity 54.8 42.3

Financial Investmentand cash

Credit and counterparty risk imanaged by the Group by investing in high quality money market
funds, and setting suitable parameters for asset managers to adhere to when purchasing debt
securitiesCash balances and deposits are placed only with highly rated credit institutions. The
detailed holdings are reviewed regularly by the Investment Committee.

Invested Assets
As noted above, the Group primarily invests the following asset types:

1 Investment funds and cash plus liquidity funds, which in turn invest in a mixture ofciexd
fixed and variable rate securities, such as cash deposits, certificates of deposits, floating rate
notes and other commercial paper.

1 Deposits with well rated institutions are short in duration (one to five years). These are
classified as held at amortisedstoTherefore neither the carrying value of the asset, nor the
interest return will be impacted by fluctuations in interest rates.

1 Debt securities are held within two segregated mandates. The guidelines of the investments
retain a similar credit quality dhe investment funds (all holdings are investment grade). The
duration of the securities is relatively shdd three years)and similar to the duration of the
on book claims liabilities (the average duration is three years).

1 UK Governmenbondswhichare classifiedaisFVOCI.
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Reinsurance assets

To mitigate the risk arising from exposure to reinsurers (in the form of reinsurance recoveries and
profit commissions), the Group only conducts business with companies of appropriate financial
strength rating. In addition, many reinsurance contracts are operated on a funds withheld basis,
which substantially reduces credit risk, as the Group withholds the cash received from
policyholders as collateral.

Loans and Advances to Customers

The risk appetite fothe lending business is set with respect to anticipated loan losses over a 12
month period. Management has defined an amber and a red loan loss limit, representing points at
which action is required. These limits have been defined by management to tb#elotisiness
maturity, the business ambitions and the economic climate. Risk appetite is assessed at least
annually, while the limits are continuously monitored.

Insurance assets

A further principal form of credit risk is in respect of amounts due frontpdlders, largely due

to the potential for default by instalment payers. The impact of this is mitigated by the large
customer base and low average level of balance recoverable. There is also mitigation by the
operation of numerous higtand lowlevel cantrols in this area, including payment on policy
acceptance as opposed to inception and automated cancellation procedures for policies in default.

The amount of bad del®xpense relating to policyholder debt charged to the income statement in
2019 and 2018&s insignificant.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables and other debtors are also subject to credit risk, although this is mitigated by a
review of the credit worthiness of all counterparties prior to them being accepted.

Other Assets

Allother assets are assessed as low credit risk under IFRS 9, with no significant amounts past due or
impaired.

The Group’'s credit risk exposure to assets with

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

Rating £m £m

Financial institutions- Credit institutions AAA 245.1 164.3
Financial institutions- Credit institutions AA 925.2 942.1
Financial institutions- Credit institutions A 1,483.2 1,501.2
Financial institutions- Credit institutions BBB and beloy 688.7 567.9
UK Government gilts AA 174.0 170.9
Reinsurers AA 688.9 458.5
Reinsurers A 160.6 303.6
Reinsurers BBE 1.7 —
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The Group’'s maxi mum exposur e t@33miliend2018: ri sk at
£4,507.4 million), being the carrying value of financial investments and cash, the carrying value of
loans and advances to customers, and the excess of reinsurance assets over amounts owed to
reinsurers under funds withheld arrangements. Tm@up does not use credit derivatives or similar
instruments to mitigate exposure.

£13.8 million (2018: £9.2 million) was charged to the income statement in respeubwément on
the ECL dbans and advances to customers. Further details are providedte 7b.

There were no further significant financial assets that were past due at the close of either 2019 or
2018.

Interest rate risk

The Group considers interest rate risk to be the risk that unfavourable movements in interest rates
could adversely impact on the capital values of financial assets and liabilities.

The impact on equity of 80 basis point increase in interest rates aethelevant valuation date, is
as follows:

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m
Equity 354 29.9

Loans and Advances to customers

The Group’'s Loan portf ol iwhich asefundeddtafloatipg varidblef i x e d
rate. The Group has an interest rate swap arrangemtrd risk management objective whichis

to eliminate the majority of thenterest rate risk from he Loans portfolio. This relates to the
difference between fixed rate on loans written and floating variable rate on funding.

HedgeAccounting

Hedge accounting is applied when the criteria specified in IKREl@ding amendments, as set out
above)are met. In line with IFRS9, the gain or loss on the hedged position as at the balance sheet
date is recognised through Other Comprehensive Income.

This results in a hedging reserve at 31 December 2019 (and at 31 December 2018) in relation to the
interest rate swap.

The Group is exposed to GBP LIBOR within its hedge accounting relationships, with the hedged

item including issued GBP LIBOR floatingega de bt as discl osed in “Hedge
addition, the Group has a number of financial assets and liabilities with interest rates linked to GBP

LIBOR that are not included in hedge accounting relationsBipslarly, there are exposures to

non GBP interest rates.

The Group is closely monitoring the market and the output from the various industry working
groups managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates.
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In response to the announcements, the Group has set up an IBOR transdjeatprhich includes
input from a number of areas of the business including risk management, investments, legal,

accounting and systems. The project is under the governance of the Investment Committee, and

ultimately the Chief Financial Officer wisa menber ofthe Board. The aim of the programme is

to understand where IBOR exposures are within the business and prepare and deliver on an action

plan to enable a smooth transition to alternative benchmark rates. The Gnbepds to have its
transition and &ll-back plans in place by the end of 2020.

For the

Group’ s

| oan

backed

securiti

e s

and

agreements) the Group has started discussions with respective counterparties to amend the
reference benchmark interest ratghichwill change to SONIA. The Groumaito finalise this
amendment in the second half of 2020.

For the

Group’ s

RCF

and

ot her

debt |

nked

the Group will begin a dialogue in 2020pmpose amendments to the fatlack provisions to move
from GBPLIBOR to SONIA.

Below are details of the hedging instents and hedged items in scope of the IFRS 9 amendments

t

rel a

(0]

due to benchmark interest rate reform, by hedge type. The terms of the hedged items listed match
those of the corresponding hedging instruments.

Hedge type
Cash flow

hedge

Cash flow
hedge

Instrument type

Paysterling fixedyeceive
1-month GBP LIBOR

interest rate swap

Paysterling fixedyeceive
1-month GBP LIBOR

interest rate swap

Maturing in

2023

2024

Nominal

£146.3m

£274.7m

LIBOR

Portfolio cash
flow hedges of
interest rate
risk on GBP

LIBOR

Hedyed item
Portfolio cash
flow hedges of
interest rate
risk on GBP

The Group will continue to apply the amendments to IFRS 9 until the uncertainty arising from the
interest rate benchmark reforms witlespect to the timing and the amount of the underlying cash

flows that the Group is exposed to ends.

Due to the immateriality of the transaction and balance, no further disclosure is made.

Financial Liabilities

The Group also holds a financial liability in the form of £200.0 million of subordinated notes with a

ten year maturity and fixed rate coupon of 5.5%. This liability is valued at amortised cost and
therefore neither the carrying value of the deposits, tioe interest payable, will be impacted by
fluctuations in interest rates.
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Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group does not have sufficient, available financial
resources to enable it to meet its obligations as they fall dueaoronly secure them at excessive
cost.

The Group is strongly caglenerative due to the large proportion of revenue arising from-non
underwriting activity. Further, as noted above, a significant portion of insurance funds are invested
in investment fundsvith same day liquidity, meaning that a large proportion of the Group cash and
investments is immediately available.

A breakdown of the Group’s other borrowings, tr
11.

The subordinated notesave amaturity date of July 2024whereas all trade and other payables
will mature within three to six months of the balance sheet date. (Refer to the maturity profile at
the start of this note for further detail.)

I n practice, the Gr oudlowstobeiconsistentavithshisenatpity ct act ua
profile except for amounts owed to dasurers and reinsurers. Of the total amounts owed te co

insurers and reinsurers of £842.1 million (2018: £1,275.9 million) 1£129.6million (2018:

£1,022.7million) is hedl under funds withheld arrangements and therefore not expected to be

settled within 12 months.

A maturity analysis for insurance contract liabilities is included in note 5. The maturity profile for
financial assets is included at the start of this note.

The Group’'s Directors believe that the cash fl ov
this profile. Liquidity risk is not, therefore, considered to be significant.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from unfavourable movements in foreign exchange rates that could
adversely impact the valuation of overseas assets and liabilities.

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its operations overseas. Although the
relative size of the international operations means that the risks are relatively small, increasingly
volatile foreign exchange rates could result in larger potential gains or losses. Assets held to fund
insurance liabilities are held in the currency of tlabilities; however, surplus assets held as
regulatory capital in foreign currencies remain exposed.

The Group’'s exposure to net assets and profits
immaterial other than for US dollarsand Eurdke Grae p° s exposure t o net asseée
at the balance sheet date w&40.9million (2018: £60.7 million); the exposure to net assets held in

Euros wa£111.8million (2018: £69.3 million).

The loss before tax derived from business carried out ini8avas £8.5million (2018: £19.2
million). I f the Sterling rates with US doll ars
profit before tax for the year would increase/decreasefldy8million (2018: £1.8 million).
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The profit before tax derivedfromu si ness car r i dd9miliont(20i8mproffur os was
before tax of €5.4 million). I f the Sterling r

the Group’'s profit before t ax£l.Onullion(20h8£04 ear wo ul
million).
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7. Loans and Advances to Customers
7a. Accounting policies

Loans and advances to customers relate to the Adriirahs business, consisting of unsecured
personal loans and car finance products.

Classification

Loans and advances to customers are measured at amortised cost. This is because assets are held
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset demand
cash inflows which are solely payments of principal and@steon the principal amount

outstanding.

Interest income and expense

Interest income received in relation to loans and advances to customers is calculated using the
effective interest method which allocates interest, and direct and incremental feesasts aver

the expected lives of the assets and liabilities. There has been no change in recognition of interest
income from the comparative period.

Interest expense is calculated following the specific process relating to each source of funding,
which is ot linked to individual accounts.

Finance leases

Included within Loans and advances to customergpareonal contract purchag®CRPand hire
purchasgHP)arrangements which are classified as finance leases under IFR®et@ivable
equal to the net investment in the lease has been recognishd.net investment is equal to the
gross investment in the lease discounted at the rate implicit in the |€&ssimpairment
requirementsof IAS 36 have been applied to the finance leases held.

Leasdnterestincome is recognised withinterest incomein the income statement over the term
of the lease using the effective interest method.

7b. Loans and advances tustomers

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m
Loans and advances to customergross carrying amount 479.1 310.4
Loans and advances to customergrovision (24.0) (10.2)
Total loans and advances to customers 455.1 300.2

Loarsand advances to customei@e comprisel of the following:
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31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Unsecured personal loans 4458 294.2
Finance leases 33.3 162
Total loans and advances to customers, gross 479.1 310.4

Fair value measurement

Theamortised cost of loans and advances to customers on a portfolio basis is considered a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

Expected credit losses

The expected credit loss model is a thistage model based on forward looking information
regarding changs in the credit quality since origination. Credit risk is measured using a probability
of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD) defined as follows:

1 Probability of Default (PD): The likelihood of an account defaultingratdiththrough
analysis of historic customer behaviour. Where customers have already met the definition
of default this is 100%. For customers that are not in default the PD is determined through
analysis of historic data at a credit grade level.

1 Exposureat Default (EAD): The amount of balance at the time of default. For loans that are
in arrears the EAD is taken as the current balance, for up to date loans the contractual
outstanding balance in each future month is used.

1 Loss Given Default (LGD): Theanmot of t he asset not recovered
default, determined through analysis of historic recovery performance.

The PD is applied to the EAD to calculate the expected loss. Where customersaudatgp the

EAD is effectively the sum of thatire month-end balances, as such the PD is converted from an
annual rate to a monthly rate before applying it to the EAD. The LGD is then applied to this loss to
calculate the total expected loss including recoveries. A ford@oking provision is also

calculated, as set out later in this note.

Loan assets are segmented into three stages of credit impairment:
M Stage L no significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since inception;
M Stage 2-significant increase in credit risk of the firtdal asset since inception;
9 Stage 3-financial asset is credit impaired.

For assets in stage 1, the allowance is calculated as the expected credit losses from events within
12 months after the reporting date. For assets in stages 2 and 8llihe@ance is calculated as the
expected credit loss from events in the remaining lifetime of each asset.

Significant increase in credit risk (RJStage 2)
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As explained above, stage 1 assets have an ECL allowing for losses in the next twelve maaths, stag
2 or 3 assets have an ECL allowing for losses over the remaining lifetime of the contract. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS9 does
not prescribe a definition of significant increasecredit risk (SICR) but does include a rebuttable
presumption that this does occur for loan assets which are 30 days pagivthich the Group does

not rebut).

The Groughas deemed a SICR to have occurred where:

1 theloanis 1to 3 loan payments in aars, or

1 theloan has beem arrearswith AFSL in the last six months, or

1 the customer has a significant level of unsecured debt relative to the pointeption
Credit Impaired (Stage 3)

The Group does not rebut the presumption within IFRS9 that default has occurred when an
exposure is greater than 90 days past due, which is consistent with a customer being 4 or more
payments in arrears. In addition, a loan is deemed to be credit impairede

a) thereisan ndi vi dual Vol ulvA ggreemen comfianedyoepropased, o
b) customer has started or progressed bankruptcy action, or

c) arepayment plars in placeor

d) customer is deceased.

Write off policy

Loans are written off wherenter e i s no reasonabl e expectation
write off balances to their estimated net realisable value. Write offs are actioned on a case by case
basis taking into account the operational position and the collections stratéggn @Ge

immaturity of the loans business, and considerations surrounding potential debt sales in the future,
the Group has talate operationally written off only a small proportion of the book.

Forwardlooking information

Under IFRS9 the provision mustleet an unbiased and probabiliyeighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes. The means by which the Group has
determined this is to run scenario anadgs

Economic scenarios are considered, including an upturn, a dewand a severe downturn. A
50% weighting is applied to the base scenario and the remab¥gdistributed across the
scenarios as shown below:

- 25% Upturn
- 20% Downturn
- 5% Severe Downturn
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The key economic driver of the losses from the scenarios ikkiglénood of a customer entering
hardship through unemployment. Several customer demographics including age, income and debt
levels are considered with a sensitivity to the specific scenarios considered. For each individual
customer, the sensitivities fra each demographic are combined to determine an overall

sensitivity.

Management judgement has been used to define the weighting and severity of the different
scenarios based on available data without undue cost or effort. The outcome from the scenarios
have been contrasted to loss rates stemming from loans written ovelastedecade, including

those from the most recent economic downturn (202@309).

Sensitivities to key areas of estimation uncertainty

The key areas of estimation uncertainty identified, as per note 3 to the financial statements, are in
the PD and the favard looking scenarios.

Stage 1 assets represent 95% of the total loan assets; a 0.1% increase in the stage 1 PD, i.e. from
1.8% to 1.9%, would result in a £0.5m (2%) increase in ECL.

The upturn scenario would reduce the ECL allowancelt®million (-5.4%), the downturn would
create anincreaseof £2.5million (11.7%6) and severe downturn byd8.0million (138.0%).

Amounts arising from ECL: loans and advances to customers

The Group is exposed to credit risk from the Admlioains business which has expaddduring
20109.

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of the loans and advances to
customers measured at amortised cost. Credit grades are used to segment customers by apparent
credit risk at the time of acquisition. Higherages are the lowest credit risk with each subsequent
grade increasing in expected credit risk. The Group does not have any purchased or originated
creditimpaired (POCI) asseffhese tables are inclusive of the finance lease assets which are held
by the Goup, further analysis of these balances can be founbile 7c.

All probability of defaults figures included in this paragraph allow for forid@o#ting information,

i.e. the PDs are a weighted average from the economic scenarios considered/erage

probability of default (PD) in for stage 1 assets is 1.8% (2018: 1.8%) reflecting the expectation of
defaults within 12 months of the reporting date. The average PD for assets in stage 2 is 58.7%
(2018: 5.2%) reflecting expected losses over theaiaing life of the assets. The PD for assets in
stage 3 is 100.0% (2018: 100.0%) as these assets are deemed to have defaulted.
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31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 201¢
Stage Stage . Stage :

12-month EC Lifetime EC Lifetime EC Total Tota
£m £m £m £m £m

Credit Grad&
Higher 333.t 36 — 337.1 139.t
Medium 112.1 2.€ - 114.7 117.5%
Lower 10.€ 0.3 — 10.9 48.€
Credit Impaired — — 16.4 16.4 4.6
Gross carrying amount 456.2 6.5 16.4 479.1 310.¢
Expected credit loss allowance (5.6) (34) (14.49) (23.9) 9.9
Other loss allowancé (06) - — (0.6) 0.3
Carrying amount 450.0 31 2.0 4551 300.2

*1 Other loss allowance covers losses due to a reduction in current or future vehicle or costs associated with
recovery and sale of vehicles.

*2 Credit grade is the internal credit banding given to a customer at origination. This is based on external credit rating
information.

The following tablereconcile the opening and closing gsocarrying amount anekpected credit
loss allowance.

Stage Stage ! Stage
12-month EC  Lifetime EC  Lifetime EC Total
£m £m £m £m
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 201 296.¢ 8.9 4.6 310.4
Transfers
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (4.5 4.5 — —
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (8.2 — 8.2 —
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 24 24 - —
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 — 27 27 —
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 1 — — — —
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 2 — — — —
Principal redemption payments (124.9) (4.5 (1.3) (130.7)
New financial assets originated or purchased 294t 2.7 2.2 299.4
Gross carrying amount as at Tlecember 2019 456.2 6.5 16.4 479.1
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Stage Stage:  Stage: Total
12-month EC  Lifetime  Lifetime

£m EC EC
£m £m
Expected credit loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 4.4 14 4.1 9.9
Movements with a profit and loss impact
Transfers
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (0.1 0.2 — 0.1
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (0.3) — 05 0.2
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 0.1 0.2 — (0.1)
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 1 — — — —
Changes in PDs/ LGDs/ EADs 1.9 08 79 6.9
New financial assets originated or purchased 33 12 1.9 6.4
Total net profit and loss charge in the period 12 2.0 10.3 135
Expected credit losallowance as at 31 December 2019 5.6 3.4 144 23.4
Other movements with no profit and loss impact
Transfers
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 — (1.0 1.0 —
Transfers from Stage 3 to Stage 2 — — — —
Write-offs — — (0.5 —

7c.Finance lease receivables

Loans and advances to customers include the following finance leases. The group is the lessor for
leases of cars

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 201¢€
£m £m
Gross investment iffinanceleases, receivable
Less than 1 year 8.1 4.9
Between 1 to 5 years 289 109
More than 5 years — —
37.0 15.€
Unearned finance income 4.2 1.9
Net investment in lease receivables 32.8 13.€
Less impairment allowance 0.9 0.2
324 13.7
Netinvestment in financdeases, receivable
Less than 1 year 6.2 41
Between 1 to 5 years 266 9.8
More than 5 years — —
32.8 139

The net investment in finance leases shown above is net of the unguaranteed residual value of £0.5
million (2018:£0.3 millior).
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7d. Interest Income

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 201€

£m £m

Loans and advances to customers 30.8 15.C
30.8 15.C

Interest receivable on loans and advances to customers is recognised in the Income Statement using
the effective interest method, which calculates the amortised cost of the financial asset and allocates
the interest income over the expected product life.

7e. Interest expense

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Interest payable on loahacked securities 5.6 1.7
Interest payable omther credit facilties 0.7 1.9
Total interest expensé 6.3 3.6

*1 Interest paid in total during the year wa$ .8 million (2018: £3.1 million)

Interest expense represents the interest payable on funding for the Adbmieals business, in the
form of credit facilitesof £220.0 million(2018: £20 million) of which £0.0 million was drawn
down at 31 December 2019 (2018: £71.5 million) lrash backed securities through an SRE
£4000 million (2018: £300.0 million) of which£304.5 milliorwas drawn down at 31 December
2019(2018:£168.3 million)
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8. Other Revenue

8a. Accounting policy

(i) Contribution from additional products and fees &ither Revenue

Revenue i s

credited to the income statement

provide services. Where the Group has no remaining obligations, the revenue is recognised

immediately. An allowance is made for expected cantielia where the customer may be entitled

to a refund of amourgcharged.

Commission from the provision of insurance intermediary services is credited to revenue on the

sale of the underlying insurance policy.

There has been no change in revemaeognition from the comparative period.

(i) Nature of goods and services

The following is a description of the principle activities within the scope of IFRS 15 from which the

Group generates its other revenue.

Products and services

Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and
significantpayment terms

Comparison

The performance obligation is the provision of insurance intermedig
services, at which point the performance obligation is met. Revenug

therefore recognised at a point in time.

Fee and commission
revenue: Commission
on underlying
products

The performance obligation is the provision of insurance
intermediary services, at which point the performance obligation is
met. Revenue is therefore recognised at a point in time. Payment of
the commission iglue within 30 days of the period close.

Feeand commission
revenue:
Administration fees

The performance obligation is the change requested being made tq
the underlying policy, at which point the performance obligation is
met.

Revenue is therefore recognised at a point in time armbikected
immediately or in line with direct debit instalments.

Revenue from law firm|

The performance obligation is the pursuit of the compensation from
the other side’ s i ns u®neertheoaseid €
settled the performance obligatio is fully satisfiedRevenue is
therefore recognised over time using the expected value method
This method values revenue by multiplying hours incurred on open
cases bya 12-month realisable rate The realisable rate is a
probability weightedtransaction pricebased onsettled casesThe
expected value methodherefore resultsin revenue recognised
being constrained to that where there ishagh probability of no
significant reversal.
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Revenue is recognisedver time becauseas the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date
and the work performed to date has no alternative use to the Group

A contract asset is recognised equal to the work performed up to
the balance sheet date but not yet leitl. Refer to note 69 for further

detail of this balance.

Payment is due within 28 days of invoice.

Profit commission
from coiinsurers

The Group’s profit commission

15, ‘Revenue frCamtbBGmptrsacte!l w
arrangement between the Group’
and a third party (external to the Group) -twsurer Great Lakes
underwriting a share of the UK Car Insurance business generated |
Limited.

Thevariable consideration, being the profit commission recognise
respect of each underwriting year at the end of each reporting perio
recognized at a point in time, anchlculated based on a number
detailed inputs, the most material of which aas follows:

1 Premiums, defined as gross premiums ceded including
instalment income, less reinsurance premium (for excess of
reinsurance);

T Insurance expenses incurred,;

1 Claims ratio (more typically referred to as a loss ratio)

Whilst the premiums and insurance expenses related to an underwr,
year are typically fixed at the conclusion of each underwriting year
are not subject to judgement, the claims ratio is oédted from the
underwriting year loss ratios that result from the setting of clai
reserves in the financial statements meaning it is subject to inhe
uncertainty. As stated in noqd
to reserve conservatig, above internal and independent projectio
of actuarial best estimates. This is designed to create a margin hgq
reserves to allow for unforeseen adverse development in open clair

Admiral’' s financial st at e mefprofit
commission income, continue to include a significant margin al
projected best estimates of ultimate claims costs. It is this margir
uncertainty, included in the financial statement loss ratios, wh
creates the constraint over the regaition of the variable consideratior
as using the booked loss ratio rather than the actuarial best estin
constrains the profit commission income to a level where there is a
probability of no significant reversal of the revenue recognised.
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Thekey methods, inputs and assumptions used to estimate the vari
consideration of profit commission are therefore in line with those u
for the calculation of claims liabilities, as set out in note 3 to the an
report, with further detail also incluetl in note 5. There are no furthg
critical accounting estimates or judgements in relation to the recogni
of profit commission.

Instalment incomeon insurance premium paid via instalments is recognised under IFRS 9 using the
effective interest rateand as such is not within the scope of IFRS 1&fit Bommission from

reinsurers isvithin the scope of IFRS 4, andt within the scope of IFRS Revenue from Contracts
with Customerslue to the nature of the income.

Refer to the StrategiReport for further detail on the sources of revenue.
8b. Disaggregation of revenue

In the following tables, other revenue is disaggregated by major products/service lines and timing
of revenue recognition. The total revenue disclosed in the table 8485nillion (2018: £542.4
million) represents total other revenue and profit commission and is disaggregated into the
segments included in note 4.

Year ended 31 December 201

UK International
Insurance Car Insurance  Comparison Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Major products/ service line
Comparisoft T T 152.2 T 152.2
Instalment income 853 29 T T 88.2
Fee and commission revenue 1620 187 T 19 182.6
Revenue from law firm 32.9 T T T 329
Other 134 T T 0.6 14.0
Total other revenue 2936 216 152.2 25 4699
Profit commission 1140 0.9 T T 1149
Total other revenue and profit commission 407.6 225 152.2 25 584.8
Timing of revenue recognition
Point in time 2678 187 152.2 25 441.2
Over time 35.9 T T T 35.9
Revenue outside the scope of IFRS 15 103.9 3.8 T T 107.7
407.6 225 152.2 25 584.8
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Year ended 31 December 201

UK International
Insurance Car Insurance  Comparison Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Major products/ service line
Comparisoit — — 131.7 — 131.7
Instalment income 82.6 2.7 — — 85.3
Fee and commission revenue 172.4 15.9 — 1.9 190.2
Revenue from law firms 30.5 — — — 30.5
Other 10.8 — — 0.7 11.5
Total other revenue 296.3 18.6 131.7 2.6 449.2
Profit commission 93.2 — — — 93.2
Total other revenue and profit commission 389.5 18.6 131.7 2.6 542.4
Timing of revenue recognition
Point in time 275.3 15.9 131.7 2.6 4255
Over time 334 — — — 33.4
Revenue outside the scope of IFRS 15 80.8 2.7 — — 83.5
389.5 18.6 131.7 2.6 542.4

*1 Comparison revenue excludes £4fillion (31 December 2018: £19.3 million) of income from other Group
companies.

Instalment incomas recognised applying the effective interest rate over the term of the
policy, and is outside the scope of IFRS IbfitRommission from reinsureris
recognised under IFRS 4, and is discussed further in note 5 to the financial statements.

9. Expenses
9a. Accounting policies
(i) Acquisition costs and operating expenses

Acquisition costs incurred in obtaining new and renewal business are charged to the income
statement over the period in which those premiums are earned. All other operating expenses are
charged to the income statement in the period that they are incurred.

(i) Employee benefits

As detailed in the Remuneration Committee Report, the key elements of employee remuneration
are:

i Base salaries and pension contributions

1 Share basethcentive plans

T A discretionary bonus, (the ‘DFSS Bonus'’'),
linked to the number of DFSS awards held and actual dividends paid out to shareholders.

Within note 9b, the charges for base salaries and penstortributions (and the related social
security costs) are recognised within insurance contract expenses or administration and other
marketing costs, based on the role of the employee.
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Charges for the share based incentive plans (and related socialtgamsis) and discretionary

bonus are included within “share scheme charges
result for each reportable segment, or within the expense ratio, due to them being materially
comprised of an accounting charge inlimé t h | FRS 2 ‘ Share based payme

result in a cash payment to employees but instead results in a dilution of shares.

The rules of the share schemes ensure that the actual dilution level does not exceed 10% in any
rolling tenyear periodpy funding of any vested (and future) DFSS and SIP awards as appropriate
with marketpurchased shares. This corresponds to approximately a 1% dilution of share capital
each year.

Base salaries and pension contributions

Base salaries and thielated employer social security costs are charged to the income statement in
the period that they are incurred.

The Group contributes to defined contribution personal pension plans for its employees. The
contributions payable to these schemes are charigetthe accounting period to which they relate.

Share based incentive plans and related social security costs

The Group operates a number of equity and cash settled compensation schemes for its employees,
the main ones being:
- a Share | nc e whichisin pldee far dlKénpl@®keB énfouraging wide share
ownership across our employees, and
- the Discretionary Free Share Scheme (‘' DFSS’
manages, and for the majority of employees 50% of the DFSS shareslasvare subject
to three performance conditions being Earnings per Share growth, Return on Equity and
Total Shareholder Return vs. the FTSE 350 (excluding investment companies) over a three
year period.

For both schemes, employees must remain in empleytthree years after the award date (i.e. at
the vesting date), otherwise the shares are forfeited.

The majority of these schemes are classed as equity settled under IFRS 2, due to the employees
receiving shares (rather than cash) as consideration f@strvices provided.

For equity settled schemes, the charge, which reflects the fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the free shaigsecognised as an expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, as shown in Consolidated stateniehages in equity (2019:
£58.8million; 2018: £56.7 million).

For the cash settled schemes, the expense recognised for the fair value of services received results
in a corresponding increase in liabilities.

The key drivers and assumptions used to dateuthe charge for the schemes over the three year
vesting period are:
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- the number of shares awarded, which is set at the start of each scheme. Details of the
number of shares awarded for each scheme where shares remain unvested is set out in
note 9f(ii)

- the fair value of the shares

0 For the SIP, the fair value of the shares awarded is the share price at the award
date. Awards under the SIP are entitled to receive dividends, and hence no
adjustment is made to this fair value.

0 For the DFSS equity settled s, awards are not eligible for dividends, although
a discretionary bonus is currently paid equivalent to the dividend that would have
been paid on the shareholding, hence the fair value of the shares is revised
downwards to take account of thesxpecteal dividends

0 For the DFSS cash settled awards, the fair value is based on the share price at the
vesting date. The closing share price at the end of each reporting period is used as
an approximation for the closing price at the end of the vesting period.

- attrition rates, which impact the ultimate number of shares that vest.

- inthe case of the DFSS, the vesting rates based on the performance conditions, which also
impact the ultimate number of shares that vest.

The number of shares that have ultimately issscompared to those originally awarded is set out
in note 9f(iii).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its assumptions on the number of shares which will
ultimately vest based on the latest forecast information for attrition rates and, folXR&S, the
extent to which the performance conditions are met.

The financial impact as a result of any change in the assumptions is recognised through the income
statement. Any significant changes in assumptions may therefore result in an increased(sgekcre
charge in an accounting period as a result of this4upeof the expected cumulative charge

required.

Social security costs ashare basedncentive plans

Social security costs are incurred by the Group in respect aflthee basedhcentive planswith

the expense recognised over the vesting period for each share scheme. For the SIP, these costs are
paid when the employees sell the shares after vesting (typicdlly&ars after the grant date). For

the DFSS, the costs are paid immediately upting.

The total social security costs are calculated based on the following:
- The taxable value of the shares, being:

0 For the SIP, the lower of the share price at award date and the share price at the
balance sheet date
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0 Forthe DFSS, the share price atltiadance sheet date;

- the number of shares expected to vest for each scheme, driven by the number of shares
awarded, attrition rates and, for the DFSS, the vesting rate based on performance
conditions;

- the appropriate social security rate.

These assumptions are updated at the end of each reporting péeftoelfinancial impact as a result
of any change in the assumptions is recognised through the income statement. Any significant
changes in assumptions may therefore result in an increasediedised charge in an accounting
period as a result of this truep of the expected cumulative charge required.

Discretionary bonus on shares allocated but unvested

The cost of thé&dFS®onus is recognised and paid in each period equivalent to the dividend
shares allocated to employees that are still entitled to vest, but have not yet vested. The cost
shown also includes the social security costs on the discretionary bonus. No accrual is made for
future discretionary bonupaymentsdue to there beingio contractual obligatiorior such a bonus

at the balance sheet date.

9b. Operating expenses and share scheme charges

31 December 2019
Recoverable

from co-and

Gross reinsurers Net

£m £m £m

Acquisition of insurance contracts 138.0 (104.9) 33.1
Administration and other marketing costs (insurance contracts) 398.8 (307.2 91.6
Insurance contract expenses 536.8 (412.1 124.7
Administration and other marketing costs (other) 2814 — 2814
Share scheme charges 825 (29.1) 534
Totalexpenses and share scheme charges 900.7 (441.2 459.5

31 December 2018

Recoverabl

from co-and
Gross reinsurers Net
£m £m £m
Acquisition of insurance contraéts 135.1  (103.8) 31.3
Administration and other marketing costs (insuramomtracts) 381.6 (2879) 93.7
Insurance contract expenses 516.7 (391.7) 125.0
Administration and other marketing costs (other) 249.2 — 249.2
Share scheme charges 76.9 (27.1) 49.8
Total expenses and share scheme charges 842.8  (418.8) 424.0

*1 Acquisition of insurance contracts expense excludes4ahdllion (2018: £19.3 million) of aggregator fees from other
Group companies.

The £4..6 million (2018: £93.7 million) administration and marketing costs allocated to insurance
contracts is principatlmade up of salary costs.

Analysis of other administration and other marketing costs:
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31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m
Expenses relating to additional products and fees 70.1 63.4
Comparison operating expenses 156.8 144.4
Loansexpenses (including movement on ECL provision) 31.9 22.9
Other expenses 226 185
Total 2814 249.2

Refer to note 13 for a reconciliation between insurance contract expenses and the reported expense
ratio.

9c. Staff costs and other expenses

31December 2019 31 December 2018
Total Net Total Net
£m £m £m £m

Salaries 292.2 109.2 268.8 95.7
Social security charges 305 12.8 27.2 10.3
Pension costs 135 4.8 9.0 3.2
Share scheme charges (see note 9f) 82.5 53.4 76.9 49.8
Total staffexpenses 418.7 180.2 381.9 159.0
Depreciation charge:
—Owned assets 11.9 4.1 12.0 3.7
—ROU assets 11.9 4.6 — —
Amortisation charge:
— Software 174 5.9 155 4.6
—Deferred acquisition costs — 52.8 — 50.5
Au di temunéragion (including VAT):
-Fees payable for the audit of 0.1 T — —
-Fees payable for the audit of 0.9 0.8 0.5 0.3
—Fees payable for audit related assurance servicgsuant to
legislation or regulation 04 T 0.4 —

£32,380(2018: £nil) was payable to the auditor for other services in the year.
Total and net expenses are before and afterad reinsurance arrangements respectively.

Refer to the Corporat&over nance Report for details of the
tothe@ mpany’' s a ualditseovices.fAodit feas abB% (2018: 53%) of total fees and

31% (2018: 47%) of total fees are for nandit services, which are classed as amlated

assurance services under the FRC rules oranmiit services.

The amortisation of software and deferred acquisition cost assets is charged to expenses in the
income statement.
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9d. Staff numbers (including Directors)

Average for the year

2019 2018

Number Number

Direct customer contact staff 7,319 6,845
Support staff 3,510 3,354
Total 10,829 10,199

HPSd® S5ANBOGZ2NEQ NBYdzySNI GA2Y
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31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m
Directors’ emol ument s 17 1.6
Amounts receivable under SIP and DFSS share schemes 12 11
Company contributions to money purchase pension plans — —
Total 29 2.7
(i) Number of Directors

2019 2018
Number Number

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following numbebDirectors under:
—Money purchase schemes 1 1

9f. Staff share schemes

Analysis of share scheme costs:

31 December 201

SIP charge DFSS charge ( Total charge

Gros! Net Gross Net Gross Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

IFRS 2 charge fequity settled share schemes 173 11.¢€ 415 265 588 384
IFRS 2 charge for cash settled share schemes — — 1.9 1.0 1.9 1.0
Total IFRS 2 charge 173 11.¢€ 43.4 275 60.7 394
Social security costs on IFRS 2 charge 1.€ 12 7.1 48 8.7 6.0
Discretionary bonus on shares allocated but unvested — — 13.1 8.0 131 8.0
Total share scheme charges 18.¢ 131 636 403 825 534
31 December 201

SIP charge DFSS charge ( Total charge

Gros: Net Gross Net Gross Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

IFRS 2 charge for equity settled share schemes 16.4 11.2 40.3 25.8 56.7 37.0
IFRS 2 charge for cash settled share schemes — — 0.6 0.3 0.6 0.3
Total IFRS 2 charge 16.4 11.2 40.9 26.1 57.3 37.3
Social security costs 1.7 1.1 5.9 3.9 7.6 5.0
Discretionary bonus on shares allocated but unvested — — 12.0 7.5 12.0 7.5
Total share scheme charges 18.1 12.2 58.8 37.5 76.9 49.8
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Net share scheme charges are presented after allocations-tostwers (in the UK and Italy) and
reinsurers (in the International Insurance businesses). The proportion of net to gross share scheme
charges would be expected to be consistent in each period, at approximately 65%.

Financial year ended 31 December
Total cumulative

2016 andprior 2017 2018 2019 charge to date
Analysis of gross cost £m £m £m £m £m
Year of share schemeSIP
2014 9.7 21 — — 11.8
2015 8.6 3.0 2.0 — 13.6
2016 6.2 2.2 5.4 21 15.9
20171 2.2 11 55 55 14.3
2018 — — 35 6.1 9.6
2019 — — — 3.6 3.6
Gross IFRS 2 costSIP 8.4 16.4 17.3
Year of share schemeDFSS
2014 11.8 3.7 — — 15.5
2015 9.6 9.4 7.0 — 260
2016 5.8 12.8 17.0 9.8 45.4
20172 — 3.6 13.0 145 311
20182 — — 3.9 15.6 19.5
20192 — — — 35 35
Gross IFRS 2 cosiSFSS 29.5 40.9 43.4
Total IFRS 2 costs 37.9 57.3 60.7
*1 Awards are made in March and September of each year, and vest over 36 months from award date. On the 2017
scheme, an average ofoui smamtdh sa'g, cloar déher mM@ai8ns cheme an ¢
remains outstanding, and on the 2019 schemes an average
*2 The main award is made in September of each year, with smaller awards made at othethroungh the year. The
shares vest over 36 months from award dat e. On the 2017
2018 main DFSS 21 months’ charge remains outstanding, a

outstanding

(i) The Approved Share Incentive Plan (the SIP)

Eligible UK based employees qualified for awards under the SIP based upon the performance of the
Group in each haljear period. The maximum award for each year is £3,600 per employee and the
maximum number of shares that can vest relating to the 2019 schemes is 1,11204%6

schemes: 1,192,302; 2017 schemes: 1,067,291)

The awards are made at the discretion of the remuneration committee, taking into account the
Group’' s performance.

(ii) The Discretionary Free Share Scheme (the DFSS)

Under the DFSS, details of which are contained
Remuneration Report, individuals receive an award of free shares at no charge.

The maximum number of shardsat can vest relating to the 2019 schesig 2,637,196 (2018
scheme: 3,373,9482017 schemes: 3,205,449

The vesting percentage for the 2016 DFSS schvemieh vested during 201®as 93.8% (2015 DFSS
scheme: 87.1%).

(i) Number of free share awards comtted at 31 December 2019
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Awards
outstanding!

SIP 2017 1,067,291
SIP 2018 1,192,30z
SIP 2019 1,113,49¢
DFSS 201% 3,205,44¢
DFSS 2018 3,373,94¢
DFSS 2019 2,637,19¢
Total awards committed 12,589,68:

*1 Being the maximum number afvards committed before accounting for expected staff attrition and vesting conditions
*2 Shares are awarded in March and September of each year, and vest three years later
*3 The main award is made in September of each year, with smaller awards madeapoints through the year

(iif) Number of free share awards vesting during the year ended 31 December 2019

During the year ended 31 December 2019, awards under the SIP H116 and H216 schemes and the
DFSS 2016 schemes vested. The total numbawafds vesting for each scheme is as follows.

Original Awards
awards vested
SIP2016schemes 1,025,662 797,311
DFSS 2016 schese 3,253,25( 2,643,98(

The difference between the original and vested awards reflects employee attrition (SIP schemes)
and both employee attrition and the vesting outcomes based on performance conditions noted
above (DFSS schemes).

The weighted averagrir value of the sharegranted in the year wasi8.96 (2018: £17.65).

The weighted average market share price at the date of exercise for shares exercised during the
year was £1.06(2018: £20.05).
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10. Taxation

10a. Accounting policy

Income tax on the profit or loss for the periods presented comprises current and deferred tax.
() Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enactediwy balance sheet date, and includes any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.

Current tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income is also recognised in other
comprehensive income and not in the income statement.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for accounting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised.

The principal temporary differencesise from carried forward losses, depreciation of property and
equipment and share scheme charges. The resulting deferred tax is charged or credited in the
income statement, except in relation to share scheme charges where the amount of tax benefit
credited to the income statement is limited to an equivalent credit calculated on the accounting
charge. Any excess is recognised directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets relating to carried forward losses are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable thatfuture taxable profits will be available against which the assets can be utilised. The
probability of the availability of future taxable profits is determined by a combination of the
classification of the status of the businesses holding cumulative $ae$oand the business plan
profit projections for that business, subject to appropriate stress testing.
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10b. Taxation

31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2019 2018
£m £m
Current tax
Corporation tax on profits for the year 91.3 81.4
Underprovision relating to prior periods 0.5 0.2
Current tax charge 91.8 81.6
Deferred tax
Current period deferred taxation movement 2.8 3.8
(Over)/under provision relating to prior periods (0.4) 0.3
Total tax charge per consolidated inconstatement 942 85.7
Factors affecting the total tax charge are:
31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2019 2018
£m £m
Profit before tax 522.6 476.2
Corporation tax thereon at effective UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2018: 19.0%) 99.3 90.5
Expenses and provisions not deductible for tax purposes 18 0.7
Nontaxable income (4.9 (6.0)
Impact of change in UK tax rate on deferred tax balances 0.3 0.5
Adjustments relating to prior periods 0.1 0.6
Impact of different overseas tax rates (8.8) (8.2)
Unrecognised deferred tax 6.4 7.6
Total tax charge for the period as above 94.2 85.7

The outstanding corporation tax payable as at 31 December 2019 @a&rBdlion (2018: £49.3

million).

107



10c. Deferred income tax asgétability)

Analysis of deferred tax asa@iability)

Tax treatmen Carried
of share Capital forward Fair valu Other
schemes allowances losses reserve differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance brought forward at 1 January 2018 6.1 (4.5) 29 (4.6) 0.4 0.3
Tax treatment of share scheme charges through
income or expense (2.2) — — — — (2.2)
Tax treatment of share scheme charges through
reserves 33 — — — — 3.3
Capital allowances — 0.9 — — — 0.9
Carriedforward losses — — (2.9) — — (2.9)
Movement in fair value reserve — — — 0.7 — 0.7
Other difference — — — — 0.1 0.1
Balance carried forward at 31 December 2018 7.2 (3.6) — 3.9 0.5 0.2
Tax treatment of share scheme charges through
income orexpense (46) — — — — (46)
Tax treatment of share scheme charges through
reserves 3.3 — — — — 3.3
Capital allowances — 15 — — — 15
Carried forward losses — — — — — —
Movement in fair value reserve — — — (1.5, — (1.5)
Other difference — — — — 0.7 0.7
Balance carried forward at 31 December 2019 5.9 (2.1 — (5.4 1.2 04

Positive amounts presented above relate to a deferred tax asset position.

The average effective rate of tax for 2019 is 19.0% (2018: 19.(G%}hér reduction to the main
rate of corporation tax to 17% (effective from 1 April 2020) was enacted on 15 Septembédnt016
is expected to be reversedhiswvouldr educe t he Group’'s future currel

The deferred tax asset in relation to carried forward losses remains at £nil at the year end (2018:
£nil) due to uncertainty over the availability of future taxable profits against which to offset utilise
any deferred tax ass€see note 3 for details ofdw future taxable profits are estimated)

At 31 December 2019 the Group had unused tax loasesunting to £31.3 million (2018 £217.5
million), relating primarily to the Group’s US
no deferred tax ast has been recognise@he earliest expiry date for any of these tax losses is

2029. The total aggregated unrecognised deferred tax liabilities on temporary differences

associated with subsidiaries is £nil (2018: £nil).

11. Other assets and other liabilés
11a. Accounting policy
(i) Property and equipment, and depreciation

All property and equipment istated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight line method to write off the cost less residual values of the assets over
their useful economic lives. These useful economic lives are as follows:

Improvements teshort leasehold buildings — four to ten years
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Computer equipment - two to four years

Office equipment - four years
Furniture and fittings - four years
Motor vehicles - four years
Rightof-use assets - 2—20 years, aligned to lease agreement

In linewith the adoption of IFRS 16, and as set out further in notes 2 and 6h to the financial
statements, arightf-u s e asset has been established in rela

The rightof-use asset is measured at cost, which comprises thevioig:

1 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability (see notes 2 and 6h to the financial
statements)

1 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received

1 any initial direct costs, and

1 restoration costs.

The rightof-use asset is subsequently depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the
asset’ s wusef dihebhsisf e on a straight

The Group does not have any significant leases which qualify for thetehorieases or leases of
low-value asset exemption.

(ii) Impairment of property and equipment

In the case of property and equipment, carrying values are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there are any indications of impairment. If any such indications exist, the

a s s etovembleramount is estimated and compared to the carrying value. The carrying value is

the higher of the fair value of the asset, | ess
losses are recognised through the income statement.

(iv) Intangble assets
Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. Goodwill has been
recognised in acquisitions of subsidiaries, and represents the difference between the cost of the
acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets @egu

The classification and accounting treatment of acquisitions occurring before 1 January 2004 have
not been reconsidered in preparing the Group’ s
to the exemption available in IFRS 1 (First time adoptiomedpect of acquisitions prior to 1

January 2004, goodwill is included at the transition date on the basis of its deemed cost, which
represents the amount recorded under UK GAAP, which was tested for impairment at the

transition date. On transition, amortsion of goodwill has ceased as required by IAS 38.
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Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash
generating units (CGUSs) according to business segment and is reviewed annually for impairment.

The goodwllheld on the balance sheet at 31 December 2019 and 2018 is allocated solely to the UK
Insurance segment.

Impairment of goodwill

The annual impairment review involves comparing the carrying amount to the estimated
recoverable amount (by allocating the gawitl to CGUs) and recognising an impairment loss if the
recoverable amount is lower. Impairment losses are recognised through the income statement and
are not subsequently reversed.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value of the assettess to sell and the value
in use of the CGU.

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three year period. Cash flows beyond this period are considered, but not
included in the cleulation.

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are those regarding growth rates and
expected changes in pricing and expenses incurred during the period. Management estimates
growth rates and changes in pricing based on past practicdsxpected future changes in the
market.

The headroom above the goodwill carrying value is very significant, and there is no foreseeable
event that would eliminate this margin.

Deferred acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise all direct and indireosts arising from the conclusion of insurance
contracts. Deferred acquisition costs represent the proportion of acquisition costs incurred that
correspond to the unearned premiums provision at the balance sheet date. This balance is held as
an intangilbe asset. It is amortised over the term of the contract as premium is earned.

Software

Purchased software is recognised as an intangible asset and amortised over its expected useful life
(generally the licence term). Internally generated software is reisggl as an intangible asset, with
directly attributable costs incurred in the development stage capitalised. The internally generated
software assets are amortised over the expected useful life of the systems and amortisation
commences when the software available for use.

The carrying value of software is reviewed every six months for evidence of impairment, with the
value being written down if any impairment exists. Impairment may be reversed if conditions
subsequently improve.
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(iv) Provisions, Contiegt Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when a legal or constructive obligation arises as a result of an event that
occurred before the balance sheet date, when a eastilow relating to this obligation is probable
and when the amont can be estimated reliably.

Where a material obligation exists, but the likelihood of a caskfout or the amount is uncertain,
or where there is a possible obligation arising from a past event that is contingent on a future
event, a contingent liabty is disclosed.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events, whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or narccurrence of future events. Where it is probable that a
cashinflow will arise from a contingent asséhis is disclosed.
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11b. Property and equipment

Improvements ROLU
to short Asset-
leaseholc  Computer Office Furniture  Leasehol
buildings equipment equipment and fittings buildings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2018 28.7 57.2 19.7 9.8 — 1154
Additions 3.1 4.9 1.9 0.1 — 10.0
Disposals (0.7) (0.1) (0.2) (0.2) — 1.2)
Transfers (1.2) — — — — 1.2)
Foreign exchange movement (0.2) 0.1 — 0.1 — 0.1
At 31 December 2018 290.8 62.1 214 9.8 — 1231
Depreciation
At 1January 2018 14.9 45.9 15.2 8.1 — 84.1
Charge for the year 2.8 6.5 1.9 0.8 — 12.0
Disposals (0.7) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) — (2.0)
Foreign exchange movement (0.2) — — 0.1 — (0.1)
At 31 December 2018 16.8 52.3 17.0 8.9 — 95.0
Net book amount
At 1January 2018 13.8 11.3 4.5 1.7 — 31.3
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 13.0 9.8 4.4 0.9 — 28.1
Cost
At 1 January 2019 29.8 62.1 214 9.8 — 123.1
Initial application of IFRS 16 — — — — 136.7 136.7
Additions 4.2 9.7 1.8 0.9 — 16.6
Disposals — (02 (0.6) (0.2) — (1.0
Transfers (0.4) 0.1 — 0.3 — —
Foreign exchangand othermovemens™ (0.2) (0.3) (0.2 (0.2 (2.3 (3.2
At 31 December 2019 334 714 224 10.6 134.4 2722
Depreciation
At 1 January 2019 16.8 52.3 17.0 8.9 — 95.0
Initial application of IFRS 16 — — — — — —
Charge for the year 3.2 6.7 15 0.5 119 238
Disposals — (0.1) — (0.2) — 0.3
Foreign exchange movement (0.2) (0.2) (0.3) (0.2) (0.1 (0.7)
At 31 December 2019 19.8 58.7 184 9.1 118 1178
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 136 127 4.0 15 122.6 1544

*1 Within foreign exchange and otherovements for the ROU assef).bmrelates to remeasurementsf the ROU asset
due to amendmentso the payment terms ofhe leasing arrangement.
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11c. Intangible Assets

Deferred

acquisition

Goodwill costs Softwaré! Total

£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2018 62.3 20.6 76.5 159.4
Additions — 53.1 13.9 67.0
Amortisation charge — (50.5) (15.5) (66.0)
Disposals — — — —
Transfers — — 1.2 1.2
Foreign exchange movement — 0.2 0.2 0.4
At 31 December 2018 62.3 23.4 76.3 162.0
Additions — 54.8 17.0 718
Amortisation charge — (52.8) 7.9 (702)
Disposals — — (0.3) (0.3)
Impairment — — (1.2) 1.2)
Transfers — — — —
Foreign exchange movement — (0.6) 12 1.8
At 31 December 2019 62.3 248 73.2 160.3

*1 Software additions relating to internal development are immaterial in both 2019 and 2018

Goodwill relates to the acquisition of Group subsidiary EUI Lin(itecherly Admiral Insurance

Services Limited) in November 1999. As described in the accounting policies, the amortisation of
this asset ceased on transition to IFRS on 1 January 2004. All annual impairment reviews since the
transition date have indicatechait the estimated recoverable value of the asset is greater than the
carrying amount and therefore no impairment losses have been recognised. Refer to the
accounting policy for goodwill for further information.

11d. Trade and other payables

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m
Trade payables 37.5 37.9
Amounts owed to cansurers 220.8 153.2
Amounts owed to reinsurers 1,221.3 1,122.7
Other taxation and social security liabilities 79.6 60.4
Other payables 188.1 196.0
Accruals and deferred income (see below) 228.6 231.3
Total trade and other payables 19759 1,801.

Of amounts owed to cinsurers and reinsurergecognised under IFRS 4),129.6 million (2018:
£1,022.7 million) is held under funds withheld arrangements.
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Analysis of accruals and deferred income:

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Premium receigdin advance of policy inception 131.7 127.2
Accrued expenses 574 64.8
Deferred income 39.5 39.3
Total accruals and deferred income as above 228.6 231.3

1le. Leases

Information presented in this note is in accordance with IFRS 16. Comparative information
presented for the year ended 31 December 2018 is in accordance with IAS 17.

Admiral Group plc hold various property under leasing arrangements that are now reabgsise
right of use assets and lease liabilities. A reconciliation to the prior year operating lease
commitment can be found in note 2b. A maturity analysis of lease liabitiiesd on contractual
undiscounted cashflowis set out below:

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m

Maturity analysisq contractual undiscounted cash flows
Within one year 129 14.8
Betweentwo to five years 47.9 54.3
Over five years 102.0 116.8
Total 162.8 185.9

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
31 Decembe
2019
£m
Lease liabilities
Current 9.7
Non-Current 127.4
Total 137.1
Amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

31 Decembe
2019
£m
Interest payable on lease liabilities under IFRS 16 3.2
Interest recoverable from co and {iesurers (2.0)
12

The Group has nsignificantfinancial commitments other than those accounted for as right of use
assets and lease liabilities under IFRS 16.
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11f. Contingent liabilities

The Groups'’ |l egal entities operate in numerous
to review andenquiry by the relevant tax authority.

Rastreator Comparador Correduria Seguros (" Rast
SpanishComparison business, has recently undergone a tax audit in respect of the 2013 and 2014
financial years As a result of the adit, the Spanish Tax Authority has denied the VAT exemption

relating to insurance intermediary services which Rastreator Comparador has agpéstteator
Comparadois appeaingthis decision via the Spanish Courts and is confident in defending its

postion which is, in its view, in line with the EU Directive and is also consistent with the way similar
supplies are treated throughout Europe.

The potenti al l'itability for the financial years
identified in note6, a bank guarantee has been provided to the Spanish Tax Authority for this

amount. If the exemption is also disallowed in respect of later years, the liability could increase to

€ m.

The Group is also in early stage discussions on various corporate tax matters with tax authorities in
the UK and ltaly.

No provision has been made in these financial statements in relation to the matters noted above.
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12. Share capital

The Gr ou mclusles sharp ¢apital &nd the share premium account, other reserves which
are comprised of the fair value reserve and foreign exchange reserve, and retained earnings.

12a. Accounting policies

(i) Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when themoi®bligation to transfer cash or other assets.
(i) Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the period in which they are declared and paid.

(iii) Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Group parent company, Admiral Group plc by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
during the period.

Diluted Earnings per share is calculatgddividing profit or loss attributable to equity holders of
the Group parent company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

12b. Dividends

Dividends were propose@dpprovedand paid as follows:

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Proposed March 2018 (58.0 pence per shapproved ApriR018, paid June 2018) — 163.3
Declared August 2018 (60.0 pence per share, paid October 2018) — 169.4
Proposed March 2019 (66.0 pence per shapgrovedApril 2019, paid June 2019) 188.0 —
Declared August 2019 (63.0 pence per share, paid October 2019) 1798 —
Total dividends 3678 332.7

The dividends proposed in Marcipprovedin April)represent the final dividends paid in respect
of the 2017 and 2018 financial years. The dividends declared in August are interim distributions in
respect of 2018 and 2019.

A final dividend o77.0 pence per share 222 million) has been proposed in respexftthe 2019
financial year. Refer to the Chairman’s St at eme
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12c. Earnings per share

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m

Profit for the financial year after taxation attributable to equity shareholders 432.4 395.1
Weighted average number of sharebasic 291,513,71+ 288,197,24"
Unadjusted earnings per sharébasic 148.3p 137.1p
Weighted average number of sharesliluted 292,094,79° 288,845,84!
Unadjusted earnings per sharaliluted 148.0p 136.8p

The difference between the basic and diluted number of shares at the end of 2019 H84i6§3,
2018: 648, 598) relates to awards committed, but
Refer to note 9 for further detail.

12d. Share capital

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m
Authorised
500,000,000 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence 0.5 0.5
Issued, called up and fully paid
293,686,329 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence 0.3 —
290,502,737 ordinary shares of 0.1 pence T 0.3
0.3 0.3

During 2019, 3,183,592 (2018: 3,288,475) new ordinary shares of 0.1 pence were issued to the
trusts administering the Group’s share schemes.

883,592 (2018: 988,475) of these were issued to the Admiral Group Share Incentive Plan Trust for
the purposes ofttis share scheme to give a closing number at 31 December 2019 of 11,628,981 (31
December 2018: 10,745,389). Of the shares issued, 4,389,821 remain in the Trust at 31 December
2019 (2018: 4,311,425). These shares are entitled to receive dividends.

2,300000 (2018: 2,300,000) shares were issued to the Admiral Group Employee Benefit Trust for
the purposes of the Discretionary Free Share Scheme resulting in cumulative shares issued to the
Trust of 23,461,948 (31 December 2018: 21,161,948). Of the shsued 5,823,675 remain in

the Trust at 31 December 2019 (2018: 6,170,927) to be used for future vesting, the remaining
issued shares having vested.

The balance of awards made to employees under the Discretionary Free Share Scheme that have
not either vestel or lapsed is 8,691,542 (2018: 9,218,956).

The Trustees have waived the right to dividend payments, other than to the extent of 0.001 pence
per share, unless and to the extent otherwise directed by the Company from time to time.

There is one class of sfeawith no unusual restrictions.
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12e. Objectives, policies and procedures for managing capital

The Group’'s capital management policy defines t
of the Group’s capital i ntmaydbd taken irorespectof capital) a g e me n
such as dividend payments.

The Group aims to operate a capitdficient business model by transferring a significant
proportion of underwriting risk to cinsurance and reinsurance partners. This in turn reduces the
amount of capital the Group needs to retain to operate and grow, and allows the Group to
distribute the majority of its earnings as dividends.

The Board has determined that it will hold capital as follows:

- SufficientSol vency 11 Own Funds to meet all of the
(over a 1 year and ultimate time horizon).

- An additional contingency to cover unforeseen events and losses that could realistically
arise. This risk appetite buffer is assessed via stress testing performed on an annual basis
and is calibrated in relation to the ongar regulatory SCR.

T h e G rcurenprisksappetite buffer is 30% above the regulatory SCR. This forms the lower
bound of the longetterm solvency target operating range of 130% to 150%.

The Group’'s dividend policy is to:
- Pay a normal dividend equal to 65% of ptast profits for theperiod

- Pay a special dividend calculated with reference to distributable reserves and surplus
capital held above the risk appetite buffer.

This policy gives the Directors flexibility in

As noted above, ytcépital pGsitianisgdicalated engean theaSoleency I

Framework. The Solvency Capital Requirement is based on the Solvency Il Standard Formula, with a
capitataddon t o refl ect | imitations in the Standard
(predominately in respect of profit commission arrangements irand reinsurance agreements

and risks relating to Periodic Payment Order (PPO) claims.

Solvency Ratio (Unaudited)

At the date of this repor(4 March2020) t he Gr oup’' s r e,gacllaetusinga s ol ver
capital addon that has not been subject to regulatory approval, is 190% (2018: 194%). This

includes the recognition of the 2019 final dividend of 77 pence per share (2018: 66 pence per

share).

The Group’s 2019 CoaditiondRapory(SFRCR)adwuheni publsheddiscosea
solvency ratio that is calculated at the balance sheet dedther than annual report dateysing

the capital adebn that was most recently subject to regulatory approval. &sgmatedand

unaudited SFCR solvency ratio is 172%, with the reconciliation between this ratio and the 190%
noted above being as follows:
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31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2019 2018
£m £m

Regulatory Solvency Ratio (Unaudited)

Solvency Ratio reported in the Annual Report 190% 194%
(10%; (10%;

Change in valuation date

Other (including impact of updated, unapproved capital &l (8%) (14%
Solvency Ratio to be reported in the SFCR 172% 170%
Subsidiaries

The Group manages the capital of its subsidiaries to ensure that all entities within the Group are
able to continue as going concerns and also to ensure that regulated entities meet regulatory
requirements with an appropriate risk appetite buffer. Excegsital above these levels within
subsidiaries is paid up to the Group holding company in the form of dividends on a regular basis.
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12f. Group related undertakings

The Parent Company’s subsi di

Subsidiary

Incorporated in England and Wales

Registered officel-loors 3 & 4 No. 3 Capital Quart&@ardiff, CFO 4BZ
Admiral Law Limited

Registered office: Admiral House, Queensway, Newport, NP20 4AG
BDE Law Limited

Class ol

shares held

Ordinary

Ordinary

Registered office: Ellipse Ground Floor, Padley Road, Swansea, SA1 8AN

Able Insurance Services Limited
Registered office: Greyfriars Hous&reyfriars Road, Cardiff, CF10 3AL

Penguin Portals Limited
Inspop.com Limited

Rastreator.com Limited
Regi stered office: Ty Admiral,
EUI Limited
Admiral Insurance Company Limited
Admiral Life Limited
Admiral Syndicatéimited
Admiral Syndicate Management Limited
Bell Direct Limited
Confused.com Limited
Diamond Motor Insurance Services Limited
Elephant Insurance Services Limited
Admiral Financial Services Limited
Preminen Price Comparison Holdings Limited
Preminen Dragon Pric@omparison Limited

Incorporated in Gibraltar
Registered office: 1st Floor, 24 College Lane, Gibraltar, GX11 1AA
Admiral Insurance (Gibraltar) Limited

Incorporatedin Spain

Registered officeCalle Sanchez Pacheco 85 28PRgirid
Rastreator Comparador Correduria De Seguros S.L.U.
Admiral Europe&Compafiia de Seguros, S.A.

Registered office: Calle Albert Einstein, 10 41092 Sevilla
Admiral Intermediary Services S.A.

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

aries

%Ownership

95

95 (indirect)

100

Principal
Activity

Legal compan

Legal compan

Insurance Intermediar

100 Internet-based Comparison Si
100 Internet-based Comparison Si

75 Internet-based Comparison Si

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

Insurance Intermediar
Insurance compan
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Financial services compal

50 Internet-based Comparison Si
50 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si

100

Insurance compan

75 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si

100

100

Insurance compan

Insurance Intermediar
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Incorporated in France:
Registered office: 34 quai de la loire, 75019, Paris
LeLynx SAS Ordinary 100 Internet-based Comparison Si
Incorporated in the United States of America
Registered office: Deep Run 1; Suite 400, 9956yMad Drive, Henrico, V23233

Elephant Insurance Company Ordinary 100 Insurance compan

Elephant Insurance Services LLC Ordinary 100 Insurance intermediar

Grove General Agency Inc Ordinary 100 Insurance intermediar

Platinum General Agency Inc Ordinary 100 Insuranceantermediary
Registered office: 140 East Shore Drive, Suite 300, Glen Allen, VA 23059

compare.com Insurance Agency LLC Ordinary 59.25 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si

Inspop USA LLC Ordinary 59.25 Internet-based Comparison Si

Incorporated in Mexico

Registered officeVarsovia, 36, 5th floor, office 501, Colonia Juarez, Cuauhtemoc,
Ciudad de Mexico

Preminen Mexic&@ociedad Anonima de Capital Variable 51.25 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si
Incorporated in Turkey
Registered officeEsentepe MAH. Harmanl $karmanci Giz Plaza S5isli/ Istanbul

Preminen Online Fiy&anhokKams Sl @ 50 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si
Preminen Sigorta Brokerlik Anonim Sirketi 50 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si

Incorporated in India

Registered office:-2902, Ireo Grand Arch, Sector 58yrugram,
HARYANA, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122011

Preminen Price Comparison India Private Limited 50 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si

Subsidiaries by virtue of control

The related undertakings below are subsidiarieadoordance with IFRS 10, as Admiral can exercise dominant influence or control
them:

Registered office: Level 37, 25 Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London, England, E14 5LQ
Seren One Limited n/a 0 Special purpose entit

Associates
Incorporated in China

Registered office: Room 1806, 15th Floor, Block 16, No. 39 East 3rc
Middle Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

Long Yu Science and Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd 20.25 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si
Incorporated inBahrain

Registered officed™" Floor,Office 42, LMC Building 852, Road 3618, E
436, Al Seef District, PO Box 60138, Manama, Bahrain

Preminen MENA Price Comparison 15 (indirect) Internet-based Comparison Si

* Exempt fromaudit under S479A of Companies Act 2006

For further information on how the Group conducts its business across the UK, Europe and the US,
refer to the Strategic Report.
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12g. Related party transactions

The Board considers that only the Executimel NorExecutiveDirectors of Admiral Group plc are
key management personnel.

A summary of the remuneration of key management personnel is as follows, with further detail
relating to theremuneration and shareholdings of key management personnel set out in the
Directors’ Remunerati on Report.

Key management personnel received short term employee benefits in the year of7/£3685
(2018: £1,88,302, postemployment benefits of £18,946 (201818,573) and share based
payments of £938,258018:£923,400).

Key management personnel are able to obtain discounted motor insurance at the same rates as all
other Group staff, typically at a reduction of 15%.

12h. Post balance sheet events

No events have ecurred since the reporting date that materially impact these financial
statements.
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13. Reconciliations

The following tables reconcile significant key performance indicators andsAghP measures
included in the Strategic Report to items included in tin@rcial statements.

13a. Reconciliation of turnover to reported gross premiums written and Other Revenue as per the
financial statements

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m

Gross premiums written after eimsurance per note 5b dinancial statements 22737 2,166.7
Premiums underwritten through ecimsurance arrangements 610.7 587.4
Total premiums written before cmsurance arrangements 2884.4 2,754.1
Other Revenue 469.9 449.2
AdmiralLacans interest income and other fee income 30.8 154
3,35.1  3,218.7

Other? 590 44.9
Turnover as per note 4b of financial statements 3,444.1  3,263.€
Intra-group income eliminatiot? 19.4 19.3
Total turnover 3,463.5  3,282.€

"1 Otherreconciling items representdoy & dzZNBNJ YR NBAY &adz2NBNJ aKFNBa 2F hiGKSNI wS@
businesses outside of UK Car Insurance.
2 Intra-group income elimination relates to comparison income earned in the Group from other Group companies.
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13b. Reconciliation of claims incurred to reported loss ratios, excluding releases on commuted

reinsurance

December 2019

Net insurancelaims(note 5)

Deduct claims handling costs

Prior year release/strengtheningnet
original share

Prior yearelease/strengthening-
commuted share

Impact of reinsurer caps

Impact of weather events

Impact of subsidence

Attritional current period claims

Net insurance premium revenue
Loss ratio- current period attritional

Loss ratio-current period weather
events

Loss ratio- current period subsidence

events

Loss ratie- prior year
release/strengthening (net original
share)

Loss ratiog reported

UK Motor UK Home UK Other UK Total Int. Car Int. Other  Int. Total Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
164.7 26.8 24.3 2158 137.2 6.3 143.5 359.3
(11.8) (1.1) — (129 (7.6) — (7.6) (20.5)
1217 2.5 — 124.2 14.4 — 14.4 138.6
121.7 — — 121.7 — — T 121.7
— — — T (0.1) — (0.1) (0.1)

— — — '[ — — — —

J— J— J— '[ J— JR— _ JR—
396.3 28.2 24.3 448.8 1439 6.3 1502 5990
452.6 37.2 434 5332 168.6 7.6 176.2 709.4
87.6% 75.8% — 84.2% 853% — —  84.4%
J— J— J— '[ J— J— J— J—

J— J— JR— '[ JR— JR— J— JR—
(26.9%)  (6.7%) —  (23.3%) (85%) — —  (19.5%)
60.7% 69.1% — 60.9% 76.8% — —  64.9%
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December 2018

Net insurance claim@ote 5)

Deduct claims handling costs

Prior year release/strengtheningnet
original share

Prior year release/strengthening
commuted share

Impact of reinsurer caps

Impact of weather events

Impact of subsidence

Attritional current period claims

Net insurance premium revenue
Loss ratio- current period attritional

Loss ratio- current period weather
events

Loss ratio- current period subsidence

events

Loss ratio- prior year
release/strengthening (net original
share)

Loss ratiog reported?

December 2019

Net insurance expensérote 9)
Claims handling costs
Intra-group expenses eliminatich
Impact of reinsurer caps

Net IFRS 16 finance costs
Adjusted net insurance expenses

Net insurance premium revenue

UK Motor UK Home UK Other UK Total  Int. Car  Int. Other Int. Total Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
189.2 29.3 24.0 2425 104.1 35 107.6  350.1
(11.3) (0.5) — (11.8) — — T (11.8)
111.4 1.4 — 112.8 135 — 135 126.3
109.6 — — 109.6 — — T 109.6
— — — T 45 — 45 45
— (3.5) — (3.5) — — — (3.5)
— (2.5) — (2.5) — — — (2.5)
398.9 24.2 24.0 447.1 1221 35 125.6  572.7
452.5 31.2 40.2 523.9 1417 6.2 1479 6718
88.1% 77.6% — 85.3% 86.1% — — 85.2%
— 11.2% — 0.7% — — — 0.5%
— 7.9% — 0.5% — — — 0.4%
(24.6%) (4.4%) —  (21.5%) (9.5%) — — (18.8%)
63.5% 92.3% — 65.0% 76.6% — —  67.3%
*1 The group reported loss ratio has been representef¥2019 to include the impact of weather events
13c. Reconciliation of expenses related to insurance contracts to reported expense ratios
UK Motor UK Home UK Other UK Total Int. Other Int. Group
£m £m £m £m Int. Car £m £m  Total £m £m
634 9.3 4.9 77.6 45.8 1.3 471 1247
11.8 11 — 12.9 7.6 — 7.6 20.5
10.8 0.4 1.1 12.3 7.1 — 7.1 19.4
— — — T 29 — 2.9 2.9
0.5 — — 0.5 0.1 — 0.1 0.6
86.5 10.8 6.0 103.3 63.5 1.3 648 168.1
452.6 37.2 434 5332 168.6 7.6 176.2 709.4
19.1% 28.9% —  194% 37.6% — — 23.7%

Expense ratia; reported
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UK UK Int.

Motor UK Home Other UK Total Int. Car Other Int. Group
December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m  Total £m £m
Net insurance expenségrote 9) 59.7 7.4 5.6 72.7 49.7 2.6 52.3 125.0
Claims handling costs 11.3 0.5 — 11.8 — — T 11.8
Intra-group expenses eliminatiéh 12.3 0.8 — 131 6.2 — 6.2 19.3
Impact of reinsurer caps — — — T 0.2 — 0.2 0.2
Other adjustmerig — — — T — (2.6) (2.6) (2.6)
Adjusted net insurance expenses 83.3 8.7 5.6 97.6 56.1 T 56.1 153.7
Net insurance premium revenue 452.5 31.2 40.2 5239 1417 6.2 1479 671.8
Expense ratia; reported 18.4% 28.1% — —  39.6% — —  22.9%
*1 Theintragr oup expenses elimination amount relates to aggrega:
other Group companies.
*2 Ot her adjustments relate to additional product sSTheunder wr i

contribution from these products is reported as ancillary income and as such the amounts are excluded for the purpose
of calculations of expense ratios.

z

13d. wSO2yOAf Al GA2Y 2F ail Gdzi2aNBE LINRFAG 0SF2NB Gl

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018

£m £m
Reported profit before tax per the consolidated income statement 522.6 476.2
Non-controlling interest share of profit before tax 35 3.1
DNER dzLJQ& &aKINB 2F LINRPFTAG 60S¥2NB (I E 526.1 479.3

13e.Reconciliation of share scheme charges in Strategic report to Consolidated income statement
and Consolidated statement of changes in equity

31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2019 2018
£m £m
Net share scheme charges beoreltanded i n Gr 52.7 49.0
Nonrcontrolling interest share of net share scheme charges 0.7 0.8
Net share scheme charges included in Group profit before tax 53.4 49.8
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13f. Reconciliation of note 4 to Strategic Report

i) UK Insurance

Motor Householi Travel Total
2019 £m £m £m £m
Turnover 2,455.32 171. 8.4 2,635.0
UK Insurance profit before taxStrategic report 5915 75 (1.6) 5974
Nortcontrolling interest share d?PBT 0.5 — — 0.5
Statutory profit/(loss) before tax 5920 75 (1.6) 597.9
Motor Househol Travel Total
2018 £m £m £m £m
Turnover 2,423.1 146.C 6.6 2,575.7
UK Insurance profit before taxStrategic report 561.7 (3.0 (3.1) 555.6
Non-controlling interest share of PBT 11 — — 11
Statutory profit/(loss) before tax 562.¢ (3.0 (3.2) 556.7

i) International Insurance
Spait Italy France us Total
2019 £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 78.2 204.2 108.1 233.1 623.6
Profit/(loss) before tax Strategic Reporand Statutory 8.7 (9.6) (0.9)
Spait Italy France us Total
2018 £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 67.€ 176.¢ 80.5 213:¢ 538.7
Profit/(loss) before tax Strategic Reporand Statutory 6.4 (7.5 (1.2)
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iii) Comparison

Confusel Europeat Compare Othet Total

2019 £m £m £m £m £m

Turnover 112.% 50.1 7.3 1.5 171.6

Group’'s shar e -eStratqgic Repartt 20.4 35 (4.3) (1.6) 18.0

Nortcontrolling interest share of profit/(loss) before tax — 1.0 (2.9) 1.4 3.3)

Statutory profit/(loss) before tax 204 4.5 (7.2) (3.0) 14.7
Confuset Europeal Compare Total
2018 £m £m £m £m
Turnover 95.1 46.5 9.7 1510
Group’'s shar e -eStratqgic Repartt 14.2 1.4 (6.9) 8.8
Non-controlling interest share of profit/(loss) before tax — 0.6 (3.1) (2.2)
Statutory profit/(loss) before tax 14.3 2.3 (10.0) 6.6

14. Statutory Information

The financial information set out above does not constitute the company's statataryunts for

the years ended 31 December Z0dr 2018. Statutory accounts for 2@lhave been delivered to

the registrar of companies, and those for 204ill be delivered in due course. The auditors have
reported on those accounts; their reports were (fJqualified, (ii) did not include a reference to

any matters to which the auditors drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying their

report and (iii) did not contain a statement under section 498 (2) or (3) of the Companies Act 2006.
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Consolidaed financial summanfunaudited)
Basis of preparation

The figures below are as stated in the Group financial statements preceding this financial summary
and issued previously. Only selected lines from the income statement and balance sheet have been
included.

Income statement

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m £m
Total premiums 2,938.¢ 2,766.¢ 2,499.¢ 2,193.¢ 1,805.2
Net insurance premium revenue 709.4 671.¢ 619.1 548.¢ 467.C
Other Revenue 494.4 460.€ 401.1 360.¢€ 319.¢
Profit commission 114.¢ 93.2 67.C 54.: 85.4
Investment and interest income 35.3 36.C 41.7 53.1 32.€
Net revenue 1,3%4.0 1,261.¢ 1,128.¢ 1,016.¢ 904.¢
Net insurance claims (359.3) (350.1 (347.1 (394.6 (226.5,
Net expenses (459.5 (424.0 (366.9 (3324 (298.5
Operating profit 535.2 487.5 414.¢ 289.¢ 379.¢
Netfinance costs (12.6) (11.3 11.4 (11.4 (113
Profit before tax 522.€ 476.2 403.t 278.¢ 368.7
Balance sheet
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m £m
Property and equipment 154.4 28.1 31z 32.C 34.¢€
Intangible assets 160.3 162.C 159. 162.< 142
Deferred income tax — 0.2 0.3 8.4 20.€
Reinsurance assets 2,071.7 1,883.t 1,637.¢ 1,126.¢ 878.1
Insurance and other receivables 1,227.7 1,082.( 939.7 784.¢ 537.1
Loans and advances to customers 455.1 300.2 66.2
Financial investments 3,2345 2,969.% 2,697.¢ 2,420.2 2,323.t
Cash and cash equivalents 281.7 376.¢ 326.¢ 326.¢ 265.:
Total assets 7,585.4 6,802.t 5,859.7  4,860.¢ 4,202.¢
Equity 9186 771.1 655.¢ 581.7 632.¢
Insurance contracts 3,975.C 3,736.¢ 3,313.¢ 2,749.t 2,295.(
Subordinated and other financial liabilities 530.1 444.% 224.C 224.C 223.¢
Trade and other payables 1,975.€ 1,801.t 1,641.¢ 1,292.: 1,015.(
Lease liabilities 137.1 — — — —
Deferred income tax 04 — — — —
Current tax liabilities 48.3 49.2 23. 13.4 35.€
Total equity and total liabilities 7,585.4 6,802.t 5,859.7  4,860.¢ 4,202.
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Glossary

Alternative Performance Measures

Throughout this report, the Group uses a numbeAtiernative Performance Measures (APMs);
measures that are not required or commonly reported under International Financial Reporting

Standards, the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under which the Group prepares

its financial statements.

These APMs are used by the Group, alongside GAAP measures, for both internal performance

analysis and to help shareholders and other users of the Annual Report and financial statements to
understand the Group’'s tppevidus pemdsrarnde

better

the Group’ s

The table below defines and explains the primary APMs used in this report. Financial APMs are
usually derived from financial statement items and are calculated using consistent accounting
policies to thosepplied in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated. Non financial KPls
incorporate information that cannot be derived from the financial statements but provide further

competitors.

insight into the performance and financial position of the Group.

APMsmay not necessarily be defined in a consi
competitors. They should be considered as a supplement rather than a substitute for GAAP
measures.

Turnover Turnover is defined as total premiums written (as belavther revenue and income

from AdmirallLoans. It is reconciled to financial statement line items in note 13a to tt
financial statements.

This measure has been presented by the Group in every Annual Report since it
became a listed Group in 2004. It refiethe total value of the revenue generated by
the Group and analysis of this measure over time provides a clear indication of the
and growth of the Group.

The measure was developed as a result
Car insurane business has historically shared a significant proportion of the risks wi
Munich Re, a third party reinsurance Group, through @nsorance arrangement,
with the arrangement subsequently bei
international insuranceperations. Premiums and claims accruing to the external co
insurer are not reflected in the Grou
of this metric enables users of the A
insurance operations in a wat possible from taking the income statement in
isolation.
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Total Premiums Written

Total premiums written are the total forecast premiums, net of forecast cancellation
written in the underwriting year within the Group, including-itsurancelt is
reconciled to financial statement line items in note 13a to the financial statements.

This measure has been presented by the Group in every Annual Report since it
became a |listed Group in 2004. It ref
insurance intermediaries and analysis of this measure over time provides a clear
indication of hie growth in premiums, irrespective of how-gwurance agreements
have changed over time.

The reasons for presenting this measure are consistent with that for the Turnover
APM noted above

DNR dzZLJQa aKI NBGroup’ s s h a rrestaxoepresents profit bieford taxf excluding the impact o

Tax

Noncontrolling Interests. It is reconciled to statutory profit before tax in note 13d to
the financial statements.

This measure is wuseful in presenting
expenditure incurred in starting-awdp n
|l earn’ strategy employed by the Group

Underwriting result (profit or
loss)

For each insurance business an underwriting result is presented showing the segm
result prior to the inclusion of profit commission, other income contribution and

instalment income. It demonstrates the insurance result, i.e. premium revenue and
investment incomeon insurance assetsess claims incurred and insurance expenses.

Loss Ratio

Reported loss ratios are expressed as a percentage of claims incurred divided by n
earned premiums.

There are a number of instances within the Annual Report where adjustments are
made to this calculation in order to more clearly present the underlpiergormance

of the Group and operating segments within the Group. The calculations of these a
presented within note 13b to the accounts and explanation is as follows.

UK reported motor loss ratio: Within the UK insurance segment the Group separate
presents motor ratios, i.e. excluding the underwriting of other products that
supplement the car insurance policy. The motor ratio is adjusted to i) exclude the
impact of reserve releases on commuted reinsurance contracts and ii) exclude clait
handling costshat are reported within claims costs in the income statement.

International insurance loss ratio: As for the MKtor loss ratio, the international
insurance loss ratios presented exclude the underwriting of other products that
supplement the car insance policy. The motor ratio is adjusted to exclude the claim
element of the impact of reinsurer caps as inclusion of the impact of the capping of
reinsurer claims costs would distort the underlying performance of the business.

Group loss ratios: Groupds ratios are reported on a consistent basis as the UK and
international ratios noted above. Adjustments are made to i) exclude the impact of
reserve releases on commuted reinsurance contracts, ii) exclude claims handling ¢
that are reported within @dims costs in the income statement and iii) exclude the
claims element of the impact of international reinsurer caps.
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Expense Ratio

Reported expense ratios are expressed as a percentage of net operating expenses
divided by net earned premiums.

There are a number of instances within the Annual Report where adjustments are
made to this calculation in order to more clearly present the underlying performanc:
of the Group and operating segments within the Group. The calculations of these a
presental within note 13c to the accounts and explanation is as follows.

UK reported motor expense ratio: Within the UK insurance segment the Group
separately presents motor ratios, i.e. excluding the underwriting of other products
that supplement the car insurae policy. The motor ratio is adjusted to i) include
claims handling costs that are reported within claims costs in the income statement
and ii) include intragroup aggregator fees charged by the UK comparison business
the UK insurance business.

International insurance expense ratio: As for the M#tor loss ratio, the international
insurance expense ratios presented exclude the underwriting of other products that
supplement the car insurance policy. The motor ratio is adjusted to i) exclude the
expenseelement of the impact of reinsurer caps as inclusion of the impact of the
capping of reinsurer expenses would distort the underlying performance of the
business and ii) include intigroup aggregator fees charged by the overseas
comparison businesses the international insurance businesses.

Group expense ratios: Group expense ratios are reported on a consistent basis as
UK and international ratios noted above. Adjustments are made to i) include claims
handling costs that are reported within claimssts in the income statement, ii)
includeintragr oup aggregator fees charged b)
the Group’s insurance businesses and
of international reinsurer caps.

Combined Ratio

Repoted combined ratios are the sum of the loss and expense ratios as defined
above. Explanation of these figures is noted above and reconciliation of the
calculations are provided in notes 13b and 13c.

Return on Equity

Return on equity is calculated as ptafter tax for the period attributable to equity
holders of the Group divided by the average total equity attributable to equity holde
of the Group in the year. This average is determined by dividing the opening and
closing positions for the year by two

The relevant figures for this calculation can be found withindivesolidated
statement ofchanges irequity.

Group Customers

Group customer numbers reflect the total number of cars, households and vans on
cover at the end of the year, across teoup.

This measure has been presented by the Group in every Annual Report since it
became a |isted Group in 2004. It ref
analysis of this measure over time provides a clear indication of the growth. $bisal
useful indicator of the growing significance to the Group of the different lines of
business and geographic regions.

Effective Tax Rate

Effective tax rate is defined as the approximate tax rate derived from dividing the
Group’ s pr dythettax bharfeqoing thiowgx the income statement. It is
measure historically presented by the Group and enables users to see how the tax
incurred by the Group compares over time and to current corporation tax rates.
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Additional Terminology

Thele are many other terms used in this report that are specific to the Group or the markets in
which it operates. These are defined as follows:

Accident year

The year in which an accident occurs, also referred to as the earned basis.

Actuarial best estimate

The probabilityweighted average of all future claims and cost scenarios calculated
using historical data, actuarial methods and judgement.

ASHE

“Annual Sur vey o-asthtisticat isdexahatds tyRically nsedfay s ’
calculation inflation of annual payment amounts under Periodic Payment Order (PF
claims settlements.

Claims reserves

A monetary amount set aside for the future paym@f incurred claims that have not
yet been settled, thus representing a balance sheet liability.

Coinsurance

An arrangement in which two or more insurance companies agree to underwrite
insurance business on a specified portfolio in specified propastiEach cinsurer is
directly liable to the policyholder for their proportional share.

Commutation

An agreement between a ceding insurer and the reinsurer that provides for the
valuation, payment, and complete discharge of all obligations between dhttep
under a particular reinsurance contract.

The Group typically commutes WKr insurance quota share contracts after 24
months from the start of an underwriting year where it makes economic sense to dt
so. Although an individual underwriting year mag profitable, the margin held in the
financial statement claims reserves may mean that an accounting loss on
commutation must be recognised at the point of commutation of the reinsurance
contracts. This loss on commutation unwinds in future periods adittancial
statement loss ratios develop to ultimate.

Insurance market cycle

The tendency for the insurance market to swing between highs and lows of
profitability over time, with the potential to influence premium rates (also known as
the* underwriting cycle”).

Net claims

The cost of claims incurred in the period, less any claims costs recovered under
reinsurance contracts. It includes both claims payments and movements in claims
reserves.

Net insurance premium
revenue

Also referred to as net earned premium. The element of premium, less reinsurance
premium, earned in the period.

Ogden discount rate

The discount rate used in calculation of personal injury claims settlements. The rate
setby the Lord Chancellor.

Periodic Payment Order (PP(A compensation award as part of a claims settlement that involves making a series

annual payments to a claimant over their remaining life to cover the costs of the cal
they will require.

Premium

A series of payments are made by the policyholder, typically monthly or annually, fc
part of or all of the duration of the contract. Written premium refers to the total
amount the policyholder has contracted for, whereas earned premium refers to the
recognition of this premium over the life of the contract.
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Profit commission

A clause found in some reinsurance and coinsurance agreements that provides for
profit sharing.

Reinsurance

Contractual arrangements whereby the Group transfers part or all of the insurance
risk accepted to another insurer. This can be on a quota dbasis (a percentage
share of premiums, claims and expenses) or an excess of loss basis (full reinsuran
claims over an agreed value).

Securitisation

A process by which a group of assets, usually loans, is aggregated into a pool, whi
used to backhe issuance of new securities. A company transfer assets to a specia
purpose entity (SPE) which then issues securities backed by the assets.

Special Purpose Entity (SPE)AN entity that is created to accomplish a narrow and wiellined objective.There are

specific restrictions or limited around ongoing activities. The Group uses an SPE s
under a securitisation programme.

Ultimate loss ratio

A projected actuarial best estimate loss ratio for a particular accident year or
underwriting year.

Underwriting year

The year in which the policy was incepted.

Underwriting year basis

Also referred to as the written basis. Claims incurred are allocated to the calendar
year in which the policy was underwritten. Underwriting year basis results are
calculated on the whole account (includingiosurance and reinsurance shares) and
includeall premiums, claims, expenses incurred and other revenue (for example
instalment income and commission income relating to the sale of products that are
ancillary to the main insurance policy) relating to policies incepting in the relevant
underwriting yea.

Written/Earned basis

A policy can be written in one calendar year but earned over a subsequent calenda
year.
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